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o S . TgT, W@Red vd uRAR ST & §E HAl gRT 23 Fda) 2015 H Hag  H vAveyd wad, &g sty &
IgEre & T |

Union Minister for Health and Family Welfare, Shri J.P Nadda inaugurated ‘HLL BHAWAN’, regional office in Mumbai on 23
November 2015.

At o1 7gr T vd aRaR Hedror & u - HAl 16 qday 2015 ® Sifet gRean s'g'(thl%c\i 3 Afher Ay, g faeedl A
fPHRRN HeR 3R FIfSTaRIger gard iR wicy & forg smrefid #fsRm v Remfde Swiicd R diede (ard)
FiHH A e W

Union Minister for Health and Family Welfare, Shri J.P. Nadda launched Affordable Medicines and Reliable Implants for

Treatment [AMRIT]a programme for affordable cancer and cardiovascular drugs and implants at All India Institute of
Medical Sciences, New Delhi on 15 November 2015.
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3 HerTS 8T, geu |, &g iR w=H
JeM HAI WRA WRBR H 28 SaR]
2016 &1 "FUR M @R

If. a9 am, e (fJaoM) g1

PR B |

Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)
receiving the “Capexil Export Award”
from Mr. Kalraj Mishra, Minister of
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises,
Government of India on 28 January
2016.

TATAUA HITHIR UBS & YN & ®©F § el IRl Arse] §RT1 AU By A1 & dearaes & M= T_e
3R 3 faRTe  UToIdA R T ATBEHE T H SPT BE Bl BEIR RER 5 T |

HLL distributed scholarship awards to academically outstanding students who are pursuing professional and other specified
courses under the auspices of scholarship scheme instituted by HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society as part of CSR initiative,.

#ff ot g1 @R Ud uRaR Fearor @9 /3 7 20 TRad) 2016 & WaHR foda savad (S1E) AfSaa diert, ey
H R WeTferd] @i & foy Ria=amd & aig TRIE 4 &9 gosdfeld 3% @ & |

Shri J.P. Nadda, Union Minister of Health and Family Welfare lighting the lamp at the ceremony after laying the foundation

stone for new Super Specialty Block at the Government Tirumala Devaswom (TD) Medical College, Alappuzha on 20
February 2016.
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A I 31 90 J@&oll & BRI A S .UH . 3RIW, Taueld Aedel Ud vae e, (Jarrgs & ugd)
T oA &Y & BRI H Teavd & S99 e & g et aifd R, Al R g1 a1 3@ 2

HLL Chairman and Managing Director, Dr. M. Ayyappan (since retired) receiving the “Rajbhasha Kirti Puraskar”, for ninth

time for the outstanding performance of HLL in implementing the official language Hindi from Mr. Pranab Mukherjee, Hon’ble
President of India.

M f g, W@red vd URaR dwearor §g #t 06 3nid, 2016 &f 73 ficeft # Mg a7 faawiy vy uRar e
T TR TaUavel g1 fafSfia femrdt ‘dade afgen ded &1 siuaiRe w9 9 o oxd & |

Shri J.P Nadda, Union Minister of Health and Family Welfare formally launches affordable ‘Velvet' female Condom manufactured
by HLL on 06" April, 2016 at the two-day National Family Planning Summit held at New Delhi.
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o o

Sl & 3R TF FOUH, 9 (Faitat 7d g@rer) (Farfrgd & ugd) Taveyd S et & forg MSTH whet SUHIBI
- I freres QReeR A fasTel vd uRage w4t it smafes gewie, 9 14 fader 2015 &1 wrad v € |
Dr K.R.S. Krishnan, Director (Technical & Operations),(since retired) receiving the Best Performance Award — Medium Scale

Energy Consumers for HLL Akkulam Factory from Mr Aryadan Muhammed, Kerala State Minister for Electricity and Transport
on 14 December 2015.

37 3R Ul WusHdTd, TaueQel 3fedel Ud gae s gy, =1 of 91w, WRed HHRMR, ORI & Uy 7 #1 fage
AT, J&ieT 2T, -9 ORI HiShd a1 BRI fafcs & a1 tHeiy & g ex 2 © | 1. 99 9m4, s
(fqaor) @7 ot S@r 7 7

Shri R.P. Khandelwal, HLL Chairman and Managing Director i/c seen exchanging MoU with Shri Vipul Aggarwal, Managing

Director, M/s. Gujarat Medical Service Corporation Limited in the presence of Shri J.P. Gupta, Health Commissioner,
Gujarat. Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing), HLLis also seen.
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gfcaiv/II qen Seed
R

RO FarIR & TRY T Td I[urgeiiarel WRey &l FHIEM Y& HRd THAE IR Hdbfad fawiRiy w1
ST I ST

3

PIARET FEPHIV RT PR B AR, TaUAVA bR ferfics 7 FreferRad S SfeatRaa fam 8 i o &3 i)
Habfed &

o IR ATH YRT B dlel ordarel ScTe AR A & BT |

o IH UENfIfRAl ok ugRrl &1 oA ¥ FRAR GIR & gRT Icpeedl |

® AR, WY U4 [IHM, AN Jee iR SUHRHT & & §IRT IUHRHI e AR Jod Jor |

o ARl FIHI IIATERYN BT ATILIHARI BT Yl o T A FA1ET [Thr R dbiod b1 |

e PN FITHT 3R HIART ATHINIG STRGIRIE & ITadH HFD g9V I&H P gRT ATHINIG ©F
gferag dARe 99 ST |

o T uEd iR vl e & diews & IRT gt 1 &t werrs ok Wiy fifed & forg afvag v

o I U AN U & H1 JaTe &l @R gig 3R Tellael WR BTRIe BT 3R IS 41 IeTs
2o | 2 A RIeATfsdi # g 99 S|

® AU UG fadr usel & WRY FRAR TaTaR &l b &= |
o 90% ¥ 31t HHANI A VIR P WY URA H fqbed & AT X871 & oy Jar4d BT

o AN Pl UREGAT & WY JTocdIa Qd AfSel TR &7 & &5 H 3701 AHIIdh 6 & W H ATl
TG HRAT - 91 Tl H 941 TRBR] U4 IgUI ugell bl SR B & o1y fadbed & AeiarR a1 |

o JIIHR T U4 TAIIBR T avii Bl FRIfha~vT iR Mfde qreaeRT # enfie & & fofg I WIIaT
BT AR e T, Breret e iR e fderT o) dofwd ol

* I [AJ [P BT AR TJcd PR I8 AT &b FREUT R FARME Yeiere I qATaRoT et Traferi
W SR AR HYI I G HIV)/AIT YRT HRA DT TART BT |
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VISION

VISION/MISSION & OBJECTIVES

To be a globally respected organisation, focusing on inclusiveness by providing affordable and quality healthcare
solutions through continuous innovation.

MISSION
To accomplish the Corporate Vision, HLL Lifecare Ltd has outlined following Mission which focus on six key
areas:
®  Provide quality products and services meeting international standards.
®  Excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies and practices.
®  Customer delight and value creation through innovation, R & D, cost management and customer care.
®  Focusing on human resource development to meet the needs of challenging business environment.
®  Beasocially committed corporate by maintaining highest standards of corporate governance and corporate
social responsibility.
e  Committed to the well-being of mother earth and future generations through green initiatives and promotion
of sustainable development.
OBJECTIVES

The company will strive to fulfill its vision/mission by

Attaining rapid growth and global levels of operations with high quality cost competitiveness and be
among the top three players in each main product category.

Create a culture of continuous innovation through R& D initiatives.
Strive to be the employer of choice in India with employee satisfaction levels of over 90%.

Be recognized as the leading social organization in the field of Reproductive and Women's Healthcare
with commitment to the society - a partner of choice for implementing all government and multi-lateral
initiatives in these segments.

Focussing on capacity building, skill development and infrastructural development for the benefit of the

marginalized and under privileged sections for their empowerment and inclusion in the economic
mainstream.

To place emphasis on environmental friendly activities that brings out conservation of resources and
waste management leading to top sustainable development.
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T[oTa i

TIATATS ASHhHhA forfties ufyag & :

AN Bl WRY Ud AT Siiae FH B, ARSI AS P 0T FHANS U Hehl~sd (BB Ted e
FHTETT UST DT |

ot e & 9 drenfire iR ugfordt STue gRT oFTAR S9fd & SIRT Ao d ST Sule] BT |

TN, YT JAT ITHL g I, AN Jag qof Uieeh Hee Yee W Bl DR ATeeh] PbieTy
AW AR IR I dTel SeF JeydaTel ScTe G Han fagor &= |

AHfE® ANTRTHT AT AHfEd ARITD SR A Yoh Ieacd AFDI DI YRT HRdTel AT g1 |
&I, @A Ud qaiarol Hifd

FHHARAT 3R S GiAeTHRI &) e JFAfTad H= Hfeg ufag &=

TR MR W AP HRIBAMI, ITUTGT R HII & THTG BT AFAET0T Td =0T BT |
SUYh (AT Qd =7 3UeTall &1 ATl BT |

AHIRS STaaae! TR SR SdR GRIT JaTer Jersi S 3= |

PHIART TRIETVT 3R I IR GATE T |

S TGt SO GRT UGHUT B BT |

AT, STl TRIATT T 3R el 1 A WR HH BT AR TAHROMY Hotl Al b G T |
e, TR Td GATIRYT Je HOTTell &l Sfrafdres Fie |

SRARTRITAT T[OTe it

TITATS ASHhHhA forfies ufvag & :

TSR /RITRTSERT AT Bl Sif YTl BT ST SR AT 3T ATIATID ARV & TN IRT a1,
AT q2H1 srgAnToi Sifg aRoms gifead s |

UG FATAT | AT A BGRB8 T 3M/3E $ Al 17025 : 2005 & IIwU FEET JUTel @l
it ok Srdfaferi & wrer GuRRTT =1, gHfead w1 q1 SHa! 3996 S § Hrff<d &1l

JEE JOTel! & gHIfad FRAR e |

ol i

TIATATS TSHhaN fIfies e sr o gur), Brie™ iR qafarfors ©9 9 Reer a¥d & 7T el @de
3R ST B ¥ ufEg @

Sl AT BT B A 3R Holl HRIGHAT BT T S oG TR Sl Fde= Jonel! Sricberdl 3R Jarsii &
JrgdteroT, FElE 3R FRIFT AR |

Sl Prierd ScdTe/AdTst BT S HRAT AR THHONT St *#idl &b TAIT Pl gg7ar <7 |

ST STANT, SUHNT 3R BRI A Heerd STeh (e iR 3= setaii & rurer |

I 3R A& Pl UTG B P oY IUcTe ol 3R FATEH BT ITART HRAT |

Sl TG BRIGAT § HHART TRIET 3R ITd! ARNGRT e a1 <7 |

Ty RYIE 2015-2016
14



QUALITY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to:

Provide affordable healthcare solutions focussing on inclusiveness, conforming to international standards,
enabling people to lead healthy and happy lives;

Achieve organisational excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies
and practices in all areas;

Market products and services globally delivering highest value for customers through focus on innovation,
quality, R&D, cost management and customer relationship management;

Be an organisation meeting highest standards in Corporate Governance and Corporate Social
Responsibility.

SHE POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to protect environment, eliminate occupational hazards and
ensure safety of employees & subcontractors through:

HLL

Monitoring and control of the impact of its activities, products and services on a continual basis;
Compliance of applicable legal and other requirements;

Adopting safe operating practices with an emphasis on social accountability.

Facilitating employee training and their involvement;

Pollution mitigation through adoption of best practices;

Conserving materials, energy and reducing waste at source, and/ encouraging usage of renewable
energy sources;

Periodic review of safety, health and environment management system.

LAB QUALITY POLICY

Lifecare Limited is committed to:
Ensure reliable, consistent and traceable results of testing by using test methods complying to national/
international standards and by following good professional practices.

Ensure that all personnel involved in the testing operations familiarize with the policies and procedures

of the management system conforming to ISO/IEC 17025 : 2005 and implement the same in their
works.

Continually improve the effectiveness of the management system.

ENERGY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to buying and using energy in the most cost effective, efficient
and environmentally responsible way through:

Monitoring, reviewing and controlling of energy management system activities and services on a
continual basis for reducing energy demand and increasing energy efficiency.

Sourcing energy efficient products/services and encouraging usage of renewable energy sources.
Compliance of applicable legal and other requirements related to energy use, consumption and efficiency.
Utilizing the available information and resources to achieve the objectives and targets.

Facilitating employee training and their involvement in energy management activities.
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SIEY& Pl HIYUT
BT & e HSel & IR A, TaaUd &l WUl S, d1fie |HRT 966 H 319 Udh Udh & 8lfad @RI Bl
TRITY 980 WM T AR & a1 ¥ | af 2015-16 89X fog was et geer a7 2 | s o (qw arg) 2015-16
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3MIe! FEY Gl Bl g [ e Fawre dsa 7 fa<ita ad 2015-16 (el 99 & a_1eR) & fog duet @t e
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& BRI ol T AR IR Afed 7465.87 TG (fUoel ad & RIeR) 2, i1 HUN & B & a18 o (@ U ET) & 16%
Y IR PR 2 |

3I! HU & g§ 2015-16 F IePpte IUATSRIT I 1 dieT ART AR FHEI &
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RIARIETAT & %0 |, g foear

o ISP IUT BH AN W Wl H RAFHE A F AEROT FERRETT F A1 - JRAY D AR - D
faferior 89 - Afsurd & fofg Bfaie srgAET @I JTen o Sl 8, i 3/ Wil gd I AR 2 |

o TIUAUA T HIR AR g&d JHIRIT & ol ge=11a iy JaT S B T, 718 faeel H Md Jcd 3caie Gall
21 9RA ¥R & 3000 Pai H 3ffere g $a Seal o FeIa fBar Sgn |

o TAUATE b W H ABRIT eica SenRa Afgell e ®l Seog ol 3l G 9 3gAIG I gai |

o JTIdC - oicHd AMUTRY Afxel b 5 3icl 2016 &Y 73 fee! § W uRAR RS e & SR YR &
T ey HAY ot o WY Jg1 g e fear |
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ToRTA Afedmd dar M fafics (Sit 79 o 3 ge) SR JorRTd | U9 3R MIfaeRoT (STt <) UF 37 Q) & A1
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CHAIRMAN'’'S SPEECH

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the company, it is a great honour and privilege for me to extend a very
warm welcome to each one of you to the Golden Jubilee, Annual General Meeting of HLL. Year 2015 -16 has
been a milestone year for us.It gives me great pleasure to share with you the performance of your Company
during the Financial Year (FY) 2015-16. Your company continued to deliver another year of consistent growth
on various fronts despite the challenging environment.

With your permission | present before you the 50" Annual Report for the financial year 2015-16.

Your Company achieved a new landmark in operational revenues, crossing the ¥1062.91 Cr.milestone on a
standalone basis. Revenue from operations has grown from ¥1058.04 Cr. in 2014-15 t031062.91 Cr. in 2015-16.
Profit after Tax is ¥28.88 Cr. in 2015-16.

I am very happy to inform you that your Board of directors has recommended dividend of 0.13 per share of face
value of ¥10 each on the paid-up equity share capital of the Company for the financial year 2015-16
(at par with previous year). The total outgo on account of dividend, inclusive of dividend tax, for 2015-16 is
3465.87lakh (at par with previous year), which represents a pay-out of 16% of the Company’s Profit after Tax
(PAT).
Itis my privilege to share with you the significant achievements of your Company in the year 2015-16:
®  Our flagship brand, MOODS was identified as POWER BRAND 2016 “the most recognized brand of

India” featuring in the selected 67 brands from India. MOODS Gold Series launched in international

market

Pharma Division achieved 100% of the target and registered a growth of 45%.

Long Term Agreement (LTA) signhed with UNFPA for supplying IUD, Female Condoms & Male Condoms.

HLL Infra Tech Services Limited [HITES], a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL was notified as the ‘Executive
Agency’of Ministry of Health & Family Welfare (MoHFW), Government of India.

e HITES was appointed as Project Management Consultant for Strengthening of Health System in Republic
of Guinea under line of credit funding by Government of India

® Cabinet approval expected for a ‘state of the art’ ecofriendly manufacturing hub— MEDIPARK -with
common infrastructure to indigenously manufacture medical devices at lower cost, which are
presently expensive and import dependent.

® HLL opened AMRIT retail pharmacy outlets in AIIMS, New Delhi to provide affordable drugs for
cancer and heart diseases. More AMRIT centers will be soon established at 3000 centers across
India.

HLL's indigenously developed Latex based Female Condom got WHO PQ approval.

® \Velvet — Latex based Female condom was launched during the National Family Planning Summit
on 5" April 2016 at New Delhi by the Honorable Health Minister of India, Sri. J P Nadda.
e HLL opened HINDLABS diagnostics centre & Specialty Clinic at Medical College, Trivandrum to provide
affordable and reliable healthcare facilities.
e HLL inked MoU with Gujarat Medical Service Corporation Limited [GMSCL] and Gujarat CSR Authority
[GCSRA]Jto set up and operate retail drug stores in specified Government hospitals in the State of
Gujarat.
The Company has been getting Excellent rating consecutively since 2009-10. Based on the self-assessment,
MoU score for the year 2015-16 is within the “Very Good” range as per the Evaluation Report.
Your Company had complied with Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises.
| gratefully acknowledge the continued support and help received from various departments of Government
of India, particularly from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare.

Shri R.P. Khandelwal
Chairman and Managing Director
HLL Lifecare Limited
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fadaw, 2016 3m=Te 3.00 g1 BI AT @t ST |

AT BRI

1.
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& TRIE® 3R 78T olaTaRiesd gRT1 Fgeh Aifaftre crarierel & qiksfie ad &1 & o $ui & Fawe
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faeiy wri
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(. shpar)

HUT Afgd vd akss Iuredet (ATd AaTe)
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No.HLL/CS/2-338/2016 24 August 2016

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 50" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of HLL Lifecare Ltd.
will be held at New Delhi on Friday, the 23" of September 2016 at 3.00p.m. at the Committee Room,
Room No0.155-A, 1%t Floor, Nirman Bhavan, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including audited consolidated financial
statements) for the year ended 31t March 2016 along with the Report of the Directors, Statutory
Auditors together with comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) thereon.

To declare dividend on the equity shares of the Company for the financial year ended 315 March
2016.

To authorize the Board of Directors to fix remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the year 2016-17.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirement of Section 142 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to fix the remuneration to the
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the year 2016-17".

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

Ratification of Cost Auditors’ remuneration for the Financial Year 2016-17.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the Company hereby fix the
remuneration of 31.5 lakh plus service tax and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. Jugal
K.Puri Associates, Cost Accountants, Gurgaon (Firm Registration No:000207) and 2.5 lakh plus
service tax and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s S. Nair & Associates, Cost Accountants,
Thiruvananthapuram (Firm Registration N0:102913), who were appointed by the Board of Directors

as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year ending 31t March 2017.”

By the order of the Board

(P. SREEKUMAR)
COMPANY SECRETARY & SVP (HR)
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Notes:

1.

To

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and on
a poll to vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Proxies, in order to be valid and effective, must be lodged with the registered office of the
company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors of a Government
Company are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). In terms of
Section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the remuneration of auditors has to be fixed by the
company in the annual general meeting or in such manner as the company in annual general
meeting may determine. Necessary resolution has been placed before the Members for authorising
the Board of Directors to fix up the remuneration to the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2016-17.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, setting out the material facts in respect of Special
Business is annexed.

Shareholders
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement sets
out the matter in relation to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying notice:

Item No. 4

The Company is directed, under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost
Accountant in practice. The Board of Directors of your Company, based on recommendation of the
Audit Committee, approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. Jugal K.Puri Associates, Gurgaon
and M/s S. Nair & Associates, Cost Accountants, Thiruvananthapuram for the financial year ending
March 31, 2017. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 14 (a) (ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members
is sought for passing ordinary resolution for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors
for the financial year ending March 31, 2017. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the aforesaid ordinary resolution. The Board
recommends the aforesaid resolution for your approval.

By the order of the Board

(P. SREEKUMAR)
COMPANY SECRETARY & SVP (HR)
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|. DIRECTORS’ REPORT (2015-16)

The Members
HLL Lifecare Ltd.

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the fiftieth (50th) Annual Report of the Company together
with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 and Auditors' Report and the Report
thereon by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company's financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2016 is summarised below:

( in lakh)
Financial particulars Standalone Consolidated

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
Revenue from operations (gross) 107208.46 106438.70  113825.19 111363.76
Excise duty 917.27 633.74 1089.54 810.69
Revenue from operations (net) 106291.19 105804.96 112735.65 110553.07
Other income 876.89 398.37 816.33 455.49
Total income 107168.08 106203.33  113551.98  111008.56
Profit before tax 3803.04 3752.79 4202.48 3903.12
Tax expense 914.77 597.65 1153.68 589.22
Profit for the year 2888.27 3155.14 3170.04 3313.90
Dividend (including tax on distributed profits) 465.87 465.87 465.87 465.87
Transfer to General Reserve 2422.40 2689.31 2631.49 2801.22

2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Your Company achieved a new landmark in operational revenues, crossing the ¥1062.91 crores milestone on
a standalone basis. The highlights of the Company's performance are as under:

e Revenue from operations has grown from ¥1058.04 Cr.in 2014-15 to ¥1062.91 Cr. in 2015-16.

e Profit before tax is ¥38.03 Cr. in 2015-16 compared to ¥37.53 Cr.in 2014-15.

e Profit after Tax is ¥28.88 Cr. in 2015-16 compared to ¥31.55 Cr. in 2014-15.

e Net worth has grown from ¥426.28 Cr. in 2014-15 to ¥547.39 Cr. having a growth of 28.41% in 2015-16.

Your Company is witnessing an exciting phase of growth and is working on a long term plan "Vision 2020"
which will steer the Company towards meeting its strategic objectives. Your Company is on the path of building
capabilities in the identified focus areas and has initiated various steps for augmenting production capacity and
product line apart from diversifying business activities with enhanced stress on market penetration, which will
position your Company among high performers in the industry.

3. DIVIDEND

The Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of ¥ 0.13 per share of face value of ¥10 each on the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company for the financial year 2015-16. The total outgo on account of dividend,
inclusive of dividend tax, for 2015-16 is ¥465.87 lakhs (at par with previous year), which represents a pay-out
of 16% of the Company's Profit after Tax (PAT). Payment of dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company propose to transfer an amount of ¥2,422.40 lakhs to the General Reserves.
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4. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2016 was stood at ¥300.00 Cr. as the same of
previous year and the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital as on 31st March, 2016 was
3290.42 Cr.

In May 2015 and September 2015 the Company received 340.00 Cr. and ¥56.88 Cr. from Government of India
towards equity infusion for which the allotment of 9,68,80,000 equity shares of ¥10 each ranking pari-passu
with existing shares has been made. Consequently, the paid up equity share capital of the Company has
increased to ¥290.42 Cr.as on date of this report.

5. RATING OF THE COMPANY vis-a-vis MoU TARGETS

Your Company's performance has been rated as "Excellent” in terms of MoU signed with the Government of
India for the year 2014-15. The Company has been getting Excellent rating consecutively since 2009-10.
Based on the self-assessment, your Company is likely to achieve "Excellent" rating for the year 2015-16 as
well. The self-assessment details based on the Evaluation criteria are summarized below:

Evaluation Criteria Documentary MoU Target
source

a) Sales Turnover, excluding interest and other income
(Operating Turnover) Sales Turnover shall not include

excise duty, custom duty, VAT or any other duty, tax, etc. Annual Report 31012.88 Cr
b) Gross Operating Margin Self Certificate
based on
Annual Report % 201.04 Cr
(i) Profitability
b) PAT/Net Worth Annual Report 5.30%
(iii) Costs and Output Efficiency
Average Collection Period of Trade Receivables Self Certificate
(Debtors Turnover Ratio) based on
Annual Report 221 days
(iv) Efficiency of Asset Use
a) Average No. Days of Inventory (Inventory Self Certificate
Turnover Ratio) based on
Annual Report 48 days
6. DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of provisions of Chapter
V-Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments made by Company are given in the notes
to the financial statements.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All the Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm's length basis and
were in ordinary course of business.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year 2015-16 which were
in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in Note
No.2.11 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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All related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business and were on
an arm's length basis. Particulars of contract/arrangements/transactions made with related parties, pursuant
to Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed form AOC-2 is appended as Annexure | which
forms part of this report.

9. SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE

As on March 31, 2016, your Company has three subsidiary companies and one joint venture Company. The
summary of performance of the subsidiary and joint venture companies is provided below:

9.1 HLL Biotech Limited (HBL)

HLL Biotech Limited (HBL), the wholly owned subsidiary company has completed fourth year of its
incorporation on 12th March 2016. The Authorized Share capital of the Company stood at ¥ 285.00 Cr. as the
same of previous year. The paid up Capital of the Company has been increased from ¥178.01 Cr. to 3274.89
Cr. During the year the Company received equity infusion of ¥ 96.88 Cr.

During the year under review HBL has successfully accomplished mechanical completion of the facility in
Feb’ 2016. The Infrastructure systems for water & HVAC are ready for the validation activities which are
expected to start by May 2016. The production of trail batches of vaccines is expected to commence by
January 2017 and the commercial production by April 2018 after clinical trials.

HBL has successfully developed Vero cell culture derived Rabies vaccine by in-house research. Preclinical
studies followed by two years real time and accelerated stabilities of the laboratory scale vaccine was
performed successfully demonstrating the safety, efficacy and stability of the vaccine.

HBL has started R&D activities for in-house process development of JE vaccine is initiated with seed isolate
sourced from NIV, Pune. Methods for adapting JE virus isolate on Vero cells is being carried out in the R&D
Lab.

9.2 Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (GAPL)

The authorized and paid up share capital of GAPL is ¥ 25 Cr. and ¥19.02 Cr. respectively as on 31st March
2016. The shareholding of HLL Lifecare Limited (holding company) in GAPL is 74% and balance 26% is held
by EDC Limited.

During the year under review, the Revenue from operations has grown by 2.34% as compared with the
previous year. The net profit of the Company has grown by 28% as compared with the year before.

GAPL is a Pharmaceutical formulation manufacturing Company and manufactures drugs in the range of
Allopathic, Ayurveda and Homeopathic systems of medicine. Considering the future business plans, business
prospects from overseas markets, contract manufacturing opportunities, and to meet WHO GMP a independent
production block for manufacturing of Cephalosporin range of tablets/Capsules and Dry powder parenteral
products[DPP] is proposed to establish at GAPL factory location. The proposed new block for Cephalosporin
range of formulations will not only facilitate compliance with cGMP norms but also will enhance scope for
additional business prospects in the range of Cephalosporin Injections, Tablets as well as Capsules.
Further, installation of a state of the art new facility will also support product contract manufacturing as well as
product export to regulated and non-regulated markets and thus enable the Company to explore new business
avenues.

9.3 HLL Infra Tech Services Ltd. (HITES)

HITES was incorporated on 3rd April 2014 as a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL Lifecare Limited to carry on
the business of providing services viz., Infrastructure Development, Facilities Management, Procurement
Consultancy and allied services, foreseeing the enormous scope of business in these segments.

During the year 2015-16 HITES achieved a commendable Turnover of ¥1953.81 lakhs. The Profit after tax
was increased to ¥116.46 lakhs and the Net Worth has grown to ¥ 77.66 lakhs.

HITES is primarily operating in healthcare infrastructure development and allied field. With the government
favorable policies, the Company is expected to increase the performance in all fields in the coming years.
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9.4 Lifespring Hospitals (P) Limited
In 2015-16, the business income of LifeSpring Hospitals (P) Ltd (LSH), the 50:50 joint venture between HLL Lifecare

and Acumen Fund, had grown by 12.41% as compared with business income for year 2014-15. LSH has facilitated
delivery of 6461 babies during the year under review.

Presently, the JV is running a cluster of 12 hospitals in Hyderabad and one hospital at Vishakhapatnam in Andhra
Pradesh. Among these, 4 hospitals have completed 8 years, 3 hospitals have completed 6 years, remaining 6
hospitals have completed 4 years of operations and the hospital at Vishakhapatnam has completed 8 months as
on 31.03.2015. Normally, for hospital business the gestation period is fairly long. As the services at Life Spring
Hospitals are offered at very affordable rates, aimed at meeting social commitments, it would normally take 5 - 7
years to achieve breakeven level in operations. Among the 6 - 8 year old hospitals, 6 hospitals are generating
profits from 2013-14. Out of the 12 hospitals in Hyderabad, 6 hospitals have reported profit before tax during the
year, 2 hospitals made cash profits and 2 hospitals made profits at Unit level.

In the current year 2015-16, the performance at the enterprise level has been steadily improving. The Company
recorded a profit of ¥ 5.60 lakhs during 2015-16.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint venture
companies in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements.

10. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS)-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements and AS-27 on
Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited consolidated financial statement is provided in
the Annual Report. The Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies, along with related information are
available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company, as also at the registered offices of the
respective subsidiary companies and will be available for inspection during working hours.

11. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls, commensurate with the nature of its
business, size and complexity of operations. This ensures that all transactions are approved and authorized
as per delegation of powers, recorded and reported correctly, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records in SAP driven environment, timely preparation of reliable financial statements are maintained and
assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition. These systems
are routinely tested and certified by statutory as well as internal auditors and cover all units, divisions and key
business areas. HLL, being a public sector undertaking, is subject to various CAG audit also. Significant
audit observations and follow-up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee. Corporate Audit
Services conduct operations & management audit on the selected areas with an objective of reviewing the
performance efficiency &assurance on internal controls. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and
effectiveness of the company’s internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit
recommendations, including those relating to strengthening of the company’s risk management policies
and systems.

12. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal framework to the
Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards
against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year in this regard.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has adopted a robust Risk Management Policy approved by the Board of Directors. It
establishes various levels of accountability and overview within the Company, while vesting identified
managers with responsibility for each significant risk. The Company has identified various risks and also
has mitigation plans for each risk identified. The Corporate Audit Service Department facilitates the execution
of Risk Management Practices in the Company, in the areas of risk identification, assessment, monitoring,
mitigation and reporting. Your Company has an established Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system
that engageswith all the business verticals for risk assessment and ensures that the risk mitigation plans
are in place and validates its status regularly. The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the Risk Management
process.
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14. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the
going concern status and operations of the Company.

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end
of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and on the date of this report.

16. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Directors confirm that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
that no material departures have been made from the same;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fairview of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profits of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information regarding particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limit specified under
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable as
none of the employees of the Company has drawn remuneration in excess of the stipulated limit, during the
year under review.

18. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 an extract of the Annual Return as at March 31, 2016 in form
MGT 9 is appended as Annexure Il to the Board’s Report.

19. AUDITORS
19.1Statutory Auditors

The observations/qualifications made in the Auditors’ Report read together with relevant notes thereon are
self-explanatory and hence, do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013.

19.2 Cost Auditors

M/s. S. Nair & Associates, Cost Accountants, Trivandrum and M/s. Jugal K. Puri & Associates, Cost
Accountants, New Gurgaon were appointed as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2015-16 to conduct cost
audit of the accounts maintained by the Company in respect of the various products prescribed under
Companies (Cost Records & Audit Rules), 2014. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act
readwith the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members are requested to consider the ratification
of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.
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19.3 Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. BVR &
ASSOCIATES, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
the year ended 31st March, 2016. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR3 forms part of the Annual Report
as Annexure lll to the Board’s Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark.

20. PROCUREMENT OF GOODS FROM MSMEs

During the year 2015-16, the Company has procured goods of value of ¥7,401.00 lakhs from Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises (MSMES) out of the total procurement of ¥26,117.00 lakhs which is 28.34% as against the
target of 20%. The Company has also conducted 14 VVendor Development Programmes for MSMEs.

21. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNICAL ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/OUTGO

The particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo, as prescribed under sub-section 3 (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given as Annexure-A, which forms part of this report.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILTY

HLL implements CSR programmes directly and through its implementing agencies such as HLL Family Planning
and Promotion Trust [HLFPPT] and HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society. During the year the Company has
undertaken many CSR initiative programmes. In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company has established Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. Statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Committee and Annual
Report on CSR activities of the Company pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014
for the financial year 2015-16 forms part of this Report as Annexure B.

23. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of good corporate governance and has taken
adequate steps to adhere to all stipulations laid down in DPE O.M. No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14-05-2010 issued by
Department of Public enterprises. Report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate of the Statutory
Auditors M/s. Abraham & Jose, Chartered Accountants confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
form part of this report as Annexure IV.

24. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in a separate section forming
part of this report.

25. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year under review, the following change took place in the Directorship of the Company:
25.1 Cessation

Shri K Mohandas, ceased as Independent Director with effect from 06th January, 2016. The Board of Directors
placed on record their deep appreciation for the valuable guidance extended by Shri K Mohandas during his
association with the Company.

25.2 Woman Director

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company shall have at least one
Woman Director on the Board. Your Company has Dr. Aarti Vij as Independent Director on the Board of the
Company since December 3, 2010.

25.3 Committees of the Board

Your Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate governance
practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes.
There have been no situations where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Committee.
The Company has following Committees of the Board:
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Audit Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee

A detailed note with respect to the compositions, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of relevant committees
are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance section which forms part of this Annual Report.

25.4 Declaration from Independent Directors

The Board has received declarations from each Independent Director as per the requirement of Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is satisfied that the Independent Directors meet the criteria
of independence as mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

25.5 Board Meetings held during the year

During the year, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The maximum interval between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the meetings are
furnished in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report.

26. POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT
WORKPLACE

The Company implemented the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. The Policy aims to provide protection to
employees from sexual harassment at the workplace and redress complaints of sexual harassment. Your
Company firmly believes that sexual harassment results in violation of the fundamental rights of a woman's
equality under articles 14 and 15 of the Constitution of India and the right to life and to live with dignity under
article 21 of the Constitution and the right to practice any profession or to carry on any occupation, trade or
business which includes a right to a safe environment free from sexual harassment. Redressal Committees
have been constituted in all units of the company. Meetings are conducted on regular intervals. Your company
conducted 2 meetings with lady employees during the year. A talk was conducted on Women Empowerment
by Advt. Sandhya Santhosh as part of International Women'’s Day Celebration at 8" March, 2016. The Company
has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2015-16.

27. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In order to meet the demands due to the growth of data and implementation of value processes, SAP infrastructure
was enhanced during the period. Athird party audit of the SAP solution is being conducted to evaluate and identify
the scope of further improvement opportunities and controls. SAP application was rolled out to HITES, as per the
formation of subsidiary company and operations were started in Finance module.

28. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Corporate R&D Centre (CRDC) of your Company is dedicated to carrying out multi-disciplinary research and
development aimed at creating scientific knowledge for new technology development and value addition of
existing technologies in the healthcare field. CRDC is committed to achieving the vision through generation of
knowledge base for novel technologies in healthcare field, value added R&D services that meet/exceed customer
expectation and human resource development through quality improvement programmes along with safe
and healthy work environment.

During the year under review HLL R&D received Drugs Controller General of India (DCGI) approval for
conducting phase Il clinical trial of coated Copper T in India for a randomized, single blind, multi-center,
parallel-arm, pilot scale study to ascertain the efficacy of coated Copper T in reducing bleeding side effect as
compared with Copper T 380 A for a maximum 1 year. The study will be carried out in 200 subject across 10different
sites spread nationally. CRDC also received state drug controller license to manufacture Coated Copper T
Intrauterine device for the purpose of examination, test or analysis for a period of 1 year.

During the year under review, CRDC successfully developed sanitary napkins using Silver nano particles for
improved sterility.
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The Scientific Advisory Committee constituted by the Company by drawing renowned -scientists from diverse
field’s relevant to HLL's research activities is providing guidance to the functioning of CRDC.

The R&D projects of CRDC have bagged funding as mentioned below.
® Funding for development of Graphene Condoms by Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

® Funding by DST Fast track scheme for the development of Drug Incorporated Electrospun Fibers
based drug Delivery system for Contraception.
Patents filed by CRDC:

1. On July 2015 a patent application for Methods and formulation of Sublingual Oxytocin Film was
filed

2. On March 2015 for Targeted bioavailable and safe delivery of mucoadhesive polymer coated iron
particles

Patent awarded to CRDC
1. PatentNo. 2013/1000032970, Portugal for a novel intrauterine device with controlled copper release.

2. Patent No. 2013/07698, an improved female condom and process of manufacturing the same using
natural rubber latex.

Your Company has incurred expenditure on Research& Development during year 2015-16 as mentioned below:
Capital expenditure - T481.26 lakhs
Recurring expenditure - 3 696.70 lakhs

29. TECHNOLOGY TIE-UPS

Your Company has been giving thrust to technology acquisition and/or development in the recent past. The major
technology tie-ups forged by the Company in year 2015-16 includes the following:

- Signed MoU with Adyar Cancer Institute, Chennai for the technology for ELISA based P16 assay for
cervical cancer.

- Technology transfer by CRDC for manufacturing of HCG urine pregnancy test card from basic coating
stage.

30. QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
During the year, the Company’s manufacturing units have obtained/renewed the following new certifications:

® SO 9001:2008 certification for manufacturing units at by HLL Akkulam Factory, Peroorkada Factory,
Kanagala Factory, Manesar and Irapuram Factory Kochi.

® |SO 50001:2011 certification for manufacturing unit at Akkulam.
® SAB mark for female condoms manufactured at Kochi and Peroorkada units.

® SO 13485:2003 certification for manufacturing units at Akkulam, peroorkada, Kanagala, Manesar,
Irapuram.

® SO 14001:2004 certification for manufacturing units at Akkulam, peroorkada, Kanagala and Kochi
for Efficient Environment Management Systems.

® OHSAS 18001:2007 certification for units at Akkulam, peroorkada, Kanagala and Kochi for Occupational
Health and Safety.

® SO 50001: 2011 certification for unit at Peroorkada for Energy Management System.

® NABL accreditation for finished products testing laboratory at Peroorkada Unit, Thiruvananthapuram in
accordance with ISO 17025:2005.

® NABL accreditation for medical testing at HINDLABS, New Delhi in accordance with ISO 15189:2012.
® CE mark for Male Condoms manufactured at Peroorkada and Kochi units.

® CE Mark for Female Condoms manufactured at Kochi and Peroorkada units.

e CE markfor Blood Bags, Intrauterine Device and Surgical Sutures produced at Akkulam Units.

® CE mark for Pregnancy Test Cards [PTC]

® Peroorkada Factory continued to possess product certifications such as KITE mark, CMD CAS, NF
mark, SABS mark.
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31. HUMAN RESOURCES
31.1 Human Resources Development

Your company gives high priority for development of human resources employed by them. During the year
under review, the company had organized various training programmes involving 1150 man days for executives
and 2313 man days for workmen.

31.2 Industrial Relations

The year 2015-16 witnessed harmonious industrial relations in the company as in the previous years, and no
mandays lost on account of labour unrest;

31.3 Reservation for SC/ST/OBC and physically challenged

The company continues to follow the presidential directives in respect of reservation to SC/ST/OBC Communities
and efforts are taken to fulfill the directives in Recruitment and Promotion. Serious and focused effort was
also taken for Special Recruitment Drives.

The representation of SC/ST/OBC/Persons with Disabilities categories in the total employee strength as on
01.04.2016 is given below:

Description No. of employees
Representation of : SC 290
ST 71
OBC 453
Persons with Disabilities 50
Other categories 1004
Total strength of employees 1868

31.4. Status of implementation of posts reserved for persons with disabilities in HLL Lifecare Limited
as on 31.03.2016

No. of Post reserved for PwDs No. of Post currently held by PwDs
Group Total Blindness Hearing Locomotor  Blindness Hearing Locomotor
number or low impaired disability or or low impaired disabilty
of posts vision cerebral vision or cerebral
identified palsy palsy
A&B 563 5 6 6 0 1 12
C&D 1307 13 13 13 3 9 25

32. IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY

Your Company is implementing and complying with all the provisions of OL Act & Rules under Official Language
Policy of the Union. During the year your company conducted various activities such as Hindi Mela, Music Night,
Balasibiram, section meetings Hindi Forum meetings, Hindi Vachan programmes for creating a conducive
environment for promoting and propagating official Language in the Company. 171 employees were trained in
Refresher training programmes, OL Awareness programmes, and Computer trainings. A seminar was conducted
on ‘50th Year of HLL- Achievements & Acclamations’. 43 employees participated in the Seminar and 9 paper
presentations were made by employees in Hindi.

Hindi Fortnight Celebrations was conducted in befitting manner in Head Office and in Units. Various competitions
and training programme were organized for employees and children of employees. An Eloquence programme
was conducted on ‘the growing need for affordable healthcare solutions and the role of HLL as part of Hindi
Fortnight Celebrations. Hindi Fortnight Celebration was also extended to the students of 6 schools adopted under
CSR activities of the Company. 94 students were participated in the competitions. Also Spoken Hindi Classes,
Hindi Grammar classes are conducted for the students on monthly basis to enhance their knowledge in Hindi.
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8 Units were inspected in order to identify their position in Hindi implementation by the Head office and
inspection was carried out in HLL by Ministry of Home Affairs and Ministry of Health and Family Welfare.
Various incentives and awards were extended to the employees for doing official work in Hindi, for Writing
Articles, for passing Hindi examination with 90% marks in Hindi by the children of employees. A Rolling
Shield was instituted by Head Office for the unit which excels in the Official Language Implementation. A
meritorious citation award was instituted in the company as per the direction of Ministry of Heavy Industries
& Public Enterprises in order to commemorate the birth anniversary of Shri Sankar Dayal Singh, who was a
renowned Hindi Scholar and a Parliamentarian. The award was given to one employee by considering the
overall performances extended for Hindi implementation. The website of your Company www.lifecarehll.com
is made in bilingual and its updation is also done regularly.

Your Company is releasing 2 editions of the official Language magazine ‘Samanvaya’. Other releases of the
Company are ‘Corporate News’ the bimonthly release and ‘Moments’ monthly releases in Bilingual. ‘The
Family’ the house journal is issued in trilingual in Malayalam, Hindi and in English. Your Company received
Rajbhasha Kirthi Puraskar First prize from Government of India, Ministry of Home Affairs, New Delhi.

Your Company has also taken the charge of Town Official Language Implementation Committee (undertakings)
in Thiruvananthapuram and conducted various programmes for promoting OL in the public sector
Undertakings situated in Trivandrum. We have organized Computer training, 5 day condensed translation
training in association with Central Translation Bureau, Bangalore, Familiarise google voice typing,
Awareness programme on Official Language for the Heads of the Departments, Hindi Fortnight Celebrations
OL Seminar and awarded prizes and shields for the implementation and for doing work in Hindi. All the
programmes were conducted with the whole hearted support of member offices.

33. CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

Your company has a well-organised Corporate Communication Department which act as a convergence
media agency for the whole organization. As the world of communication has gone through tremendous
changes with new developments and innovations, the Corporate Communications Department-in addition
to the conservative PR interventions- has adopted a number of newer ways of communication interventions
with a vision to position HLL as a Global Healthcare Company that upholds highest values, for the benefit
of the global community. It has a welldeveloped in-house design platform which providescustomized creative
/ design support for all communication material emanating from the Organisation.

In order to facilitate dissemination of information and to create positive image of the organisation, your
Company has been regularly liaisoning with local publics and influence groups, supporting local and national
events, providing press releases to the media and online media, placing write-ups in top publications,
publishing corporate brochures on various activities of the Company, making and telecasting Corporate
Videos and regularly organizing press meetings to announce the developments of the Company. In addition
to releasing corporate advertisements, your Company has been regularly updating developments on Facebook
and Youtube.

Internal communications play a key role in enabling employees across the company in understating and
embracing the company’s mission, goals and strategies. Towards this objective your Company has
continuously deployed communication tools such as Monthly photo news letter, monthly bulletins, quarterly
magazine, leaflets on various activities, videos etc. to apprise the employees on the developments and
achievements and also to provide a platform for them to participate and take pride in being associated with
HLL. Open sessions with the management and employees have also been regularly organized for sharing
of information and to create a sense of belonging and ownership and to develop mutual trust.

34.HLL ACADEMY

HLL Management Academy [HMA] was registered as a Society under the Travancore cochin Literary, Scientific
and Charitable Societies Registration Act, 1955. Inauguration of HMA at the new campus at Keston Road,
Kawdiar, Tvm was done on 3rd July, 2016 by Shri. Adoor Prakash, Hon’ble Minister for Revenue & Coir, Govt.
of Kerala.

During the period H M A has carried out programs for capacity building of HLL executives and workers
besides skill development and academic programs. The major activities of the Academy during the year
under review include the following:

® Conducted 13 Management Development Programmes [MDP] covering 342 Executives out of
which 337 from HLL. There were representation from FACT, Hindustan Newsprint Ltd. and L M B
Insurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd. HMA also conducted one Management Development Programme for
KSIDC, Govt of Kerala covering 19 executives.
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® Conducted 18 Staff Development Programmes covering 460 Employees of HLL.

® Partnered with IL&FS Skill Development Corporation Limited. 98 persons undergone the course
in five batches. 18 got employment in various Hospitals.

® Conducted one International Program on Procurement Management in Healthcare Sector from
5th to 9th October 2015, at Hotel Udayasamudra, Kovalam. 35 participants, including 16 foreigners
attended the program.

e H M Afacility was extended for the comprehensive Induction Training for Management Trainees and
newly recruited HINDLAB employees.

® Conducted 12 monthly Think Tank Executive Lecture Series in 2015-16. Silver Jubilee Think Tank
Lecture was conducted on 1st March 2016 and the talk was delivered by Padma Shree Prof. (Dr)
N R Madhava Menon, Legal Educator.

® H M A has been coordinating the online PDPP course in association with World Bank with 109
candidates among which 20 have completed the exam. Post Graduate Diploma Course in Clinical
Engineering and Management (PGDCEM) and Advanced Diploma Course in Clinical Engineering
and Management (ADCEM) for graduate engineers and diploma holders are operated under the
Aegis of HMA.

35. VIGILANCE
Vigilance Department strives to ensure probity & integrity at all levels in the company by:

® Providing guidance, supervision and relevant assistance to its officials in various units/offices
spread across the country;

e Dissemination of preventive vigilance advices and system improvement directives to all its
stakeholders;

® Conducting periodic vigilance inspections, investigations/enquiries, system studies etc. to ensure
adherence to the existing rules and regulations of the company; and

e Keeping the Competent Authority appraised of Vigilance findings from time to time, to ensure
appropriate corrective actions.

Vigilance Awareness Week was observed from 26-31 October 2015. As directed by the Commission, for
inculcating the message of the ill effects of corruption on a wider basis among youth of the country, HLL
Lifecare Limited conducted interactive sessions at three colleges and schools in Trivandrum District. Shri V K
Girijanadhan Nair, Superintendent of Police (Retd), Vigilance and Anti Corruption Bureau, Trivandrum was
the eminent speaker in the programme. Shri Vinson M Paul, IPS, Director General of Police & Director,
Vigilance and Anti Corruption Bureau, Trivandrum addressed the executives of the company on 27.10.2015
in HLL's CRDC Auditorium.

36. RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company has implemented Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005, which enhances the common citizens
by providing access to information with a view to enlighten them on the accountability and transparency
practised in the Company. The Company has always endeavoured to ensure that various enabling provisions
of the RTI Act, 2005 are implemented in letter and spirit.

The number of RTI applications received and disposed off during year 2015-16 is given below:

No. of RTI applications pending as on 1st April 2015 05
No. of RTI applications received during year 2015-16 110
No. of RTI applications disposed off during year 2015-16 113
No. of RTI applications pending as on 31st March 2016 02

Apart from RTI applications, the Company also received 04 appeals against the decision of CPI1O, which too
were duly attended to and appropriately disposed off by the First Appellate Authority.

37. AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
During the year under review, your Company received the following awards and recognitions:

° HLL received UNFPA pre-qualification for female condoms and signed long term agreement for
supply of female condoms with UNFPA

° Velvet female condoms have been awarded SABS and CE marking.
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° HLL Peroorkada Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT] received second prize from Kerala State
Pollution Control Board Award 2015 in Large Scale Industry Category.

° HLL PFT bagged Frost and Sullivan India Manufacturing Excellence Award 2015.

° HLL PFT bagged National Safety Council Award for Outstanding Safety Performance from National
Safety Council.

° HLL Akkulam Factory [AFT] received Energy Conservation award from Energy Management Centre,
Govt. Of Kerala

° HLL AFT bagged safety award from Department of Factories & Boilers, Govt. Of Kerala among Medium
Scale Industries.

° HLL AFT positioned in SILVER Category for manufacturing excellence by M/s. Frost & Sullivan in IMEA
assessment.

° HLL AFT awarded third position in Productivity Contest conducted by Indian Institute of Industrial
Engineering.

38. APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to make a special mention of the valuable guidance, support and co-operation your
Company has been receiving from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare and other Ministries of Government
of India and look forward to their continued support in all future endeavours.

The Directors express their sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, the Principal
Director of Commercial Audit & Ex-officio Member of Audit Board, Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors, Secretarial
Auditors and Internal Auditors for the co-operation and support extended by them.

The Directors take this opportunity to thank the Company’s bankers, regulatory authorities, customers, vendors,
consultants, technology licensors, contractors and other business associates and trading partners for their
continued support and confidence reposed in the Company.

Your Directors also place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and commitment. The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the
Company to remain as industry leaders.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Dr. M. AYYAPPAN

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00117374

New Delhi

26th May 2016
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars

Power & Fuel

Electricity

Purchased (Units) KWH

Amount (%)

Rate /Unit (%)

Own generation

Units generated (KWH)

HSD Oil consumption (Ltr)

Units generated/ Ltr (KWHY/Ltr)

Cost /Unit %)

Through Steam Turbine Generator
Coal

LNG

Quantity (Metric Tonne)

Amount (%)

Rate /Unit (%)

Furnace Oil

Quantity (Ltr.)

Amount (%)

Rate /Unit (%)

Consumption per unit of production
Condoms

Unit (M. Pcs) — Production (Moulded)
Electricity (KWH) per M. Pcs (Standard 8418)
Furnace Oil (KL) per M. Pcs (Standard 6.19)
Coal

LNG (MT) per M.Pcs

Copper —-T

Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs)
Electricity per M. Pcs (KWH)
Mala-D/N, Saheli, Novex & Preventol
Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs)
Mala-D/N (M. Cycles)

Saheli, Novex & Preventol

Electricity consumed per million cycles of Mala-D/N

Electricity consumed per million cycles of
Saheli, Novex & Preventol
Electricity consumed (both products)-KWH

FORM A

2014-15

1,83,23,657.00
10,68,13,410.00
5.83

5,71,200.00
1,82,560.00
3.13

16.20

NA

NA

878.27
5,43,89,996.39
61,928.56

44,91,455.00
15,91,99,626.00
35.45

1,819.00
5,393.81
2.64

NA

2.55

4.87
61,622.00

41.25
38.81
16,838.00

472.00
8,99,950.00
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ANNEXURE - A

Information as per Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014 forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31t March 2016.

(See Rule 2)
2015-16

1,92,43,293.00
11,69,45,338.00

6.08

5,29,214.00
1,65,910.00
3.19

13.89

NA

NA

2,851.93

9,15,45,714.74

32,099.57

17,61,575.47

4,46,87,008.32

25.36

1,801.00
11,537.56
3.83

NA

2.32

5.95
60,913.00

44.31
10.02
11,546.00

155.00
6,67,268.00
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Blood Bags

Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs) 12.52 12.21
Electricity per bag (KWH) 0.196 0.204
Sutures

Total Quantity Produced ( Lacs Dozen) 1.75 1.91
Electricity per dozen (KWH) 5.04 4.98
Bulk Drug —Centchroman

Unit (Kg) produced 1,354.69 1,354.45
Electricity consumed (KWH) 6,99,676.00 4,91,972.00
Furnace Oil consumed (Ltr.) 1,35,934.50 1,46,470.40
Electricity per Kg (KWH) 516.48 363.23
Furnace Oil per Kg (KL) 100.34 108.14
Pregnancy Test Kits

Total Quantity Produced (M. Kit) 13.67 8.54
Electricity per Million Kit (KWH) 6,042.46 8,059.18
HSD Oil per Million Kit (Ltr.) 4,897.46 5,034.73
Female Condoms

Total Quantity Produced (Pcs) 11,00,000.00 2,17,888.00
Electricity per Pc (KWH) 0.02 0.02
Sanitary Napkins

Production (M.Pcs) 126.44 227.97
Electricity consumed (KWH) 7,13,846.00 10.48,684.00
Electricity consumed per M.Pcs 5,565.92 4,600.00

[A] CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Energy conservation measures executed at the Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

a)

are mentioned below:

Achieved an annual savings of ¥11.75 lakhs by maintaining a power factor value of 0.99.

Converted 18 nos. of HPSV/SV lamps in the PFT campus with LED lamps and achieved an annual

saving of %1 lakhs.

Energy conservation measures taken at Akkulam factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT] are

mentioned below:

Obtained Energy Management System Certification (ISO 50001).

Installed 10 nos. of Sky Lighting shades in TSDF for an investment of 4.00 lakhs resulted in an
Annual Savings of ¥ 0.62 lakhs.

Replaced 50 nos. of 40 Watts Flurescent Tube Lights with 18 Watt LED Lights with an investment of
%0.35 lakhs, resulted in an annual savings of ¥0.30 lakhs.

Installed 3 nos. of 3 Way Control Valves in Chilled Water Line in Air Handling Units for an investment
of ¥ 0.90 lakhs. Annual savings 30.27 lakhs.

Energy conservation measures implemented by HLL Kanagala factory, Belgaum [KFB] are
mentioned below:

Replaced reciprocating compressor by screw compressor of 3 nos. (chiller 2 & air 1).
Commissioned variable frequency drive for SNP machine of 4 nos. to save 34.2 lakhs per annum.

Replaced 229 conventional lamps by LED lamps to save ¥3.0 lakhs per annum for an investment of
¥ 3.56 lakhs

Commissioned 20 no. of solar street lights to save T0.51 lakhs per annum. Investment — 36.00
lakhs

Energy conservation measures taken at Kakkanad factory, Cochin [KFC] are mentioned below.

The unit has saved 17500 kWH of electricity owing to the 12 kWP solar power plant installed in January
2015.
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FORMB
(See Rule 2)

[B] TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION

B.1.

B.2.

B.3.

B.4.

[C]
C.l.

Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

In-house development of two nos. of two lane square packing machine with advanced touch screen
facility with an investment of ¥12 lakhs for better process control and productivity improvement.
Annual savings %12 lakhs.

In-house conversion of four nos. of three line Squeeze packing machine to three lane square packing
machine with an investment of ¥16 lakhs for better productivity. Annual savings 324 lakhs.

Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT]

Introduction of Autologous Blood Bags for Haemodilution. Autologous bags are sterile blood bag
systems containing Acid Citrate Dextrose (ACD) I.P solution, used for collection, storage and
transfusion of autologous blood.

Introduction of HINBOND Polyester suture variant.
Introduction of Gynec kits for C- Section.
Kanagala Factory, Belgaum [KFB]

Installed and commissioning of roof top glind interactive, 25 KW Solar Power Plant with an investment
%16.5 lakhs, resulted in Annual savings of 32.25 lakhs. Power generated — 10103 units

Installation of direct drive mechanism to dehydrator for an investment 31.2 lakhs.

Installation & commissioning of Electrical heat exchanger in place of Steam heat exchanger in
vulcanizing section.

Kakkanad factory, Cochin [KFC]

Installed the electronic pihole testing machine fabricated by HLL's Central Engineering Division
with a production capacity of 110 mpcs/year at a cost of ¥75 lakhs. Imported machinery of equivalent
capacity cost ¥1.81 Cr. Achieved saving of ¥1.06 Cr. due to indegenous development of the machin-
ery.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D) ACTIVITIES
Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

Successfully developed formulation with waxmul (refined wax) for condoms which substantially
reduces defects like inside sticking & wrinkle. Also improves the stripping easiness of the condoms
from glass formers.

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum [KFB]

Flucanazole tablet development is done and its stability study is in progress.

Levonorgestral 1.5mg tablet is developed and its dossier is submitted to WHO from Unipill plant
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

Achieved an annual generation of 35.309 units in 2015-16 of electricity from 25kWp solar power
plant.

Established the use of laminates without aluminium foil for condom packing.
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iii. Reuse of additional volume of 30000 Klltrs of treated water (ETP) in 2015-16 for cleaning, washing &
gardening purpose.

V. Introduced poly electrolyte dosing in the mixing channel of ETP leading to reduction in ETP sludge
volume by 50%.

V. Introduced composting system using dried leafs; ETP sludge and biogas slurry. The test report
establishes the fertilizer nature of the compost made.

D.2. Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT]

i Installed 10 nos. of Sky Lighting Shades (Polycarbonate Double Layered UV Resistant Prismatic
Type Sky Shades) in TSDF area for tapping sunlight in the day time. Existing 25 nos of 150 Watts
HPSV Lamps were switched off.

D.3. Kakkanad factory, Cochin [KFC]

i The lighting system in the renovated electronic testing area was changed from CFL to LED. 23kWH
is saved on daily basis. 0.5 lakhs is saved per year.

[E] Foreign exchange earnings & outgo

Particulars (2014-15) (2015-16)
Previous year Tin lakhs Current year T in lakhs

Earnings 14658.01 12827.80

Outgo 14553.01 15904.38
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ANNEXURE- B
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES OF THE COMPANY

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s ethos and policy
and the Company has been pursuing this on a sustained basis.The Company has framed and adopted a
Policy on CSR & Sustainability to align its philosophy to initiate measures and pursue socially useful
programmes with the objectives and activities of CSR envisaged and incorporated in the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made there under and the policy directions issued by the Government from time to time.
The Policy on CSR & Sustainability formulated in 2013 was subsequently revised to align with the newly
introduced provisions for Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VIl of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013.

During the year, the Company had spent ¥76.18 lakhs against 2% of average net profit of ¥74.36 lakhs
towards CSR and Sustainable Development. Specific activities were undertaken in accordance with the MoU
entered into with the Government.

Annual report on CSR activities of the company for the year 2015-16

1. Brief outline of the Company’s Company continued to undertake CSR works during

the CSR Policy, projects and programs year under review. CSR Policy:

proposed to be undertaken and a reference

to the web-link to CSR Policy and projects

or programs.

a) Establishing a guideline for compliance with the

provisions of Regulations to dedicate a percentage
of company's profits for social projects.

b) Ensuring the implementation of CSR initiatives in
letter and spirit through appropriate procedures and
reporting.

c) Creating opportunities for employees to participate
in socially responsible initiatives.

d) Demonstrate commitment to the common good
through responsible business practices and good
governance.

e) Engender a sense of empathy and equity among
employees of HLL to motivate them to give back to
the society.

2  Composition of CSR Committee. Dr Aarti Vij, Chairperson
Shri. K.Mohandas, Member
Shri R.P.Khandelwal, Member
Dr K.R.S.Krishnan, Member
Dr. Babu Thomas, Member

3 Average Net Profit of the Company for T lakh
last three Financial year. 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 Average Net Profit
3780.87 3621.08 3752.79 3,718.25
4  Proposed CSR Expenditure (2% of the
amount as in item 3 above) 3 74.36 lakh
5 Details of the CSR spent during the i) Total amount to be spent for the
Financial Year FY 2015-16: ¥74.36 lakhs

ii) Amount, unspent, if any: NIL
iii) Manner in which the amount was spent during the
year is provided below.
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A.CSRINITIATIVES:
A (i) General Health

Under the CSR initiative, the Company has adopted 3 villages - Karakulam in Thiruvananthapuram, Kanagala
in Belgaum since 2012-13 and a tribal village from Wayanad District viz Puzhuthana since 2013-14. Baseline
surveys were conducted in these villages to identify their needs and priorities and specific action plans were
prepared to address their felt needs and action plans were prepared for implementation over a period of 3
years. Area specific approaches were taken for each village, but the general focus is on health, sanitation
and educational sectors. Specific objectives of the programme are:

° To strengthen public health and sanitation in the village

° To improve adolescent health

° To strengthen educational institutions and

° To facilitate early detection and management of chronic illnesses

Based on these, several programmes were planned and implemented in year 2015-16, as detailed below:
A (ii) Interventions in the Health sector

° Anemia screening and Management among adolescent girls and pregnant and lactating women
° Campaigns on vector borne diseases, sanitation and waste management

° Early detection of breast and cervical cancer

° General medical camps for the elderly and school children

° Campaign for early detection of diabetics through screening of blood sugar

A (iii) Interventions for Adolescent Health

° Anemia screening for the adolescent girls

° Training on menstrual hygiene and supply of sanitary napkin.

° Life skill education programs

A (iv) Interventions in the Education sector

° Infrastructure development for schools by providing roofing, flooring and construction of Toilets.
° Counseling services for behavioral intervention

° Orientation for Teachers & Parents for stress Management of adolescent children

A (v) Developing sustainable development models

° Bore well and water storage facility in the drought stricken areas of Kanagala village, Belgaum.
° Providing Rain water harvesting units to selected institutions in the adopted villages

° Methods for solid liquid waste management and vector borne diseases

For the implementation of the various programmes, HLL creates a common platform for action involving all
stakeholders viz Gramapanchayats, Govt. and aided Schools, Primary Health Centre, ICDS and other line
departments. Supports on Specialist institutions like the Regional Cancer Centre, District Medical Office,
National Health Mission, and Units of National Service Scheme in nearby colleges, etc were also mobilized,
based on the requirements. Appropriate IEC materials/media are used to supplement the activities.

A (vi) HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society

The Society is registered with the Objective of sponsoring students belonging to the BPL category to pursue
professional studies and also to support the health care of retired employees. Accordingly two schemes were
launched by the society; one for sponsoring students and the other for giving financial support to the retired
employees of the company for availing treatment for critical illness.
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Thirty students were selected from Trivandrum District and Kanagala District, being the two districts where
the two major manufacturing units of the company are located and were distributed scholarship as detailed
below.

Course No. of students Amount
per year (per student, per year)

MBBS 5 30,000/-
Engineering 5 20,000/-
B.Pharm 5) 20,000/-
Diploma 5 10,000/-
Nursing 5 10,000/-
[Tl ® 5,000/-

The funds for the society is pooled through the monthly individual contribution of all the employees and lump sum
annual contribution of 20 lakhs by the company from the CSR fund.

In the year 2015-16, 33 students pursuing different professional courses were selected for receiving the
sponsorship. Including the students selected last year, presently there are 58 students who are being sponsored
by HLL.

A (vii) My City Project — Kowdiar ward, Thiruvananthapuram

Solid waste management has become one of the global challenges of today in maintaining a healthy environment.
In this context HLL Lifecare Ltd. formulated ‘My City Project’ in association with Foundation for Restoration
of National Values (FRNV). The pilot project is implemented in the Kowdiar ward of Trivandrum Corporation in
association with Govt. of Kerala, Thiruvananthapuram Municipal Corporation, Suchitwa Mission, Residents
Associations in the area and other like-minded organizations.

Under the project an eco-friendly and cost effective solid waste management system jointly by Government,
Corporation, NGOs and the residents of the ward is implemented with focus on processing waste at source
and collection of plastic and centralized processing . As part of the project, beautification of the project area
by ensuring cleanliness setting up mechanisms for management of bio-degradable and plastic waste is
also undertaken.

The total budget and utilization of the funds for CSR is as under.

PAKALVEEDU PROJECT- For rehabilitation of the cured patients of the Mental Hospital, Trivandrum. The recovered
patients are brought from their residences and are engaged in condom peeling job and are paid remuneration for
the same. On an average 20 people are engaged on a daily basis and they earn ¥3500/- to
¥3700/- per month.

SPONSORING ORPHANS AT SAIGRAMAM - Five inmates of the orphanage at SAIGRAMAM in Trivandrum are
sponsored by the company by paying ¥15000/- per head annually.

B. SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

HLL Kanagala Factory, Belgam [HLL — KFB] has installed 25Kw Solar Power plant as part of the sustainability
development.

C. HINDUSTAN LATEX FAMILY PLANNING PROMOTION TRUST (HLFPPT), a not-for-profit professional
health service organization set up by HLL Lifecare Ltd, carried out projects under the following thematic
areas:

i RMNCH+A

ii. HIV/AIDS Prevention, Care & Support

iii. Health System Strengthening

iv.  Primary Healthcare through CSR initiatives
V. Livelihood Generation

vi.  Strategic Partnerships
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HLFPPT has been rendering support in implementation of Reproductive and Child Health, HIV and AIDS
Prevention, Care and Support Programmes in partnership with the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India, several State Governments and International Development Agencies.

With an active presence across 21 States/UTs and through 35 programmes, HLFPPT has been working on
the entire spectrum of RMNCH+A (Reproductive, Maternal, Newborn, Child & Adolescent Healthcare) and HIV
Prevention & Control. It has been an active contributor towards the goals of the National Health Mission,
NACP, FP2020, MDGs and post-2015 SDGs, and a chosen collaborator for implementation of programmes
for the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India, State Government bodies, National & Global
Development Agencies, top PSUs and corporate sector. In the last 24 years, HLFPPT has emerged as a
pioneer in Social Marketing & Social Franchising and gradually evolved technical expertise on thematic areas
of its work.

Major achievements during the year are summarized below:
1. RMNCH+A (Reproductive, Maternal, Newborn, Child & Adolescent Healthcare)

A.  Merrygold Health Network (MGHN) - India’s largest Social Franchising Network in health sector with
509 hospitals & clinics spread across 152 districts in 6 States

MGHN is a network of social franchisee hospitals & clinics based on Public Private Partnership (PPP)
model that offers quality MCH and Family Planning (FP) Services at affordable rates (50-60% lower than
market price). It's a three-tier network, comprising L1 Hospitals (equipped with MCH facilities including
Emergency Obstetric Care & Family Planning services), L2 Hospitals/Clinics (with MBBS or AYUSH
doctors at sub-divisional level), and Merrytarang Members or L3 (community health volunteers who
provide elementary MCH information to people and eventually link them with L1 and L2).

HLFPPT has instituted the network in six States (Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan, Bihar, Odisha, Andhra
Pradesh and Telangana). During FY 2015-16, MGHN has facilitated 197,478 Antenatal Care (ANC)
Services, 60,739 Institutional Deliveries, 41,013 IUCD Placements and 25,883 Sterilisations through
a network of 509 Health Facilities & 15,646 Merrytarang Members across 152 districts in the six States.

Following is a brief note on State-wise performance of MGHN:

i. Uttar Pradesh: MGHN has been operational in UP since 2007 with funding support from State
Innovations in Family Planning Services Project Agency (SIFPSA) through National Health Mission.
Currently, it is established across 52 districts in the state with 327 franchisees (147 L1s & 180 L2s) and
11,146 Merrytarang members. During FY 2015-16, MGHN-UP has facilitated 28,130 Institutional Deliveries
(17,665 normal deliveries and 10,465 c-secs), 101,245 ANC Services, 29,165 IUCD Insertions (including
1,842 PPIUCD), 7432 Sterilisations (Male and Female) and 93,980 Family Planning Counselling
services. Moreover, it has undertaken several Behaviour Change Communication activities to elicit a
lasting impact on health seeking behaviour of community members. These include 169 Godbharai
(babyshower) ceremonies involving 3,228 expecting mothers, 297 Health Camps involving 7,123
pregnant women and 554 Family Planning Camps involving 7,608 Clients.

ii. Rajasthan: MGHN has been operational in Rajasthan since 2013 with support from Merck for Mothers.
In FY 2015-16, it has spread across 24 districts with 66 franchisees (26 L1 & 40 L2) and 2,100 Merrytarang
members. During the financial year it has enabled 30,943 Institutional Deliveries, 89,055 ANC services,
38,233 Postnatal Care (PNC), 3105 IUCD Insertions and 3946 Sterilisations. Moreover, it has reached
out to 9,077 expectant mothers through Godbharai Ceremonies and Health Camps and 12472
community members through Community Meetings.

iii. Bihar (Ujjwal Merrygold): Rolled out in 2013 with support from DFID (Department for International
Development, UK), Ujjwal Merrygold has essentially focussed on FP services. It is present across all
38 districts through 60 franchisees (5 L1 & 55 L2) and 1,080 Ujjwal Saathis. In FY 2015-16, it has
achieved 409,797 couple-years of protection (CYP) and benefitted 1,006,266 clients. Moreover, it has
provided 6,696 IUCD Insertions, 9,449 Sterilisations and 5,669 Injectable, besides 1,319 ANC Services
and 645 Institutional Deliveries.

iv.  Odisha (Ujjwal Merrygold): Operational since 2013 with support from DFID, Ujjwal Merrygold is present
across all 30 districts through 40 franchisees (9 L1 & 31 L2) and 760 Ujjwal Saathis. In FY 2015-186, it
has achieved 172,613 couple-years of protection (CYP) and benefitted 501,261 clients. Moreover, it has
facilitated 5,037 Sterilisations, 2,047 IUCD Insertions, 2,957 Injectable, 1634 ANC Services and 585
Institutional Deliveries.
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Andhra Pradesh & Telangana: Instituted in 2014 on self-sustainable mode, MGHN in AP & Telangana
has spread to spread across 9 districts with 16 franchisees (11 L1 & 5 L2) and 529 Merrytarang
members. In 2015-16, it has facilitated 4225 ANC Services and 436 Institutional Deliveries.

Social Marketing Programme

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has conducted social marketing of condoms in nine States (Uttar Pradesh,
Uttarakhand, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, Delhi, Odisha, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana) as a
means of protection against HIV/AIDS & other STDs, promotion of family planning and prevention of
unwanted pregnancies. During the year, it has successfully sold more than 100.5 million condoms
through social marketing across the nine States.

HLFPPT has also promoted Sanitary Napkin Vending Machine, Emergency Contraceptive Pill (Tatkal-72),
IUCD (MCare), Sanitary Napkin (Sakhi, Happy Days), Pregnancy Test Card (P-Test), Contraceptive Injection
(Safe-3), Oral Rehydration Salt (Jal Jeevan) and Zinc Sulphate through social marketing.

Capacity Building of HSPs on IUCD and Pregnancy Test Card

In order to contribute towards India’'s FP2020 commitment of training 200,000 health workers on 1UDs,
HLFPPT has initiated “Capacity Building of Health Service Providers (HSPs) on IUCD and Pregnancy
Test Card”. This large-scale, multi-state programme is being implemented under the guidance of the
Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Gol, with financial support from State Health Missions, and in
coordination with the State Institute of Health & Family Welfare since 2012. So far it has been implemented
in 12 states. It aims at providing skill-based training on IUCD insertions to HSPs (ANMs, LHVs, Staff
Nurses & Medical Officers) posted at Sub Centres, Primary Health Centres and Community Health
Centres.

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has implemented the programme in six States (Rajasthan, Chhattisgarh, Uttar
Pradesh, Jharkhand, Himachal Pradesh and Madhya Pradesh) through varied implementation phases. It
has trained 5,689 HSPs, facilitated 110,829 IUCD insertions and covered 3,958 health facilities.

Amrit Clinics — Chain of comprehensive reproductive clinics that offer informed choice on globally-adopted
Family Planning methods

ShriJ P Nadda, Minister of Health and Family Welfare, Government of India, has launched Amrit Clinic at the
National Family Planning Summit in New Delhi. HLFPPT has set up first clinic in Lucknow, UP, and shall
operationalise Amrit Clinics pan-India through Social Franchising.

Besides, HLFPPT has instituted a network of Family Planning Clinics based on Social Franchising Model
in Bihar and Odisha. Rolled out in 2013 with support from DFID, these clinics essentially provide
comprehensive FP solutions, including counseling on all methods available, and facilitate IUCD
placements, injectables and sterilisation (male and female) services. In FY 2015-16, the network has
expanded to 205 clinics in both the states (157 in Bihar and 48 in Odisha).

Family Planning Public Private Engagement Agency (FPPPEA)

HLFPPT has partnered with National Health Mission-UP for implemetation of FPPPEA that aims to promote
involvement of the private sector in provision of Family Planning products & services.

Expand Access & Quality to Broaden Method Choice in UP

It aims to train and accredit health facilities in UP on Family Planning service. Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation
is the Funding Partner and PSl is the Implementing partner for this project.

HIV/AIDS Prevention, Care & Support
Technical Support Units

HLFPPT has continued to provide Technical Assistance to State AIDS Control Society (SACS) in Andhra
Pradesh, Telengana, Madhya Pradesh & Chhattisgarh through Technical Support Units (TSUS). In FY
2015-16, the TSUs have together reached out to 1.6 million vulnerable populations, facilitated 75
million condom distributions and 430,388 HIV testing through 267 targeted interventions across the
four states.
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Project Vihaan

Project Vihaan aims at improving the survival and quality of life of people living with HIV/AIDS (PLHIV),
by providing cost-effective treatment, care and support to them through Civil Society Interventions and
establishment of Care and Support Centres (CSCs).India HIV/AIDS Alliance, as Principal Recipient of
Round 4, RCC Phase Il Grant of GFATM, has partnered with HLFPPT as Sub Recipient for implementing
Vihaan in Punjab, Chhattisgarh, Haryana, Chandigarh& Rajasthan. In FY 2015-16, it has reached out
to 64,077 PLHIV through registrations at 30 CSCs, provided counseling to 14,518 PLHIV, linked 8,078
PLHIV with government social welfare scheme, and conducted TB screening for 6,007 PLHIV. Moreover,
it has brought 5,164 Lost to Follow-up (LFU) back to treatment.

Improving Access to Public Sector PPTCT Services in India (IAPSI)

To accelerate uptake of PPTCT (Prevention of Parent to Child Transmission) services among pregnant
women in most vulnerable 58 districts of Bihar, Odisha and Chhattisgarh, HLFPPT (as Sub Recipient)
has partnered with Plan India as Principal Recipient of a grant by Global Fund to roll out IAPSI (AHANA)
programme in October 2015. With the strategies of Capacity Building, Advocacy and Coordination,
HLFPPT is enhancing skills of peripheral health workers and strengthening response at community
level for PPTCT Services.

In its inception year, the programme has reached out to 619762 expecting mothers and motivated
109,854 of them to undergo HIV testing. It has also brought 113 HIV Positive mothers under care,
linking them with PPTCT & ART centres and conducting follow-ups with their children. Moreover, it has
successfully trained 1,623 heath providers in PPTCT & HIV testing, and developed District Resource
Teams in 36 districts.

Voluntary Blood Donation Programme

HLFPPT has continued promotion of voluntary blood donation in Kerala, with support of KSBTC (Kerala
State Blood Transfusion Council), KSACS and State Blood Banks and ensured collection of 46,625
blood units through 1052 camps.

Health System Strengthening
Skill Development Programme

To address dearth of skilled human resources in the healthcare sector, HLFPPT has initiated Skill
Development Programme in FY 2015-16. It aims at training students in various health-related skills
including: General Duty Assistant (GDA), Home Health Aide (HHA), Basic Lab Technician, OT Assistant,
Diabetes Educator and Dialysis Assistant.

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has successfully trained 1,860 students as GDA and HHA in Andhra Pradesh,
Bihar, Odisha and Uttar Pradesh. During this period, HLFPPT has developed two Model Skill Centres
in Uttar Pradesh, namely at Kapurthala (Lucknow) and Panki (Kanpur), and has got affiliation from
Health Sector Skill Council (HSSC). It has contributed to Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana (PMKVY)
by the Ministry of Skill Development and Entrepreneurship, Govt of India, and has also been empanelled
with the Ministry of Rural Development, UP Skill Development Mission, Kerala’s National Urban
Livelihood Mission (NULM) and AP Skill Development Corporation.

Primary Healthcare through CSR initiatives

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has expanded its CSR portfolio from 7 to 12 companies, including Apollo
Tyres, Ostro Renewables, AkzoNobel, ACC and IDFC Bank, and aligned with companies in Oil & Gas,
Steel, Cement, Tyres, Paint, Real Estate, Renewable Energy and Banking sectors. It has also empanelled
with Vedanta Ltd and NTPC. During the reporting year, CSR team has approached more than 250
companies, including 40 PSUs and nationalised banks.

Further, the CSR team has established network with major trade associations, including CII,
ASSOCHAM, PHD Chambers, FICCI, etc. It has partnered with Cll to organise “Cll CSR Conference
2015” in Lucknow and with PHD Chamber to organise “4th Global Summit on Corporate Social
Responsibility” in New Delhi. It has also leveraged various other allied sectoral platforms for networking,
such as HR. It has participated in two mega HR conclaves — TechHR Summit and 32nd HR Conclave
by HT in Gurgaon.
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CSR Team has won recognition in FY 2015-16 for its programmes. These include:

MMU Programme in Dantewada has won Flame Awards Asia 2016 (Silver) under ‘Education and Awareness
imitative programme for rural patient & practitioners’

MMU Jaisalmer has received Certificate of Excellence from District Legal Services Authority, Jaisalmer, for
Outstanding Performance and Lasting Contribution in Public Welfare Camps

During the reporting year, CSR team has implemented the following programmes:

A

w e

O

mm o e

Mobile Medical Unit

MMUs take healthcare services to the underserved communities in far-flung, remote and inaccessible regions
In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has operated 11 MMUs in 7 states (in alliance with govt agencies in 2 states, and
with corporate as CSR partner in 5 states):

Kerala: 3 districts with support from the Department of Scheduled Caste Development, Govt of Kerala

Uttarakhand: Rudraprayag and Udham Singh Nagar districts with support from Uttarakhand Health & Family
Welfare Society

Rajasthan: Jaisalmer district with support from Suzlon Foundation

Chhattisgarh: Dantewada and Sukma districts with support from Essar Group Foundation
Odisha: Malkangiri district with support from Essar Group Foundation

West Bengal: Durgapur district (23 villages) with support from Essar Oil & Gas

UP: Noida (3 villages and 3 slum clusters) with support from DLF Foundation

Community Health Initiative

With HLL Lifecare Ltd in Kerala and Karnataka

Project Arogya with Cairn India in Surat district, Gujarat

Project Care with Ostro Renewables Private Limited in Jaisalmer district (3 villages), Rajasthan
Merrysilver Clinic

with DLF Foundation in Gurgaon (four Villages)

with Akzo Nobel India Ltd in Bengaluru, Karnataka

Anganwadi Centre Improvement Project “Nanhe Kadam” with Cairn India in Surat district, Gujarat
Anaemia Control Project with Apollo Tyres Foundation in Kerala

Apollo Tyres Healthcare Centre with Apollo Tyres Foundation in Yeswanthpur, Bengaluru, to improve health
status of Truckers and allied population in and around transport hub.

School & AWC-led Community Development Project with IDFC Foundation in Hoshangabad district, Madhya
Pradesh

Population Stabilisation Project with Jindal Steel and Power Ltd in Delhi-NCR
Livelihood Generation
Life Skills Education & Career Guidance

HLFPPT has provided Life Skills Education to 1,218 vulnerable adolescents in Kerala in association with
KSACS, KSSM (Kerala Social Security Mission), HLL Lifecare Ltd, and other partners.

Employability Skill Development Programme

HLFPPT has initiated this programme in January 2016 for educated, unemployed fisher women in three
districts of Kerala (Thiruvananthapuram, Kollam and Kasaragod). The project is being funded by Society for
Assistance to Fisher women (SAF), Department of Fisheries, Govt of Kerala. It has trained more than 90
women during the reporting period.

Annual Report 2015-2016
73



BRI AEiert

< 99 2015-16 9 Ta vl U% U1 41 1 1 $9d J= Uichilordl &l f[IWIR, ST 31 & Uiehiferal &1
fafaeiaxor iR sd Afed AMiNTG AUR dTsal & fJerT & TRT eI aeer) o 21 Rafér, af &
SR, AR [THRT S -1 59 U9 U9 U, 1S W S TaEd, g U9 T 37s ©f, g U U Ul U, Tdigd i,
At va wH o, fasa e e onfe afed v faer w9l veifiaieik 4t o < ong, € vdl Uw, o1
S U I, qaR Rpfe, st e, Ararei @ fou #d affe v W U 3R BIeseEl bl 51 ddstal
IR iR faeR fewfrll uqa fbg €1 g9 rfaRem, dienfiest safmi & e o 7ed gu, va v Uh O
@ & 7 e &3 H Wi ®1 4R 95 & forg 35 A< (S eI+, g wF) giodied @Ry A
(aTf¥FTEH, 3 TH)& A1 TaTaR ey o SR 3@ 2

TP gd] AT & Fhd P ©T H, HRd & AT fAqu € gRT U9 Td U6 O @ <1 & 1 § o1 1 ‘2016
FIgH oftexRM * e farar T |

faxtry g 2015-16 & SR & 317 ISt # omfiret € -

Tege iR - va vdt U O f € 5 Uel STeldR H STEdl UKl BR & gRT g Rifd - gwief (4 gig
JIAIEE - W U R WIS S o1 81 g9$ Borawy I8 GRIe faaver aRremr ok gRar s
IRATST BT gl @l 3R (Y g 31 w@ae fifd & Ffdre<or S e 21

g e :

IO Qd GBI TR FHIETH] b [T U TH - U & §RT UISdc &3 H Uiaror 2016 1 Held SRR
& IRAR RIS R RIS G &l UIReR IR & oy g forar |

T U R T R § 0 R g Afed & Aduifie Arg T W @R erd 2015 & U9d 749 &
forg g foram |

Ty RYIE 2015-2016
74



Strategic Partnerships

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has pursued Strategic Partnerships through expansion of its grant portfolio,
diversification of donors’ portfolio, and scale-up of its proven social business models. During the
reporting year, Business Development team has submitted 51 technical proposals and concept notes
to significant development support agencies including States NHM, IPE Global, USAID, UNFPA, Global
Fund, CHMI, World Food Programme, etc, and to leading CSR Foundations such as CITI, DLF, IDFC,
Malabar Cement, Apollo Tyres, Merck for Mothers, etc. Moreover, keeping pace with technology
advancements, HLFPPT has also pursued innovative alliances with World Readers (California, US),
Institute of Reproductive Health (Washington, US) to leverage the power of technology in development
sector.

As a mark of its increasing recognition, HLFPPT CEO has been conferred 2016 Flame Leadership by
Rural Marketing Association of India.

Other achievements during FY 2015-16 include:

Global Giving: HLFPPT has won a permanent slot on Global Giving — charity fundraising website —
through qualifying in an open challenge. Consequently, it has utilised the crowdfunding platform of
Global Giving to raise funds for Safe Delivery Project & Access to Family Planning Project.

Abstracts Selected:

Abstract on “Engaging Pvt. Sector through SM-SF for quality and affordable health solutions” has been
selected for poster presentation at International Conference on Family Planning 2016 in Indonesia.

Paper on “What has not worked in MCH” selected for panel discussion at Global Maternal Newborn
Health Conference 2015 in Mexico.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

Your Company is renowned for exemplary governance standards since inception and continues to devote its
emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. Company is committed to adhere to the ethical
values and thereby ensures fairness to all stakeholders including customers, employees, investors and society
at large. The basic objective of Corporate Governance policies adopted by the Company is to attain the
highest levels of transparency, accountability and integrity. This objective extends not merely to complying
with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises, but also to go beyond them by putting in place procedures and systems, which are in
accordance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. The Company has been methodically following
the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises and consistently scoring
‘Excellent’ grading.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has made the majority of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 effective
from 15t April, 2014. The new Act is a positive step towards strengthening corporate governance regime in the
country. Your Company is already in substantial compliance with most of the governance requirements provided
under the new law.

The Company’s Corporate Governance policies and practices focus on the following principles:

1. To recognize the respective roles & responsibilities of the Board and management.

2 To achieve the highest degree of transparency by maintaining a high degree of disclosure levels.
3 To ensure and maintain high ethical standards in its functioning.

4.  To ensure a sound system of risk management and internal controls.
5

To ensure that employees of the Company subscribe to the corporate values and apply them toir their
conduct.

6. To ensure that the decision making process is fair and transparent.

7. To ensure that the Company follows globally recognized corporate governance practices.

A brief description of the corporate governance practices followed in your Company is given below.
1. Size and Composition of Board:

The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience and
enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. Your
Company, being a Government Undertaking, the appointment/nomination of all the Directors is done by the
President of India, through the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. The Board has an appropriate mix of
executive and non-executive Directors. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that the number
of Directors shall not be less than three (3) and not more than ten (10).

The present strength of Board of Directors of the Company is eight (8) comprising
- two (2) official Directors representing the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India
- two (2) Independent Directors and

- four (4) Functional Directors namely Chairman & Managing Director, Director (Finance), Director (Technical
&Operation) and Director (Marketing).

Among the eight (8) directors there are three (3) women directors comprising two Govt. Nominee Directors and
one Independent Director on the Board. The composition of the Board is in line with the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India.

The Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2016 is given below. None of the Directors are
member of more than 10 Board level Committees of public companies in which they are Directors nor holds
chairmanship in more than five such committees.
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Sl. Name of the Director
No.
1 Dr. M. Ayyappan
2 Smt. Vijaya Srivastava
3 Smt. Dharitri Panda
4 Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor
5 Dr. Aarti Vij
6 Shri. R.P.Khandelwal
7 Dr. K.R.S Krishnan
8 Dr. BabuThomas

The Board of Directors plays a primary role in ensuring good governance, smooth functioning of the Company.
The Board'’s role, functions, responsibility and accountability are clearly defined.The Board acts with autonomy
and independence in exercising its strategic supervision, discharging its fiduciary responsibilities and ensuring
that the management observes the highest standards of ethics, transparency and disclosure. Every member
of the Board, including the Non-Executive Directors, has full access to any information related to the Company.

2. Meeting and Attendance

The notice and Agenda notes of the Meetings are circulated to the Directors as far as possible well in advance.
During the financial year under review, six Board meetings were held on 14" May 2015, 10" July 2015, 28™

Category of Director

Chairman and
Managing Director

Government Nominee
Director

Government Nominee
Director

Non Official Part time
Director

Non Official Part time
Director

Director (Finance)

Director (Technical &
Operations)

Director (Marketing)

No.of No.of membership/
Other Chairmanship
Director-ship of Board
held Committee
in other companies
5 Nil
3 Nil
1 Nil
5 5
2 1
4 4
Nil Nil
2 2

September 2015, 14" December 2015, 23 February 2016 and 28" March 2016.

Information of attendance at the board meetings and the last annual general meeting is given below.

Name of the N, I_30ard
(¢ .
the tenure Meetings

Dr. M. Ayyappan 6 6
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava 6 5
Smt. Dharitri Panda 6 6
Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor 6 6
Dr. Aarti Vij 6 3
Shri. K. Mohandas 4 3
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal 6 6
Dr. K.R.S Krishnan 6 4
Dr. Babu Thomas 6 5
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Attendance of meeting during 2015-16

Last AGM

NA
No
No
No
Yes
NA
Yes
NA

Yes
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3. Remuneration of Directors

Ministry of Health & Family Welfare (MoHFW), Government of India appoints Chairman & Managing Director and
the other Functional Directors. The remuneration and terms and conditions of their directorship are decided by
Department of Public Enterprises. The Chairman & Managing Director and the Functional Directors are appointed
for a period of five years or till the date of their superannuation or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

Non-official part-time Independent Directors are also appointed by the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India for a period of three years and are paid a sitting fee of ¥10,000/- for attending each meeting
of the Board and the Board appointed Sub Committees.

4. Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, which have come into force from 1st April, 2014 the Board of
directors has appointed the following Directors/Executives as the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company
on their existing terms & conditions of appointment, including remuneration:

1. Dr. M. Ayyappan - Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shri R.P.Khandelwal - Director (Finance)

3. Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan - Director (Technical & Operation)

4. Dr. Babu Thomas - Director (Marketing)

5. ShriR. Ganesan - Chief Financial Officer & Sr. Vice-President (Finance)
6. ShriP. Sreekumar - Company Secretary & Sr.Vice-President (HR)

5. COMPANY POLICIES
5.1 Policy on dealing with Related Party transactions:

The Company strictly follows all relevant provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 on dealing with Related Party transactions.

5.2 Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

HLL being a Government Company, the power to appoint Directors and to fix their remuneration vests with
Government of India. The Company is governed under DPE Guidelines regarding the Remuneration Policies of
Directors. The Company had complied with the relevant guidelines prescribed by the Department of Public
Enterprises in this regard.

6. BOARD CHARTER

As Trustees of the Company, the Board ensures that the Company has clear goals and policies for achievement
which are in alignment with the Vision and Mission of the company. The Board provides strategic directions,
reviews corporate performance, authorizes and monitors strategic decisions, ensures regulatory compliances
and safeguards interest of stakeholders. The Board of Directors adhere to the Board Charter adopted by the
Board of Directors, which clearly sets out the role, structure, responsibilities and operation of Company’s Board of
Directors and its delegation of authority.

7. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

The Board of Directors of your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Board Members and
Senior Management of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct during the year 2015-16. A declaration to this effect signed by the Chairman
& Managing Director forms part of this report.

Annual Report 2015-2016
81



TIUATE ATSHHIAR fAHCS BT JUrERy &l
fawg : ameReT |iear iR smeRor i & @rer srguTed

# UIGERT IV R § fh 9 Hed Hawd iR aRs yay S1fiie! 7 Faerd dee gRT 9T Y fTervT i
& G U BT FHT [T & |
S1.qH. 3
S REREERREN Y
26 7S . 2016
fereaagza
8. wd el @t Jo&
e QR 1 HU P TP AGART & T, BRI 3R DU gRT folg ST ¥8/dRaifad U ggall W) i
w9 ¥ e fHy o £
9. WheRaa wd
FHETE 9§ & SRM F5 AWHR 1 (50d Fed ol 966 & FedqUl Tggell W AHcRIT ol (TH vd -1) 3R
AT 6% WX AheRTA AMDI (TH UH-2) BT gHIa fear| 3 AM® HaSE 1 Jalrs, 2015 & YHG A A1) &
T | HYA AR 2013 & HTaei & IR HU §RT S AT BT AT AR § | TEJdR S8l Pl o]
T, M@ BT 7 ST ATDT BT STUTA [ B 1 T O -1 3R v 9 -2 g s el o do@, Afafal @ Joa@,
AT I 3R 39 ST 3= HHcAl & AT 3R Farels == & o Rigidi & fHaiRd o= & |
10. Wsa ) ARt
Hedl Bt AT 3o TR wReT 3§ Feayel i Frh € iR fafke el w e dfad o= ofR g
et Bt iR g Fofa oF & fog 1fed @ T 81 o 1T aeR & Wi & w9 H, bl @l it
ars & SMyanRe THET & e ST B Sl § R Tl @1 Frgfh vd daw @1 1l o1 fea /Al o
T e oo gRT1 ol S 8 1 S1a ) afawd s &1, i fafds Arell ) s & forg fafire fawiRer «ff
<t €1 afafral & | fewfort, RamiRel ok Fofa, gemmed a1 srgAie & fog dea & et 39 S 2 |
FU T 37 TR ASA-wR W wnfia @t €, ae:
1. craralen |fdfy
2. e AR wiRsife |
3. BIURe AMITe fSTRERT ok Taa e |y
4. SRR CRHRT R e |fifa
10.1 cr@radien wfifa
TS TR W AEe AT Su SaRe AT AR & 9w W H U 81 oikarasien |fifd, dot &
faxirr Ruifear, sriaRe f==or ufshar @t sravear & fasard ®F 98 ®I ded Bl § 3R T8 ATaRIeTd iR faer®
el & I T fofd & w9 A 1 Bl o |
10.1.1 §91@e
BT BT FETIRIET FHfT H 9 w@ad e ok te srafers Fawe e €1 s Hoiid $YR §RT oRarasien
AT BT SFezerar Bl Sl 8 3R 3 Haw & -

%) s & Hige™

@) i 3Ra faeT ud

M) Sf. 9y ame |, e (o)
[T & Ft eIl 1 fa=iTa wal # GEATa ogad & MR FRfT &1 sreaer, =it Ioia $HR Ud Fal oRaThR JeaR
T, BT T O SR WEfT faciiy vee ferver 2

Ty RYIE 2015-2016
82



To the Stakeholders of HLL Lifecare Limited
Sub: Compliance with Code of Conduct and Ethics

| hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors.

Dr. M. Ayyappan

Chairman and Managing Director
26™ May 2016
Thiruvananthapuram

8. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

Independent Directors are regularly updated on performance of each line of business of the Company, strategies
and new initiatives being taken/proposed to be taken by the Company.

9. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review the Central Government has approved the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of
the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2). These Standards came
into force on 01t July 2015 respectively. Adherence by the Company to these Standards is mandatory as per
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, your Company has substantially complied with both
the Standards. The SS 1 and SS 2 prescribes a set of principles for convening and conducting the Meetings
of the Board of Directors, meetings of Committees, General Meetings and such other matters related thereto.

10. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted
to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the authority delegated. As a part of good
governance practice, the Committees of the Company are constituted under the formal approval of the Board
and appointment of members and fixing of terms of reference/role of the Committees done by the Board of
Directors. The Committees also make specific recommendations to the Board on various matters whenever
required. All observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board
for information or for approval.

The Company has currently established following committees, namely:
1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. CSR&SD Committee

4. Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee
10.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee at the Board level is one of the main pillars of Corporate Governance mechanism of the
Company. Audit Committee aims to enhance the confidence in the integrity of Company’s financial reporting,
Internal control processes and act as a link between the Auditors and Board of Directors.

10.1.1. Composition

The Company’s Audit Committee comprises three Independent Directors & one Functional Director. The
Audit Committee is headed by Shri Sanjiv Kapoor and the other members are:

a) Shri K. Mohandas
b) Dr. Aarti Vij and
c) Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)

All the members of the Committee have relevant experience in financial matters and the Chairman of the
Committee Shri Sanjiv Kapoor is a senior practicing Chartered Accountant, having extensive accounting and
related financial management expertise.
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10.1.2. Audit Committee reviews the following matters:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

i)
ii)
iii)
v)
Vi)
vii)
viii)

iX)

Xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

)

XVi)

Xvii)

Xviii)

Xix)

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; and
Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.
Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s report in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

¢. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal
control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverageand frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors/agencies into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
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XX) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
XXi. To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit

xxii) To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on Public Undertakings
(COPU) of the Parliament.

XXiii) Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor and the
Board of Directors

XXiV) Review all related party transactions in the company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee may designate
a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions.

XXV) Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness of
coverage,reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

XXVi) Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

- The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system controls and security,
and

- Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor, together
with the management responses.

XXVii) Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent auditor:
- Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommendations

- Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the scope of activities
or access to required information.

xxviii)  Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
10.1.3. Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2016, five meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 10"June
2015, 10" July 2015, 28" September 2015, 14" December 2015 & 28" March 2016. The attendance of the

members at the meeting was as follows: No. of meetings No. of meetings
Name of the Committee Member held during attended
the tenure

Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor
Shri K. Mohandas
Dr. Aarti Vij

Dr. Babu Thomas

o o~ O
AN B~ O

10.2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The scope and terms of reference of the Committee was enlarged by including the matters specified in
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10.2.1. Composition
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following 4 directors.
a) Shri Sanjiv Kapoor, Independent Director,(Chairman)
b) Dr. Aarti Vij, Independent Director
c) Shri K. Mohandas, Independent Director
d) Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)
10.2.2. Meetings and Attendance
During the year under review, the Remuneration committee met once on 28" March 2016.

The attendance of the members at the meetings were as follows:
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Name of the Committee No. of meetings No. of meetings

Member held during the period attended
Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor 1 1
Dr. AartiVij 1 -
Shri K. Mohandas 0 0
Shri R.P. Khandelwal 1 1

10.3 Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainable Development Committee
10.3.1. Composition

The composition of CSR & Sustainable Development Committee is as under.

a)  Dr. Aarti Vij, Independent Director,(Chairperson)

b)  Shri K. Mohandas, Independent Director

c) Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)

d) Dr.K.R.S. Krishnan, Director (T&O)

e)  Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)

10.3.2. Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The following
are the scope/terms of reference of the CSR & SD Committee:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the company

b)  Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the above activities
c)  Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.

During the year under report, the CSR&SD Committee met twice on 10 " August 2015 & 19" February, 2016. The
attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

Name Position No of Meetings No of Meetings
during the Year Attended
Dr. Aarti Vij Chairperson 2 2
Shri. K. Mohandas Member 1 1
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal Member 2 2
Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan Member 2 2
Dr. Babu Thomas Member 2 1

10.4. Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee
10.4.1. Composition
The composition of Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee [SFIC] is as under.
1)  ShriK. Mohandas, Independent Director — Chairman
2)  Shri Sanjiv Kapoor, Independent Director
3)  ShriR.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)
4)  Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan, Director (T&O)
5)  Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)
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10.4.2. Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee includes the following

i.  Develop long-term strategies and policies for the company.
ii. AssessmentofHLL's internal and external business environment.
ii. Develop a strategic management process for achieving company’s annual business targets.

iv. Assess and approve for implementation projects that are supportive of goals and plans of HLL as outlined
in the Vision 2020 Plan.

v. Plan periodic senior leadership meetings with a strategic agenda.
vi. Provide guidance for effective functioning of the strategic management department in the Company.

vii. Assistthe Board of directors in monitoring and evaluation of projects by identifying implementation problems
or outstanding performance through project exception reports.

viii. Monitor and evaluate financial and physical performance of all projects.

ix. Recommend investment/project proposals to the Board.

During the year under report, the Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee met six times on 14" May 2015,
28" September 2015, 13" October 2015, 17" November 2015, 23 February 2016 & 28" March 2016. The
attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

No of Meetings No of Meetings
Name Position during the tenure Attended
Shri K. Mohandas Chairman 4 4
Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor, Member 6 6
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal Member 6 6
Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan Member 6 4
Dr. Babu Thomas Member 6 5

11. Information to be placed before the Board of Directors

The Board has completed access to any information within the Company. The information inter alia, regularly
supplied to the Board includes:

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)
f)
9)

Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.
Annual Accounts, Directors’ Report, etc.
Quarterly results of the company.

Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the Board including minutes of
Subsidiary Company and Joint-venture Company.

Major Investments, formation of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, Strategic Alliances, etc.
Award of large Contracts.

Disclosure of Interest by Directors about directorship and committee positions occupied by them in
other Companies.

Monthly Report on Commercial Status of the Company.
Report on the status of various ongoing projects/scheme and Budget Utilization.

Any significant development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front like signing of wage
agreement, etc.

Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’ service such as
non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

Other materially important information.
Post meeting follow-up system:

The Governance process in the Company include an effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting
process for action taken/pending on decisions of the Board and the Board Committee(s).
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13. Shareholding Pattern

HLL is not listed at any Stock Exchange in India or abroad. The entire paid up equity share capital of the
Company is held by the President of India and his nominees.

14. General Body meetings: The Date, Time and Venue of the last three Annual General Meetings of the
Company are as follows:

AGM Financial Date Time Venue Whether Special Resolution(s)
Year Passed or Not
47t 2012- 6" Sept. 04.00p.m. New None
2013 2013 Delhi
481 2013- 28"August, 03.30p.m. Thiruvanan- Yes
2014 2014 thapuram Alteration of Clause V of

Memorandum of Association &
Article 4 of Articles of Association.

49t 2014- 28"Sept. 12.00 New Delhi Yes
2015 2015 Noon Ratification of Cost Auditors'
remuneration for the Financial
Year 2014-15 and 2015-16

Date, Time and Venue of 50" Annual General Meeting of the Company

Date Time Venue

23" September 2016 03.00 PM New Delhi

15. Disclosures:

° Details of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, associates, key managerial
personnel during the year 2015-16 are given as Note No. 2.11 to the Annual Accounts for the year
ended 31 March, 2016. These transactions do not have any potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. All transactions with the related parties were in the ordinary course of business
and at arm’s length price.

° There were no cases of non-compliance by the company and penalties, strictures imposed on the
company by any statutory authority on any statutory payment requirements.

° Presidential directives issued by the Central government in respect of Official Language Implementation
have been complied with during the year and also in the last three years.

° The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 while preparing the Financial Statements.

° There were no items of expenditure debited in books of accounts, which are not for the purposes of the
business.

° The company has adequately insured all its assets and also the various business risks connected with

the business of the company and that it has duly paid insurance premium.

° The Company has adopted Foreign Exchange & Risk Management Policy to protect Rupee value of
Foreign currency cash flows of the Company from adverse impact of fluctuations in exchange rates
and interest rates.

° The Company has adopted Whistle Blower policy and it is affirmed that no person has been denied
access to the Audit Committee in respect of reporting of suspected violations.
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16. General Information
16.1. Training of Directors:

The Company has adopted Guidelines on Corporate Governance May 2010 issued by Department of
Public Enterprise. Based on the DPE guidelines the company has adopted Training policy for board
members.

16.2. Means of communication:

Timely disclosure of relevant and reliable information is at the core of good Corporate Governance practice.
Toward this end your Company has taken following initiatives:

Annual Audited The company publishes its annual audited statement of accounts in the official website

Financial www.lifecarehll.com

Statements

News All updates on company’s development and changes are published through

Releases Company’s Monthly photo newsletter, monthly bulletin and quarterly mangazine and
are also displayed on the company’s website www.lifecarehll.com

Website The Company’s Corporate Website www.lifecarehll.com provides comprehensive

information about the products, business segments, upcoming projects etc. The
company videos are displayed through webinar in the website

Annual Report The Annual Report of the Company is circulated to the shareholders, Ministry of Health

& Family Welfare, Comptroller and Auditor General of India and all others entitled thereto
like Statutory Auditors etc.
16.3. Plant Locations

Address
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Manufacturing Plant Name and Location

Contraceptives Peroorkada Factory,

Hospital Products

Contraceptives

Contraceptives and
Pharma Products

Hospital Products

Pharma Products

Thiruvananthapuram
(PFT),Kerala
Akkulam Factory,
Thiruvananthapuram
(AFT),Kerala
Kakkanad Factory
Kochi, (KFC), Kerala

Kanagala Factory,
Belgaum, (KFB) Karnataka

Manesar Factory,
Gurgaon, (MFG), Hariyana

Sanver Road Factory,
Indore, Madhya Pradesh

Peroorkada Factory, Peroorkada
Thiruvananthapuram - 695005
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Akkulam Factory, Akkulam,
Thiruvananthapuram - 695017
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Cochin Special Economic Zone Division,
Plot No:16A/1,

Kakkanadu, Cochin -682037

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum,
Karnataka - 591225

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Manesar Unit, Plot No: 71 Sector 7,
Gurgaon, Haryana -122050

HLL Lifecare Ltd,

Sector-E, Sanver Road Industrial

(PFI) Area, Indore - Madhya Pradesh
Contraceptives Irapuram Factory, Cochin, HLL Lifecare Ltd
(IFC), Kerala Re-Sy.No 156/3, Block No.29

Rubber Park, Valayanchirangara
Irapuram,Cochin-683 556
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

Healthcare has become one of India’s largest sectors - both in terms of revenue and employment. Healthcare
comprises hospitals, medical devices, clinical trials, outsourcing, telemedicine, medical tourism, health insurance
and medical equipment. The Indian healthcare sector is growing at a brisk pace due to its strengthening coverage,
services and increasing expenditure by public as well private players.

The overall Indian healthcare market today is worth US$ 100 billion and is expected to grow to US$ 280 billion
by 2020, a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 22.9 per cent. Healthcare delivery, which includes
hospitals, nursing homes and diagnostics centres, and pharmaceuticals, constitutes 65 per cent of the overall
market.

There is a significant scope for enhancing healthcare services considering that healthcare spending as a percentage
of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is rising. Rural India, which accounts for over 70 per cent of the population, is
set to emerge as a potential demand source.

As a Public Entrepreneur, HLL can help the Government to use new delivery and organizational models to
improve efficiency in the delivery of public services and boost the impact of Government investments in healthcare
sector.

The global contraceptive market is estimated to grow at 4.3% during 2015 - 2022 and is estimated to be $32.85
billion by 2022. The global contraceptive market is majorly driven by various factors such as growing prevalence of
sexually transmitted infections (STIs), such as HIV. The introduction of new products, exhibiting improved efficacy
are expected to drive the contraceptive market over the forecast period. Awareness programs run by government
and NGOs to promote the use of contraceptives across the globe are also contributing positively to the growth of
contraceptive market. However ethical and social issues are some major factors restricting the use of contraceptives
in some countries. In addition, rising prevalence of infertility among women and aging population are limiting the
use of contraceptives thereby restricting the market growth.

The market for contraceptives is segmented by products and geography. Segmentation by product is further
divided into drugs, such as topical contraceptives, injectable, and oral contraceptive pills. Out of all the segments,
contraceptive devices hold the biggest market share, at about 62%, presently. The primary reason for the growth
of this segment is the growth of contraceptive devices such as copper IUDs, male condoms, and inexpensive
sub-dermal contraceptive implants which is also known as sino-implants. In addition, the sub-segment comprises
of male contraceptive devices (such as condoms) and female contraceptive devices such as female condoms,
sub-dermal contraceptive implants, intrauterine devices, contraceptive diaphragm, contraceptive sponges,
contraceptive vaginal rings and non-surgical permanent contraception device.

Latin American market is an emerging market with great opportunities due to its untapped nature, constantly
improving healthcare infrastructure, economic development, and rising patient awareness. Regionally, Asia-Pacific
has potential to influence the industry in terms of demographics and lack of awareness within the large population.
Favorable government initiatives pertaining to sex education of individuals are one of the key factors expected to
push the contraceptive market over the forecasted period.
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2. FINANCE PERFORMANCE SNAPSHOT
The summarized financial results of the company for the last 10 years are given below:
Ten year's performance results at a glance (Figures Rs. in Lakh)

Description

Turnover
Total Income

Earnings Before
Depreciation, Interest
and Tax (EBDIT)

Depreciation
Interest

Tax

Profit After Tax

Equity Dividend %
Dividend Payout
Equity Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus
Net Worth

Gross Fixed Assets
Net Fixed Assets
Total Assets

Number of Employees

2006-07

24,348.17
28,906.99

3,684.56
661.18
272.50

1,004.10

1,746.78

26.57
412.80
1,553.50
9,442.66
10,996.16
12,313.04
4,624.37
26,474.48
1917

2007-08

32,850.88
35,004.89

3,323.12
733.07
447.10
715.13

1,427.82

9.98
155.00
1,553.50
10,688.95
12,242.45
14,807.07
6,470.55
28,795.82
1880

2008-09

36,641.86
38,188.29

3,474.66
899.59
920.64
896.61
757.83

10.00
155.35
1,553.50
11,249.99
12,803.50
19,835.30
10,831.22
39,135.12
1927

2009-10

44,006.29
46,548.03

4,296.52
1,279.07
756.05
768.01
1,493.39
15.00
233.03
1,553.50
12,470.75
14,024.25
22,652.84
12,479.05
38,447.93
1922

2010-11

53,310.62
54,119.85

4,713.00
1,439.22
524.37
905.92
1,843.49
15.00
233.03
1,553.50
14,042.50
15,596.00
23,013.02
18,255,735
52,661.89
1939

2011-12

60,900.68
61,893.02

5,413.68
1,581.47
775.83
1,002.33
2,054.05
15.00
233.03
1,553.50
15,912.59
17,466.09
25,998.71
16,252.62
58,029.31
1900

2012-13

83,294.11
84,000.45

7,268.51
2,084.96
1,402.68
773.40
3,007.47
2.00
387.07
19,353.50
18,468.10
37,821.60
32,290.70
21,958.17
85,811.40
1875

2013-14 2014-15

94,168.16 1,05,804.96
95,368.83 1,06,203.33

7,837.31  8,599.08
2,375.87  2,983.12
1,840.35 2,594.34
1,050.31 597.65
2,570.77 3,155.14
2.00 2.00
387.07 387.07
19,353.50 19,353.50
20,586.01 23,275.31
39,939.51 42,628.81
35,771.72 42,379.98
25,663.53 30,903.52

92,369.45 1,12,166.54

1831 1837

2015-16

1,06,291.19
1,07,168.08

10,237.46
3,652.03
2,872.39

914.77
2,888.27
2.00
387.07

29,041.50

25,697.70

54,739.20

46,603.27

32,957.81

1,13,127.84
1868
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3. PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE

HLL is a leading manufacturer and marketer of a range of contraceptive products around the globe. It also provides
a variety of hospital products, pharma products and healthcare delivery services.

Areview of HLL's manufacturing activities is given below:

Sl. Installed Quantity Capacity
No. Product Unit Capacity Manufactured utilization (%)
(Previous
year)

1 Condoms M.pcs 1892.00 1795.45
(1819.00) 95%

2 Blood Bags M.pcs 12.50 11.80
(12.52) 94%

3 Suture L. Doz 6.00 1.91
(1.74) 32%

4 Copper-T M.pcs 5.50 5.95
(4.87) 108%

5 Sterioidal OCP Million 98.67 44.32
cycle (41.25) 45%

6 Non-Steroidal OCP Million 30.00 29.77
Tablets (38.81) 99%

7 Sanitary Napkin M.pcs 392.00 228.48
(126.44) 58%

8 Pregnancey Test Card M. pcs 26.00 8.55
(13.67) 33%

4. MAJOR MARKETING INITIATIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS

Your Company plans to implement the modern marketing practices viz. Digital marketing, E-commerce
strategy, M-Commerce in the ensuing years to strengthen the Company’s domestic and global presence.

The significant marketing initiatives and achievements of the company during the year 2015-16 are stated
below:

° Moods was identified as POWER BRAND 2016 “the most recognized brand of India” featuring in the
selected 67 brands from India.

° Moods Deos has become a 32 cr brand.

° Happydays has become a %1 cr brand.

° Hinglact became %9 crore brand.

° Five pharma brands reached 1 crore mark (Xoom, M-care, Novex, Mifepro and Emily).
° Improved the blood component yield through Hicare CX in 7 places in TN

° Launched OB kit sutures and soft hernia kits and medigard-I

° Pharma Division Achieved 100% of the target and registered a growth of 45%.

° Velvet — Latex based Female condom was launched during the National Family Planning Summit
on 5th April 2016 at New Delhi by the Honorable Health Minister of India, Sri. J P Nadda.
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MOODS Silver launched in Domestic Market.

Installed 2117 Vending machines (MINI) and 1034 Sanitary Napkin Incinerators till date. These vending
machines have sold 1.72 million Sanitary Napkins (Happy Days) till date.

VENDIGO- Sanitary Napkin Vending Machine and Incinerators are approved by SWACHH BHARAT
MISSION, Ministry of Urban Development - Government of India.

HLL is ranked 41st company among 425 Gynec companies (improved by 11 ranks).
Export Division gained entry in 17 new markets globally.

MOODS GOLD now available in UAE, Oman, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,Qatar, Bahrain, Zambia, Namibia,
Botzwana, Bangladesh.

Expanded business with IDA foundation. (321.28 Crs).
Long Term Agreement (LTA) signed with UNFPA for supplying IUD, Female Condoms & Male Condoms.
Launched AMRIT pharmacy in AIIMS Delhi on 16th November 2015.

18915 patients benefited from AMRIT Pharmacy in AIIMS, New Delhi with an average patient footfall of
161 patients per day till 31st March 2016.

14 AMRIT Pharmacies to be functional before 30th June 2016.

Free Generic Pharmacy (FGP) at AIIMS serviced 4,46,740 patients during 2015 - 16.
We are in process of setting up 39 “Jansanjivani” outlets in Karnataka.

The LCC operations showed an annual growth of 52 %.

The LCCs at Cuttack and Trivandrum achieved monthly sales figure of more than 100 Lakhs. LCC
Cuttack achieved an annual turnover 0f%11.88 Cr.

5. RISKS AND CONCERNS

Risk: Government as a customer segment is expected to contribute 65% of HLL's revenues by
2020. Loss of ‘preferred vendor to government’ status may impact HLL's vision and strategies
significantly.

Mitigation plan: The Company plans to mitigate this risk by two-pronged strategies of ‘introducing
new products and services’ and ‘continuously increasing market share’, which are low to medium
risk strategies.

Risk: Increasing levels of compliance required for both export and domestic markets increases
cost of products and services.

Mitigation plan: The Company is confident of mitigating this risk by establishing dedicated teams
to ensure compliance with applicable regulations in target territories.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Given the nature of business and size of operations, your Company’s internal control system has been designed
to provide for:

Accurate recording of transactions with internal checks and prompt reporting.
Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.
Compliance with applicable statutes, policies and management policies and procedures.

Effective use of resources and safeguarding of assets.
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The internal control system provides for well documented policies/guidelines, authorisations and approval
procedures. Your Company, through independent firms of Chartered Accountants and its own Corporate
Audit/Assurance Service Division (CAS), carries out periodic audits at all locations and functions based on
the plan approved by the Audit Committee and brings out any deviation to internal control procedures. The
Company has an Audit Committee with majority of Independent Directors as members to maintain the
objective. The summary of the Internal Audit observations and status of implementation are submitted to the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The status of implementation of the
recommendations is reviewed by the Audit Committee on a regular basis and concerns, if any, are reported
to the Board. The Audit Committee periodically interacts with the Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors
and seeks their views to ensure quality and adequacy of the internal control systems in the Company. All the
issues raised by them have been suitably acted upon and followed up. Proper systems are in place to
ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company. The Company continues its efforts to align all its
processes and controls with best global practices.

7. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Directors Report and Management Discussion &Analysis describing the Company’s objectives,
projections, expectations and estimates are based on current business environment. Many factors could cause
the actual results, performances or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future
results, performances or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward looking statements.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue conviction on the forward looking statements.

For and on behalf of Board of directors

Sd/-
26.05.2016 Dr. M. Ayyappan
New Delhi Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00117374
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Annexure |

Form No. AOC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions
under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31,
2016, which were not on arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions on arm’s length basis for the year ended
31st March 2016 are as follows:

Name (s) of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms Date of Amount
related Party & contract/ contract/ including the Board paid as
Nature of arrangements/ arrangements/  value, if any approval, advance, if
relationship transactions transactions (X in lakhs if any any

Hindustan Latex Family
Planning Promotion

Trust Sales NA 846.21 26.05.2016 Nil
Sales
Commission NA 17.72 Nil
Rental Income NA 42.69 Nil
Other expenses NA 531.00 Nil\
Sundry Debtors NA 334.84 Nil

LifeSpring Hospitals

Pvt Ltd Debenture
Interest NA 19.34 26.05.2016 Nil
Other expense NA 0.25 Nil
Sundry debtors NA 58.55 Nil
Investment in
shares NA 783.42 Nil
Investment in
debentures NA 125.00 Nil

HLL Biotech Limited Sales

Commission NA 0.06 26.05.2016 Nil
Consultancy/

Services NA 78.49 Nil
Other Expenses NA 50.12 Nil
Sundry Debtors NA 238.83 Nil
Investment in

shares NA 27,489.00 Nil
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Name (s) of the
related Party &

Nature of
relationship

Goa Antibiotics and

Pharmaceuticals
Limited

HLL InfraTech
Services Limited

HLL Management
Academy

Date : 26.05.2016
Place : New Delhi

Nature of
contract/
arrangements/
transactions

Consultancy/
Services

Other expenses
Sundry Debtors

Investment in
shares

Rental Income

Consultancy/
Services

Sundry debtors

Investment in
shares

Other Expenses
Sundry Debtors

Duration of
contract/
arrangements/
transactions

£ $% % % $£%5F%

£ s

Salient terms Date of Amount
including the Board paid as
value, if any approval, advance, if
® in lakhs if any any
36.32 26.05.2016 Nil
6.72 Nil
92.55 Nil
708.75 Nil
63.54 26.05.2016 Nil
1,096.20 Nil
413.26 Nil
5.00 Nil
27.61 26.05.2016 Nil
87.01 Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

DR. M. AYYAPPAN
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00117374
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ANNEXURE Il

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31t March, 2016

of HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i) CIN : U25193KL1966G0I1002621
i) Registration Date : 01/03/1966

iii) Name of the Company: HLL Lifecare Limited

iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company

)] Address of the Registered Office and contact details :

HLL Bhavan, Mahilamandiram Road, Poojappura, Trivandrum-695 012

Vi) Whether listed company : NO

Vii) Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any : N/A
Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Descriptionof NIC Code of the % to total turnoverof the
main products/services Product/service company
1. Contraceptive Products 39.18%
2. Health Care Products 21.22%
3. Trading Products 18.59%

IIl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI.No Name and address

of the Company

1. Goa Antibiotics &
Pharmaceuticals
Limited

2. HLL Infra Tech
Services Limited

3. HLL Biotech Ltd.

CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Shares Applicable
Subsidiary/ Held Section
Associate
U24231GA1980SGC000412 Subsidiary 74% 2(87)
U45200KL2014G0OI1036617 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
U24290KL2012G0I1030732  Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
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(v) THIeRT Pt gt

HH. IRRURGDI 99 & URY § e 99 F 3id § TR T4 & SRME
o1 e ¥
gRaaT %

WIS FEE PARRA  deid GRS per e A
W Pol AW NAYARTR  ji@m Pl IR TR/ ARG
B AT DB % Moo  IWRIA%

1 YR 193535000  100% = 290415000 100% = 66.64%

(vi) TRl B feviert § aRad= (afe 1S aRad= ==&t & @Y, puan we &)

9. a§ & URY ¥ RRENl 99 & SRM 99 fTRie™
= RN @Y % L | IR B %

99 & URY H 193535000 100% 193535000  100%
gig/mH & HROT o fAfFfEe wxe a§ &
SRTT THIERT Bf IRYTRET H ARIRIIR
gfg/PHH (IS, Tee/ RAHCRI/E4E/
JeM gfdadt anfy) :
I P T | 290415000 100% 290415000 100%

(vii) STa 9 IRRYRG] & IRLTRGT IR (St St 3R Ud T St 3R & A9, gt iR gR®I & 3reman)

gd & URY # T o § R dou e
H.H. T AP 10 AIRURSBI & 0 WA b pa WRIA bR E P
e IR B % s IRRI Bt %
1 af HuRaH gl T = T
2  gfg/mh & arui @1 AR ove 98 &
SR TRl & AIReRar § aREaR gfe/
HHI (IS, 3MMdeH/ AR OT/A/SeH
gfqact onfx) -
3. 99 & 3fd H (W ¥ & IR I 3rerTa B
RRIEIRCERICCAISINEC) = N T T
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(v) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl Share Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
No holder’s beginning of the year end of the year % change
In share
A No. of % of total %of Shares No. of % of total %of Shares holding
Shares Shares Pledged/ Shares ~ Shares  Pledged/ ;0 e
of the encumbered of the encumbered year
company to total company to total
shares shares
1 Govt. of
India 193535000 100% - 290415000 100% - 66.64%
(vi) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
S| Shareholding at the Cumulative
No beginningof the year Shareholding
during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the .. o shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 193535000 100% 193535000 100%

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters

Shareholding during the Year specifying

the reasons for increase/decrease

(eg. allotment/transfer/bonus/

sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 290415000 100% 290415000 100%

vii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRS):

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Sl
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders
No No.of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares ofthe ,.o5 shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the Year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (eg.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):
3. At the end of the year (or on the date of
separation, of seperated during the year) Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(viii) FreeTl iR g gdusta HifiTe! @t FavenRa
g8 & URY ¥ e a¥ & kM Y3 ffwie™
erey) | WRIB % o=y IRRY B %

IY & URH H
1) SIUH =W, i UH $f 100 100
2) Nt IR G wusaard, ewd 100 100
3) % IIRIAFUN 100 Ty 100 T
4) sl fasr sharaa 100 100
5)  sfieclt g3 det 100 100
gig/aH & FRUT Bl AT v T &
SR WRYTRAT # TRIEIR i/
(T, 3AMEeH/ AR/ S/ SeH
gfdct anfe) Ui T Nl T
qY & URY H
1) Siudsrgwe, ot wq S 100 100
2) st R WY Wusrare, fesra 100 S— 100 Ty
3) & IARTA.PUH 100 100
4) Sl oo g 100 100
5) el aR=f der 100 100
(ix) =0T
39/IUIRTT TS Afed B B FORRT, Afh Y= & forg 37 7= | (®uq =i #)
ST B Jrmfera o1 ST P FI
BISHY
gferE o1
faxita ad & aRy & =wor
) A IHH 45,036.17 - - 4503617
i) ¥ =, @fh ved T fhy g 8804 - - 88.04
i) SUTRSTT @TeT, <ifehT < T8 - - T -
B (i-+ii +iii) 45,124 21 - - 45,124 21
faxfia a9 & SR =01 A 9Rad=
. IS 31588 5,000.00 - 531588
fraa aRad= 315.88 5,000.00 5,315 .88
faxtia a9 & oid # ko1
) = IHH 45,352 05 5,000.00 - 50,352 05
i)) T =TT, Afed ved Tl fpu v 108 58 = - 108 58
iy Sufoa &1, <ifs <o T8 5329 779 - 61.08
e (i-+ii-+iii) 45,513 .92 5,007 .79 - 50,521.71
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(viii). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl

No

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

iX).

For Each of the Directors and KMP

At the beginning of the year
Dr. M.Ayyappan, CMD

Shri R. P.Khandelwal, Director
Dr. K.R.S Krishnan, Director
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava

Smt. Dharitri Panda

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease

(e.g. allotment /transfer/bonus/

sweat equity etc)

At the end ofthe year

Dr. M.Ayyappan, CMD

Shri R. P.Khandelwal, Director
Dr. K.R.S Krishnan, Director
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava

Smt. Dharitri Panda

INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i)
i)
i)

Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)
Changein Indebtedness
duringthe financial year

Addition
Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

No. of
shares

100
100
100
100

100
NIL

100
100
100
100
100

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

45,036.17
88.04

45,124.21

315.88

315.88

45,352.05
108.58
53.29
45,513.92

% of total
shares of the
company

Negligible

NIL

Negligible

Unsecured
Loans

5,000.00

5,000.00

5,000.00

7.79
5,007.79

Annual Report 2015-2016

119

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

No. of
shares

100
100
100
100

100
NIL

100
100
100
100
100

Deposits

% of total
shares of the
company

Negligible

NIL

Negligible

(Rs. in lacs)

Total
Indebted-
ness

45,036.17
88.04

45,124.21

5,315.88

5,315.88

50,352.05
108.58
61.08
50,521.71
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl.

No.

1.
@

(b)

(©)
2

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl.
No/

1.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Gross salary

Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)

of the Income-tax Act,1961]

Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

Profits in lieu of salary under
Stock Option

Sweat Equity
Commission- as % of
profit- others, specify...
Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

Particulars of Remuneration

Independent Directors

e Fee for attending board/
committee meetings
e Commission

e Others, please specify
Total (1)
OtherNon-Executive Directors

e Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

e Commission

e Others, please specify
Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Dr. M Shri. R P Dr.rKRS Dr. Babu

(Rs. in lacs)

Ayyappan Khandelwal Krishnan Thomas

33.87 2731 22.92 24.
3.09 2.86 2.02 2.
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
36.96 30.17 24.94 26.

Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor  Dr. Aarti Vij Shri. K.Mohandas

2.50 0.60 1.40
2.50 0.60 1.40
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
2.50 0.60 1.40
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24

28
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
52

Total

108.34

10.25
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
118.59
288.83

(Rs. in lacs)

Total
Amount

4.50

4.50
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

4.50
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

(Rs. in lacs)
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary
1 Gross salary
@ Salary as per provisions N.A 17.40 19.08 36.48
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Nil Nil Nil
Income tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil
5 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil
4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify... Nil Nil Nil
5 Others, please specify
Total 17.40 19.08 36.48
PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Section of Brief Details Authority[RD Appeal
the Companies Description of Penalty INCLT/ made, ,if
Type Act /Punishment/ Court] any (give
fees imposed Details)
Compounding
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Annexure. Il

BVR & ASSOCIATES "Swsthika", TR/53/3933, Lal Salem Road
Company Secretaries LLP Off Convent Road, Pommirunni
Vytila P.O., Cochin-682019
Ph:+91-484-4046696, +91 98956 30786

LLP Identification Number : AAE-7-79 Email : info@directus.co.in

Form No: MR 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2016
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

CIN: U25193KL1966G0I1002621.

HLL Bhavan, Mahila Mandiram Road, Poojappura
Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala-695012, India

We, BVR & ASSOCIATES, Company Secretaries LLP, have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s.HLL LIFECARE LIMITED
[CIN: U25193KL1966G01002621](hereinafter called the Company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the M/s. HLL LIFECARE LIMITED’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records produced to us and according to information and explanations given to us by the
Company, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31.03.2016 complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by M/s HLL LIFECARE LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31.03.2016 according to the
provisions of:

1 The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.
2 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the applicable rules and regulations made there under.

As informed to us the following other Laws specifically applicable to the Company as under:

1.  The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
2. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

3.  The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
4.  Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

5.  Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

6. The Factories Act, 1948

7.  The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946
8.  Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

9.  Legal Metrology Act, 2009

10. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

11. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

12. The Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881
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16.
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B 71 11 ST et & A1 S1uTe B it W @ R
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11.

i ad & IR Hu B R IR - g Frdwife du $ a)e 21 Bl el o U & R
B ST &, b TER Bl B TG T B |

HUl & Fawd Hedl HRIUAD Fawd, IR- SRE® Feee 3R w@dd Fese & Sfd dged & ae
faferaq wfea foram T 2 | Elereli= oaf® & SR fFiawre dedt @t grae # uRad= dueh afdf e |, 2013 &
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13.
14.
15.
16.

The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1974
Kerala Soaps & Est. Welfare Fund Board Act.
Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and the rules made there under

Sexual Harassment of Women at the work place (prevention, prohibition and redressal) Act, 2013

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1) Secretarial Standards to the extent applicable issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of

India.

2) Corporate Social Responsibility Voluntary Guidelines, 2009 issued by the Ministry of Corporate

Affairs, Government of India;

We report that, during the year under review:

1.

10.

The status of the Company during the financial year has been that of an Unlisted Public Company. The
Company has been a holding of another company but has not been a subsidiary of another company.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors.The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda are sent atleast seven days in advance, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.Majority decision is carried through, while the dissenting members’ views are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment,
their being independent and compliance with the code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and
Management Personnel and also with regard to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts and
arrangements, shareholdings/debenture holdings and directorships in other companies and interests in
other entities.

The amount borrowed by the Company from its bank(s)/ financial institution(s) and others were within
the borrowing limits of the Company. Such borrowings were made by the Company in compliance with
applicable laws.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of unsecured loans, facilities granted by bank(s)/
financial institution(s) and non-banking financial companies. The Company has not issued Debentures
and collected Public Deposits.

The Company has not modified an existing charge on the assets of the company.

All registrations under the various state and local laws as applicable to the company are valid as on the
date of report.

The Company has issued rights shares to the existing share holders of the Company and allotted the
securities during the period under scrutiny.

The Company has declared dividend and paid dividends to its shareholders during the period under
scrutiny. The Company has no unpaid dividend during the financial year due for transfer to Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

The Company has paid all its statutory dues and satisfactory arrangements have been made for arrears
of any such dues.

The Company has provided a list of statutes in addition to the laws as mentioned above and it has been
observed that there are systems in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the company.
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We further report that:

1. the Company has complied with the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility Voluntary Guidelines,
2009 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India;

2. the Company has followed the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;

3. the company has complied with the Provisions of The Competition Act, 2002 with regard to prohibition
of anti-competitive agreements, abuse of dominance and ensuring of competition advocacy. As per the
verification, the company is ensuring fair competition in the market among its competitors.

We further report that:

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.

For BVR & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Sd/-

ACS Gokul R |

Designated Partner

Place: Thiruvananthapuram FCS No.A21269
Date: 24.05.2016 C P No. 14245
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To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members,
M/s. HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We
believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

4.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis.

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For BVR & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Sd/-

ACS Gokul R 1

Designated Partner

Place: Thiruvananthapuram FCS No.A21269
Date: 24.05.2016 C P No. 14245
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To

The Members of HLL Lifecare Limited
HLL Bhavan

Poojappura P.O.
Thiruvananthapuram-695012

We have examined the Compliance of conditions of Coporate Governance by HLL Lifecare Limited for the
financial year ended on 31! March 2016, as stipulated by DPE OM No. 18 (8)/2005-GM dated 14" May 2010.

The compliance of the conditions of Coporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limted to prcocedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the conditions of
Corporate Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information to the explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned DPE O.M.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/s Abraham & Jose,
Chartered Accountants

CA . Mukesh K.P.
Kochi Partner, M.No. 214773
30.05.2016 F.R. No. 000010S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
To the Members of
HLL LIFECARE LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31t March 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements, that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion of financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to :

1) Note No.2.19 regarding the uncertainity on final prices applicable for supplies to Government of
India during the year 2015-16, as the same is yet to be notified by the Government and accordingly
the effect of the same has not been considered in the financial statements; and in respect of
supplies for the previous years, though the Government has sought recovery of price difference
from the Company to the extent of ¥30.65 crores, the Company has raised objections and has not
provided for the same in the financial statements.

2) Note No. 2.23 regarding delay in capitalisation of the Uni-pill Plant beig setup by the Company at
Kanagala Belgaum which was scheduled to be commissioned in January 2012. There is also a
cost overrun of 324.02 crores, the recoverability of the same has been assessed by the
management and not provided for.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended);

Vide notification No. GSR 463(E) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5" June 2015, provisions
of sub-section (2) of section 164 regarding disqualification of directors are not applicable to the company.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B";

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements vide Note No0.30 to the standalone financial statements;

ii)  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, as required on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii) There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to be examined
in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, the compliance of which is given
hereunder:
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Directions issued under
section 143 (5)

Whether the Company has clear title/
lease deeds for freehold and
leasehold land respectively? If not
please state the area of freehold and
leasehold lands for which title/lease
deeds are not available.

Whether there are any cases of

Report

We are informed
that the Company
has clear title/
lease deeds for
freehold and
leasehold land
respectively

There are 112

Action Taken

Impact on accounts and
financial statements

Nil Nil

Amount of 62.38

waiver/ write off of debts/loans/  €ases ~where |akhs adjusted
interest etc., if yes, the reasons there ~ ¢laims amounting  towards provision Nil
for and the amount involved. to 362.38lakhs, created against
being irrecover the same in
able have been earlier years.
written off.
The company is
Whether proper records are ,.intaini ng
maintained for inventories lying with proper records
third parties & assets recelygd it | s fmveniories
from Govt. or other authorities. lying with third i Nil
i

parties.As
informed, the
company has not
received any
asset as gift from
Government/
other authorities.

For Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000010S)

Place : New Delhi
Date : 26.05.2016

Mukesh. K.P
Partner (M. No. 214773)
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent
Auditors' Report of even date to the members of HLL Lifecare Limited ("the Company"), on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 315 March 2016]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i)  (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed
assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the informatin and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company;

(i)  The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year. We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification ;

(iii) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.  Accordingly, the provisions
of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has compiled
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees
and security;

(v) During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). However, we report
that an amount of Rs.10,000 accepted during earlier period is outstanding under fixed deposit not
repaid due to dispute between the legal heirs.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under subsection (1) of Section
148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products and services and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(vii) (a)According to the records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Excise
Duty, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

According to the Information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of customs,
Duty of Excise, Values Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, as
on the last date of the financial year, for a period more than six months from the date they become
payable ;
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, customs Tax, Excise Duty or Cess not deposited on account of any dispute
except:-

Name of the Statute Forum where the Amount involved Period

matter is pending (Rs. lakhs)
The Income Tax Act, 1961 CIT (Appeals) 10.12 Asst.Yr 2008-09
Do Do 18.28 Asst.Yr 2009-10
Do ITAT (Appeals) 19.82 Asst.Yr 2010-11
Do CIT (Appeals) 24.62 Asst.Yr 2011-12
Do ITAT (Appeals) 39.23 Asst.Yr 2011-12
Do CIT (Appeals) 32.41 Asst.Yr 2012-13
Do CIT (Appeals) 75.34 Asst.Yr 2013-14
Customs Act,1962 Commissioner of

Customs 22.15 2007-08

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to the financial institutions, banks and debenture
holders during the year;

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us
the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which these loans were obtained;

Based on the audit procedures performed and the representations obtained from the management we
report that no material fraud on or by the Company by its officers or its employees has been noticed or
reported during the year under audit;

In view of exemption given Vide notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act regarding managerial
remuneration are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not
applicable;

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company;

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Companies Act,2013,where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting Standards;

(xiv) The Company has issued 9,68,80,000 equity shares of Y10 each to Government of India vide orders

dated 18th March 2015 and 19th August 2015. The amount raised was invested in shares of HLL
Biotech Ltd, a subsidiary Company, in compliance with directions of Government of India;

(xv) Based on the audit procedures perform and the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

(xvi) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Abraham and Jose

Chartered Accountants

(FRN 000010S)

Place: New Delhi Mukesh K. P.
Date: 26.05.2016 Partner(M. No. 214773)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent
Auditors Report of even date to the members of HLL Lifecare Limited ("the Company") on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2016]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal fiancial controls over financial reporting of HLL LIFECARE LIMITED (‘the Company’)
as of 315t March 2016 in conjuction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of the internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparatin of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Control over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed
to be prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respecs.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivenes. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion of the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that :

1.  pertainto the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detailsm accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company ; and

3.  provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internaol financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditons, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedure may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Abraham and Jose
Chartered Accountants

(FRN 000010S)
Place : New Delhi Mukesh. K.P
Date : 26.05.2016 Partner (M.No. 214773)
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Office of the Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-I1V, New Delhi
File No. 420-PDCA/HS/MAB-IV/Standalone/HLL Lifecare Ltd./AA/2016-17

Date 13.07.2016

CONFIDENTIAL
To

The Chairman and Managing Director,
HLL Lifecare Ltd.

HLL Bhavan, Poojappura P.O.
Thiruvananthapuram-695012

Sub : Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act,
2013 on the accounts of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31t March 2016.
Sir,
I am to enclose herewith the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6) (b) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 on the accounts of the HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 315 March 2016.

The receipt of the letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully

(Dr. Ashutosh Sharma)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Encl: As above Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-IV, New Delhi

8th & 9th Floor, Annexure Building, 10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
Tel: 23239413, 23239415, 23239420, Fax: 23239416
Email: mabNewdelhi4@cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE HLL
LIFECARE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2016

The preparation of financial statements of HLL LIFECARE LIMITED for the year ended 31t March, 2016 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditor/auditors appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is/are responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 26.05.2016.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have conducted a supplementary audit under
section 143 (6) (a) of the Act of the financial statements of HLL LIFECARED LIMITED for the year ended 31st
March 2016. The supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and the company personnel and
a selective examination of some of the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come
to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors' report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

(Dr. Ashutosh Sharma)
Place : New Delhi Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Date: 13.07.2016 Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-1V, New Delhi
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2016

Particulars Note No ASAT ASAT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
X lacs) X lacs)
A. EQUITYAND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
(@) Share Capital 3 29,041.50 19,353.50
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 25,697.70 23,275.32
54,739.20 42,628.82
2. Share application money pending allotment - 4,000.00
3. Non-current liabilities
(@) Long-term borrowings 5 4,095.11 5,153.60
(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net) 6 1,165.59 1,198.20
(c) Long-term provision 7 121.78 131.67
5,382.48 6,483.47
4. Current liabilities
(@) Short-term borrowings 8 44,378.06 37,657.56
(b) Trade payables 9 19,219.08 20,949.49
(c) Other current liabilities 10 17,181.35 23,316.53
(d) Short-term provisions 1 1,239.48 1,429.30
82,017.97 83,352.88
4. Advances Received for Projects held under Trust
as per contra 96,764.50 73,723.93
TOTAL 2,38,904.15 2,10,189.10
B. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 12
i) Tangible assets 23,540.73 22,620.96
i) Intangible assets 696.86 828.29
i)y Capital work-in-progress 8,720.22 7,454,27
32,957.81 30,903.52
(b) Non-currentinvestments 13 28,204.75 19,425,17
(c) Long-term loans and advances 500.00 -
(c) Other Non-Current assets 14 307.06 4,628.15
2. Current assets
(@) Current Investments 13 908.42 -
(b) Inventories 15 9,740.60 10.117.97
(b) Trade receivables 16 60,264.61 62,261.05
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 17 2,211.79 1,333.77
(d) Short-term loans and advances 18 6,742.78 7,261.85
(e) Other current assets 19 301.83 533.69
80.170.03 81,508.33
3. Cash and Bank balances of Projects held under
Trust as per contra 96,764.50 73,723.93
TOTAL 2,38,904.15 2,10,189.10
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements 2
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
Chairman & Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR) SVP (F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773

[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

Note No Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31-03-2016 31-03-2015
X lacs)  lacs)

1. Revenue from operations (gross) 20 1,07.208.46 1,06,438.70
Less: Excise duty 917.27 633.74
Revenue from operations (net) 1,06,291.19 1,05,804.96

2. Other income 21 876.89 398.37

3. Total revenue (1+2) 1,07,168.08 1,06,203.33

4. Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 22 23,180.03 20,585.80
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 23 25,740.75 20,981.27
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,

work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 24 (157.55) 1,908.01
(d) Employee benefits expense 25 14,934.22 14,677.14
(e) Finance costs 26 2,872.39 2,594.34
() Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 3,652,03 2,983.12
(g) other expenses 27 27,103.66 28,100.04
(h) Contract Expenses 6,039.51 11,351.99
Total expenses 1,03,365.04 1.03.181.71

5. Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional items and tax (3-4) 3,803.04 3,021.62

6. Exceptional items [Income /Expense] - (731.17)

7. Profit/(Loss) before tax (5-6) 3,803.04 3,752.79

8. Tax expenses :

(a) Current tax expenses for current year 1,115.99 954.26
(b) Prior year tax adjustments (168.59) (157.67)
(c) MAT Credit Entitlement - (133.68)
(d) Deferred tax (32.63) (65.26)

914,77 597,65

9. Profit/ (Loss) for the year (7-8) 2,888.27 3,155.14

10. Earnings per share () - Basic
(Face value of ¥ 10/- share) 2.10 1.13 1.63
Diluted 1.13 1.63
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements 2

For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
Chairman & Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR) SVP (F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773
[DIN: 00117374]
New Delhi
26.05.2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(X lacs)  lacs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before extraordinary items and tax 3,803.04 3,752.82
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 3,652.03 2,983.12
Exceptional item for Depreciation - (731.17)
Loss on sale of fixed assets 1.48 4.40
Profit on sale of fixed assets (4.71) (4.52)
Finance costs 2,872.39 2,594.34
Interest income (156.30) (103.64)
Operating profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 10,167.93 8,495.35
Changes in working capital :
Adjustment for (increase)/decrease in operating assets :
Inventories 377.77 1,586.76
Trade receivables 1,996.44 (19,112.80)
Short-term loans and advances 522.03 2,615.31
other current assets 231.86 (149.24)
Changes in other non-current assets 38.43 38.42
Adjustment for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities :
Trade payables (1,730.41) 10,667.62
Other current liabilities (6,135.18) 5,353.34
Long-terms provisions (9.89) 19.60
Short-term provisions (189.82) 145.80
5,268.76 9,660.16
Cash flow from extraordinary items
Cash generated from operations 5,268.76 9,660.16
Net Income tax (paid)/refunds (667.70) (847.67)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 4,601.06 9,012.49
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital Work in Progress (1,265.95) (454.37)
Investment in Fixed Assets (4,464.94) (7,045.06)
Sale of fixed assets 27.80 7.61
Interest received 156.30 103.64
Investment in Shares of HBL (5,688.00) (4,000.00)
Investment in HLL Infratech Services Ltd. - (5.00)
Changes in Long-term loans & advances (500.00) =
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more
than twelve months) (55.31) (28.84)
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) (12,790.10) (11,422.02)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,058.49) (2,568.78)
Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 6,720.50 3,890.65
Advance for investment from Govt. of India - 4,000.00
Investment from Govt. of India 5,688.00 -
Finance cost - Interest paid (2,872.39) (2,594.34)
Dividend paid (387.07) (387.07)
Tax on dividend (78.80) (78.80)
Net Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) 8,011.75 2,261.66
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Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

( in lacs)  in lacs)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 822.71 (147.87)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,104.66 1,252.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,927.37 1,104.66

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet

(Refer Note 17) 2,211.79 1,333.77

Less : Bank balances not considered as cash and cash

equivalents as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements 284.42 229.11

Net Cash and cash equivalents (as defined in AS 3

Cash Flow Statements) included in Note 17 1,927.37 1,104.66

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*

* Comprises

(@) Cashon hand 19.53 11.62
(i) InDepositaccount 418.40 257.12
(i) Incurrentaccounts 1,448.00 788.18
(i) In EEFC accounts 41.44 47.74

1,927.37 1,104.66

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the AS - 3
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2 The previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary in order to confirm to this
year’s presentation.

3 Transactions of project funds held under Trust and balance of 96,764.50 lacs (previous year
373723.93 lacs) are not included in the Cashflow

For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
Chairman & Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR) SVP (F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773
[DIN: 00117374]
New Delhi
26.05.2016
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Note 3 Share Capital

Particulars AS AT AS AT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
% lacs % lacs

(a) Authorised Share Capital

Equity shares of of ¥ 10/- each - 30,00,00,000 Nos. 30,000.00 30,000.00
(b) Issued Share Capital

Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos. 29,041.50

Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos. 19,353.50
(c) Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital

Equity shares of I 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos. 29,041.50

Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos. 19,353.50

Total 29,041.50 19,353.50

Reconciliation of Share Capital

Description AS AT 31.03.2016 AS AT 31.03.2015

No. of Amount No. of Amount

shares in lacs shares in lacs
Equity Share Capital
Authorized
Opening Balance
(Face value of ¥ 10/- each) 3000,00,000 30,000.00 3000,00,000 30,000.00
Additions - - - -
Closing Balance
(Face value of % 10/- each) 3000,00,000 30,000.00 3000,00,000 30,000.00
Issued
Opening Balance
(Face value of I 10/- each) 19,35,35,000 19,353.50 19,35,35,000 19,353.50
Additions 968,80,000 9,688.00 - -
Closing Balance
(Face value of ¥ 10/- each) 2904,15,000 29,041.50 1935,35,000 19,353.50
Subscribed & Paid up
Opening Balance
(Face value of ¥ 10/- each) 19,35,35,000 19,353.50 19,35,35,000 19,353.50
Additions 968,80,000 9,688.00 - -
Closing Balance
(Face value of I 10/- each) 2904,15,000 29,041.50 1935,35,000 19,353.50

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

AS AT 31.03.2016

Number of % of
shares held Holding

AS AT 31.03.2015

Number of % of
shares held Holding

Name of shareholder

Govt. of India 2904,15,000 100% 1935,35,000 100%
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Note 4 Reserves and surplus

ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs
(a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserve
Opening balance - 36.80
Add : Additions/transfers during the year - -
Less : Transferred during the year to General Reserve - 36.80
Closing balance - 36.80
(b) Dividend Equalisation Reserve 129.74 129.74
(c) General Reserve
Opening balance 23,145.58 20,419.47
Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 2,422.40 2,689.31
Add : Transferred during the year from CSR - 36.80
Closing balance 25,567.98 23,145.58

(c) Surplus/ (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance - -
Add : Profit/ (Loss) for the year 2,888.27 3,155.15
Less : Proposed Dividend

Dividends proposed to equity shareholders (30.1333 per share

of ¥10/- each, Previous year 0.20 share of ¥ 10/- each) 387.07 387.07
Tax on dividend 78.80 78.80
General Reserve 2,422.40 2,689.28
Closing balance - -
Total 25,697.70 23,275.32
Note 5 Long-term borrowings
ASAT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs
(a) Term Loans
Foreign currency loan-Secured 752.62 1,655.33
Rupee Term Loan-Secured 1,932.79 2,899.17
(b) Other loans and Advances
Foreign currency Buyers Credit 1,409.70 599.10
Total 4,095.11 5,153.60
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fewult 6 S@T AME-22 & AN THSIBIU-IT IR B F o0 a@n
fyerear 31.03.2016 @1 31.03.2015 &I
T orai # T ot |
IRAR B () /ARt

Houg™ (1949 .18) (1980.36)
MR HY AT B ATl ST & B JH1a (1949.18) (1980.36)
dfewe =01 & oy mraem 739 .50 707 A7
AR gHTAT & forg argen - 29 42
a9 & foly uraem 20.78 14 28
= 23 .31 30.99
R H BN ATt IRFURTAT & AGT & B 7491 783 .59 782.16
o s & (o) /ARt (1165.59) (1198 .20)

feoquft 7 Sefpren= wraem=
31.03.2016 @I 31.03.2015 &I

faaer T ot | T ol §

(B) HHARY ey & forg uraen :
T e a9 & forg mrag 12178 13167
121.78 131 .67
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Note 6 Disclosures under Accounting Standards-22 Accounting for Taxes on Income

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs
Deferred tax (liability)/asset
Depreciation (1949.18) (1980.36)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability (1949.18) (1980.36)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts 739.50 707.47
Provision for Overtime arrear - 29.42
Provision for Bonus 20.78 14.28
Others 23.31 30.99
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 783.59 782.16
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset (1165.59) (1198.20)
Note 7. Long-tern provisions
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Provisions for employee benefits :
Provisions for Performance related pay 121.78 131,67
121.78 131,67
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feuoft 8 srcumIford SUR

R 31.03.2016
T oman H
(@) 9 W= T Fo1 (Fdal o) - afad
e §6 o fear 9 8,259.32
PR 96 4 326
e ST R i G| 3,284 .23
Pl 11,546 .81
(@) 9@ | STeTdTelT FU-RIT MaRgIoe
BRI b A 7,500.00
T d e | 7,500.00
Ed 15,000.00
(W) o= =1 g AR - AR
fae=ft ga1 Hen @ 9 - SUR 12,740 24
(=) ArEyd iR < =TS
PRI 9P 35.35
T d% A gfear 47 87
g S wh Al 96 -
Fa (uf@)  39,370.27
() v & & | srepre fasel ga1 For (i) 5,007.79
Hel 44,378.06
femafort - (i) wra sreasmiferd SUR Hferg afengfar & faxor
31.03.2016
e s <1 i 3 o ¥
dB1 ¥ 7 WX URST ol GO @ AT gREuRE ' R Uy 8,259.32
Joi | 1 | IR e 6 @1 AR |
T ot oS qoTgRT, foasiayRd & Ha |fed
I R S $ B9 H |iiRE
I |
PRI 9F 326
g S U W 9F 3,284 .23
Jp1 ¥ TIBITd RU-UTH JATRGIFS
CENICE] RS ST 3 Hferd 7,535.35
T d e | 7,547 87
15,083 .22
3T T 9 A0
Sl B A RIS ST 4 Hfervge 14,149 .94
=T : q@Ife IUR 1,409.70
12,740 .24
el 39,370 .27
T RAiE 2015-2016
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$1 31.03.2015 @&l
T ol |

13,753.56
481189
4,206 25

22,771.70

2,500.00
2,492 52
4,992 52

9,842 .08

15.40

35.86
37,657 .56

37,657 .56

@1 31.03.2015 &I
T ar@l |

13,753 .56

4,811.89
4,242 11

2,515 .40
2,492 52
5,007.92

10,441 .18
599.10
9,842,08
37,657 .56



Note 8 Short-term borrowings

Particulars

(a) Loans repayable on demand (Cash Credit) -Secured
From State Bank of India
From Canara Bank
From HDFC Bank

Total
(b) Short Term Loans from Banks - Secured Overdraft
From Canara Bank
From SBI
Total

(c) Other loans and advances - Secured
Foreign Currency Buyers Credit
(d) Interest Accrued & due
Canara Bank
State Bank of India
HDFC Bank
Total (Secured)
(e) Short Term Foreign Currency Loan from SBT (Unsecured)
Total

Notes : (i) Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings :

Particulars Nature of security

Loans repayable on demand from

banks :
SBI
Parripassu charge over current
assets of the company. Equitable
Canara Bank Mortgage as collateral over the
land with building at Poojappura,
HDFC Bank Trivandrum towards State Bank
of India
Short Term Loans from Banks -
Secured Overdraft
From Canara Bank
From SBI Secured by Project Deposits
Other Loans and Advances :
Buyers Credit Secured by Project Deposits
Less : Long Term Borrowings
Total
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ASAT
31-03-2016
3 lacs

8,259.32
3.26
3,284.23
11,546.81

7,500.00
7,500.00
15,000.00

12,740.24

35.35
47.87
39,370.27
5,007.79
44,378.06

AS AT
31.03.2016

% lacs

8,259.32

3.26

3,284.23

7,535.35
7,547.87

15,083.22

14,149,94

1,409.70
12,740.24
39,370.27

ASAT
31-03-2015
< lacs

13,753.56
4,811.89
4,206.25

22,771.70

2,500.00
2,492.52
4,992.52

9,842.08

15.40
35.86
37,657.56

37,657.56

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

13,753.56

4,811.89

4,242.11

2,515.40
2,492.52

5,007.92

10,441.18
599.10
9,842.08
37,657.56



feuoft 9 29 =@MR

faxor 31.03.2016 &1 31.03.2015 &I
T ol § T ol d
T IR :
- & g iR HeEE IEH 256 .85 23803
- I 18,962 23 20,711 46
P 19,219 .08 20,949 49
feuoft 10 3 =g Iz
forexor 31.03.2016 & 31.03.2015 &
T ol § T ol d
(@) drdwiferes 0T & d1e] IR (i BT fewol (i) &1 dad B ) 1,995 25 227627
kR
U dh/qdlabe | AH 487063 10,711 64
$ U9 St 3R gayfa s 3,184 20 257862
o7 U @bt < =g 53 .29 2998
RICIERSE 0.10 0.10
3 AU 7077 88 7,690 69
Sfererlt Y3 Iiomr - 29.23
Pl 17,181.35 23,316 .53
feoaoht (i) : Sreareli For & a1l aRuaarnt (fewoft 5 # fewof (i) @1 wew o) - ufofir & faror & fog dderfas sur)
foraor 31.03.2016 B 31.03.2015 &l
T om@i # T ol §
ot =kor
T I UG A g6 F Syar Bt o 991.75 1,002.08
RO We 96 i sfear 9 facsh ga1 fard %o 1,003 50 127419
el 1,995 25 2,276 .27
feuoft 11 srcumifere uraem
fore=or 31.03.2016 B 31.03.2015 &I
T ol § T ol §
(%) HHAR fedem & forg uraem :
() 9 IR U & forg wraem 244 09 129 71
@iy SUSH & forg rae 357 55 628 97
(i) 79 ¥ vt Wiftrgw & forg wraems 17197 204 75
773 61 963 .43
(@) =g graer :
(i) w=aTfad gfeact ararer & fore e 387 .07 387 .07
(ii) IR AT TR B & foTT wraem= 78 .80 78 80
465 87 465 87
P 1,239 48 1,429 .30
aif¥e RIE 2015-2016
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Note 9 Trade payables

Particulars

Trade payables :
For material, services and expenses
- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
- Others
Total
Note 10 Other current liabilities

Particulars

(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note (i) below)
(b) Others

Advance from Customers/Clients

EMD & Security Deposits

Interest Accrued but not due

Fixed Deposit

Other Liabilities

Contributory Pension Scheme

Total

ASAT
31.03.2016

3 lacs

256.85
18,962.23
19,219.08

AS AT
31-03-2016
3 lacs
1,995.25

4,870.63
3,184.20
53.29
0.10
7,077.88

17,181.35

ASAT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

238.03
20,711.46
20,949.49

ASAT
31-03-2015
% lacs
2,276.27

10,711.64
2,578.62
29.98
0.10
7,690.69
29.23
23,316.53

Note (1) : Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Notes (i) in Note 5 - Long-term borrowings for details

of security) :

Particulars

Term loans
Rupee Term Loan from HDFC Bank
Foreign Currency Term Loan from State Bank of India

Total

Note 11 Short-term provisions

Particulars

(a) Provision for employee benefits :
(i) Provision for bonus and incentive
(i) Provision for gratuity
(iii) Provision for group EL Premium

(b) Provision - Others :
(i) Provision for proposed equity dividend
(i) Provision for tax on proposed dividends

Total
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AS AT
31.03.2016

% lacs

991.75
1,003.50
1,995.25

AS AT
31.03.2016

3 lacs

244.09
357.55
171.97

773.61

387.07
78.80
465.87
1,239.48

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

1,002.08
1,274.19
2,276.27

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

129.71
628.97
204.75

963.43

387.07
78.80
465.87
1,429.30
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feuoft 14 =1 R =1 uR<ufRmt

31.03.2016 @I 31.03.2015 &I
fexor

R ol & T o H

3R 31 Al BT Yo 28.00 56.00
S 91 41 =1 AIRF o 17 37 2780
" U & e yrEen 261 .69 544 35
e & ufey sifim - 4,000.00
Pl 307.06 4,628.15

et 15 awqeyen
(Fr=e aFa R iR e avgell 9 7o)

31.03.2016 @I 31.03.2015 &I
freRor

T omai | T omai |
®. Fed A (AN IR >ifehd) 1,506 .88 2,266 55
3l & A1 Ped Al (AT W) Hedifod) - -
1,506.88 2,266 .55
@, e el (Are W Hedifea) 132589 998 42
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Note 14. Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars

Fee for RoC for enhancing Authorised Share Capital to the extend
not written off
ECB Loan Upfront charges
MAT Credit Entitlement
Advance against Investments
Total

Note 15 Inventories

(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars

a. Raw Materials (Valued at cost)
Raw Materials with others (Valued at cost)

b. Packing Materials (Valued at cost)
c. Work-in-progress (Valued at Actual Process Cost)

d. Finished goods (Valued at Lower of cost or NRV)
Manufactured Products
Social Marketing Products
Trading Products
Goods-in-transit

e. General Stores and Consumables (Valued at cost)

f.  Other materials, machinery, spare parts, building materials
etc. (Valued at cost)

g. Tools revalued & certified by management

h. Others
Scrapped/Surplus Assets (at lesser of cost or net realisable value)
Gift items (at cost)
Stationery (at cost)

Less:Provision for Obsolete Stock
Total
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AS AT
31.03.2016

3 lacs

28.00
17.37
261.69

307.06

AS AT
31.03.2016

% lacs

1,506.88
1,506.88
1,325.89
1,325.89
2,338.72
2,338.72

1,578.14
95.88
1,518.50
35.64
3,228.16
170.01
170.01

1,064.85
1,064.85
9.52
9.52

57.90
47.98
58.06
163.94
9,807.97
67.37
9,740.60

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

56.00
27.80
544.35
4,000.00
4,628.15

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

2,266.55
2,266.55
998.42
998.42
1,499,93
1,499,93

2,510.20
36.79
1,338.45
23.96
3,909.40
95.80
95.80

1,232.30
1,232.30
5.11
5.11

28.89
105.21
65.68
199.78
10,207.29
89.32
10,117.97
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Note 16 Trade receivables

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months
from the date they were due for payment
Secured, considered good* 1,837.63 965.62
Unsecured, considered good 29,258.16 40,959.08

31,095.79 41,924.70
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they were due for payment

Secured, considered good* 2,020.16 -
Unsecured, considered good 27,148.66 20,336.35
Considered doubtful 1,153.33 1,062.69
30,322.15 21,399.04

Less : Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,153.33 1,062.69
29,168.82 20,336.35

Total 60,264.61 62,261.05

* secured against letter of credit, bank guarantee & customer deposit.

Note 17 Cash and cash equivalents

AS AT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(A) Balances with banks

(i) (@) In Term Deposit accounts with less than 12 months maturity 418.40 257.12
(b) In Term Deposit accounts with more than 12 months maturity 284.03 228.83

(c) In Term Deposits held for margin money for borrowings and
guarantee 0.39 0.28
(i) In Current Accounts 1,448.00 788.18
(iii) In EE Foreign Currency accounts 41.44 47.74
(B) Cash/stamps on hand 19.53 11.62
Total 2,211.79 1,333.77
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Note 18 Short-term loans and advances

ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Security deposits & EMD 315.93 350.46
Secured, considered good - -
Sub Total 315.93 350.46
(b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 17.64 17.65
Unsecured, considered good 429.59 372.57
Considered Doubtful 1.17 1.17
448.40 391.39
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 1.17 1.17
Sub Total 447.23 390.22
(c) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good 225.84 180.02
225.84 180.02
(d) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions) 817.78 814.82
(i) Sales Tax Advances 1.90 2.05
819.86 933.97
(e) Others (Advance to creditors, deposit to various agencies etc.)
Secured, considered good 101.24 148.94
Unsecured, considered good 4,832.85 5,375.34
Considered Doubtful 982.30 1,017.53
5,916.39 6,541,81
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 982.30 1,017.53
Sub Total 4,934.09 5,524.28
Total 6,742.78 7,261.85
Note : Short-term loans and advances include amounts due from :
ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Directors 0.40 0.40
Other officers of the Company 56.40 53.19
56.80 53.59
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Note 19 Other current assets

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs 3 lacs

(a) Accruals
(i) Interest accrued on FDR 0.06 0.16
0.06 0.16

(b) Others

(i) Export Incentives/Duty Draw back 301.77 262.84
(i) Asset Under Insurance Claim - 245.31
(iif) Forward Contract Premium Receivable - 25.38
301.77 533.53
Total 301.83 533.69
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Note 20 Revenue from operations

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

0]

Particulars

Sale of products

Sale of services

Income from Contract
Other operating revenues

Less :
Excise duty
Total

Particulars

Sale of products comprises

Sale of Contraceptive Products
Sale of Healthcare Products

Sale of Social Marketing Products
Sale of Trading Products and Others
Product subsidy on saheli

Sub Total

Sale of services

Income from Contract

Other operating revenues

Grand Total

Other operating revenues comprise :

Cost of free sample supplied

Incentive on Social Marketing

Promotional Subsidy on Saheli and Novex sales
Duty Rebate/Duty drawback/Other export incentives
Sale of scrap, waste condoms and other misc. items
Sale of tender form

Total
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Year Ended

31.03.2016
% lacs

85,742.91
8,264.34
8,197.62
5,003.59

1,07,208.46

917.27
1,06,291.19

Year Ended
31.03.2016
3 lacs

41,643.22
22,555,38
1,468.27
19,761.13
314.91
85,742.91
8,264.34
8,197.62
5,003.59
1,07,208.46

2,739.34
423.35
466.76
853.15
477.42

43.57

5,003.59

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

80.904.73
6,158.21
15,096.00
4,279.76
1,06,438.70

633.74
1,05,804.96

Year Ended
31.03.2015
% lacs

43,316.43
21,729.77
1,034.75
14,522.82
300.96
80,904.73
6.158.21
15,096.00
4,279.76
1,06,438.70

2,692.21
122.54
522.54
389.89
490.67

61.93

4,279.78
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193 .23
294 .73



Note 21 Other income

@
(b)

(ii)

Particulars

Interest income (Refer Note (i) below)

Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below)

Total

Particulars

Interest income comprises :
Interest from banks on :
a) On short term deposit
b) On Others
Total - Interest income
Other non-operating income comprises :
Rental income from Staff quarters
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Insurance claims
Excess provision/credits written back
Lease rent

Other Misc. Income

Total - Other non-operating income
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Year Ended
31.03.2016
g lacs

156.30
720.59
876.89

Year Ended
31.03.2016
3 lacs

29.80
126.50
156.30

3.56
4.71
78.22
73.91
114.38
445.81
720.59

Year Ended
31.03.2015
% lacs

103.64
294.73
398.37

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

5.63
98.01
103.64

3.58
4.52
1.73
44.58
47.09
193.23
294.73
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Note 22 Cost of materials consumed

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Opening stock 3,264.97 3,106.72
Add : Purchases 22,747.82 20,744.05
26,012.79 23,850.77
Less : Closing stock 2,832.77 3,264.97
Cost of material consumed 23,180.02 20,585.80

Materials consumed comprises :

Raw Materials 12,336.82 10,985.44
Chemicals 2,742.44 3,015.11
Packing Materials 6,880.77 5,862.72
Cost of Quality and Sub contract expense 1,220.00 722.53

Total 23,180.03 20,585.80

Note 23 Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
% lacs 3 lacs
Trading Products 24,346.02 18,968.34
Social Marketing Branded Products 1,394.73 2,012.93
Total 25.740.75 20,981.27

Note 24 Changes in inventories of finished goods, and work-in-progress

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs

Inventories at the end of the year :

Finished goods 3,228.16 3,909.40
Work-in-progress 2,338.72 1,499.93
5.566.88 5,409.33

Inventories at the beginning of the year :
Finished goods 3,909.40 5,771.96
Work-in-progress 1,499.93 1,545.38
5,409.33 7,317.34
Net (Increase) / decrease (157.55) 1,908.01
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Note 25 Employee benefits expense

Particulars

(a) Salaries and incentives
(b) Contribution to -
Provident fund
New pension scheme
Gratuity fund contributions
Earned Leave Fund
Contribution to ESI

(c) Staff welfare expenses

Note 26 Finance costs

Particulars

(a) Interest expense on :
(i) Cash Credit
(if) Term Loan

(b) Other borrowing costs

Year Ended
31.03.2016
3 lacs

11,667.56

1,136.31
175.29
371.04
171.97

38.61

1,373.44

Total 14,934.22

Year Ended
31.03.2016
% lacs

2,507.90
219.80
144.69

Total 2,872.39
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Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

11,140.12

1,080.50
173.07
653.64
209.75

47.38

1,372.68

14,677.14

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

2,290.85
223.74
79.75
2,594.34
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Note 27 Other expenses
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs 3 lacs

Advertisement & Publicity and Sales Promotion Expenses 4,239.59 4,891.60
Power & fuel charges 2,995.31 3,902.48
Freight & Other Selling Expenses 3,031.70 3,299.56
Travelling & Conveyance 1,704.61 1,723.35
Other Production expenses 2,601.30 1,870.69
Wages to Contract Labourers 1,791.75 1,654.40
Consultancy & Service Charges 2,899.56 2,395.24
Free sample distribution 2,798.83 2,749.21
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,476.49 1,006.15
Provision for bad & doubtful debts/Advances 117.78 813.41
Repairs & Maintenance Machinery 560.99 492.44
Postage & Telegram, Telephone 351.46 357.60
Research & Development Expenses - 35.07
Corporate R & D Centre Expenses 696.70 656.79
Rent 313.86 297.44
Printing & Stationery 229.34 220.46
Repairs & maintenance of other assets 212.99 164.90
Water charges 214.67 174.13
Insurance charges 190.68 210.85
Bank charges 86.58 85.20
Exchange Fluctuation (52.46) 305,57
Staff recruitment expenses 96.55 64.91
Rates & Taxes 68.15 139.93
Provision for obsolete stores written off 11.97 12.01
Book value of obsolete assets/stores written off 70.25 85.60
Training program expenses 82,87 108.62
Repairs & Maintenance of buildings 138.50 200.43
Bad debt & advances written off 3.60 28.06
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 20.34 18.50
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 1.48 4.40
Loss on sale of scrapped assets 20.97 14.23
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 76.18 132.05
Royalty paid 2.30 4.75
Donation 0.84 0.25
Grantto HMA 25.00 -
Prior period items (net) (Refer Note (ii) below) 22.93 (20.84)
Total 27,103.66 28,100.04
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Note 27 Other expenses (Contd.)

Particulars

(i) Payments to the auditors comprises
Audit fees
Tax Audit fees
Audit expenses

Total
(ii) Details of Prior period items (net)
Prior period income
Other Income
Total
Prior period expenses
Administrative Expenses
Total

Prior period items (net)
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Year Ended
31.03.2016
% lacs

14.97
2.37
3.00

20.34

14.30
14.30

37.23
37.23

22.93

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

13.50
2.00
3.00

18.50

43.21
43.21

22.37
22.37

(20.84)
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Note 28 : Additional Information to the Financial Statement

A. Value of Imports (CIF)

Particulars

Raw Materials
Components and Spares
Capital Goods

Finished Products

B. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars

Travelling

Service Charges

Sales Promotion Expenses
Freight and Clearing expenses
Interest and other charges

C. Earning in Foreign Exchange

Particulars

Export Sales / Samples (FOB Value)

Freight & Insurance

D. Remuneration to Directors

Particulars

Salary

P.F. Contribution

Contributory Pension Contribution
Perquisites

Total

2015-16

Zinlacs

2,265.77

64.59

648.79

12,093.09

Total 15,072.24

2015-16

3 in lacs

80.94

45.80

339.26

168.10

198.04

Total 832.14

2015-16
3 in lacs

12,260.67
567.13
Total 12,827.80

2015-16
3 in lacs

110.33
9.21
1.80

10.25

131.59

2014-15

3 inlacs
2,658.67
171.71
1,265.60
8,793.87
12,889.85

2014-15
3 in lacs
76.01
25.57
672.14
676.45
212.99
1,663.16

2014-15
3 in lacs

13,552.31
1,105.71
14,658.02

2014-15
3 in lacs

104.62
9.88
1.71

48.33

164.54

The Gratuity & Earned leave Liabilities are funded through Group Scheme of LIC of India. As such the
premium is not ascertainable on individual basis and hence not included.

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas

Chairman & Director (Marketing)

Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016

[DIN: 00342401]

CS & SVP (HR)

Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose

Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
SVP (F) & CFO Partner
[FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773
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Notes forming part of the financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

SI.No.

11

1.2

1.3

Particulars

Corporate information

HLL Lifecare Limited, incorporated in the year 1966, is a Mini Ratna Enterprise, fully owned by
Government of India, domiciled in India and governed by the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. HLL Lifecare Ltd was converted into a Public Limited Company with effect from 21st
February 2012. The company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of a range of
Contraceptive products, Hospital products, Women Health Pharma products, providing
Consultancy &Contract services for healthcare infrastructure , Procurement and Diagnostic
services. The company caters to both domestic and international markets.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 besides the pronouncements/guidelines of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and
under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
financial statements are consistent with those of previous years, unless specified separately.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference between the
actual results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known /
materialized.

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all
incidental expenditure net of CENVAT credit wherever applicable. Revenue expenses incurred
for identification of new projects/ new line of businesses are treated as capital work in progress.
This will be absorbed into the project cost in the first year of commencing the business. If the
new project/ new line of business do not materialize within a period of three financial years, the
entire expenses shall be charged to Revenue in the 3 year.

The cost of fixed assets includes interest on borrowings (calculated at the weighted average
rates) and administrative expenses specifically attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets.

Expenditure during construction period is included under capital work-in-progress and the same
is allocated to the respective fixed assets on the completion of construction.

In respect of Pharmaceutical manufacturing facility, expenditure incurred are included under
Capital Work in Progress till the validation process is completed.

Intangible Asset

Cost of computer software and License fee incurred from 1.4.2003 are classified as intangible
assets.

Trade Mark Expenses

Expenses incurred on trade mark registrations will be treated as Capital work in progress and
will be capitalized under ‘intangible assets’ when licenses are received. Subsequent expenditure
incurred on licences which is already capitalized will be recognized as revenue expenses in the
period in which such expenses are incurred.
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1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Method of depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets has been made in line with the requirement under Schedule Il
of the Companies Act 2013. Further, Depreciation has been charged on straight line method for
all assets under Plant & Machinery and written down value method for other assets (except
intangible asset and lease hold assets) so as to write off the cost of the assets after retaining
residual value of 5% of the cost, over the useful lives of the assets prescribed in the Act, except for
those assets whose useful lives are determined based on any technical advice.

Components of main assets were identified and determined separately, if they have a useful life
that is materially different from that of the principal asset. 10% of original cost of the principal
asset has been considered as threshold limit to determine whether component is material or
not.

With respect to Leasehold Assets, depreciation/amortization has been charged on straight line
method over the primary period of lease or over the specified period, whichever is shorter.
Depreciation/amortization in respect of leasehold improvements is provided on the straight line
method over the primary period of the lease.

The cost of computer software other than ERP Software Solution is amortized equally over a
period of 3 years , whereas ERP software solution is amortized over a period of 8 years on pro-
rata basis. License fee paid is amortized equally over the agreement period.

Additions to Fixed Assets from 01.04.1993, costing ¥5000/- each or less are fully depreciated,
during the year of purchase irrespective of the date of addition, retaining the residual value of
assets.

Machinery spares acquired with the equipment are depreciated using the same rates and method
applicable for the original machinery. In the case of Machinery spares procured separately for
future use, rate equivalent to accumulated depreciation for the expired life of the relative machinery
are charged in the year of acquisition along with depreciation for the year.

Trade Mark expenses are amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of recognition of
intangible asset.

Leases
Fixed Assets acquired and given on lease are shown as part of fixed assets.

In regard to operationg leases, rental are expensed with reference to terms of the lease
agreement. Lease rental income is accounted on accrual basis.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets is recognized when there is an indication of Impairment. On such indication
the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and if such estimation is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, if any.
Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and spares.
Work-in-progress, materials in transit/under inspection is carried at actual process cost. Unused
Loose Tools are revalued every year taking into account the useful life of the tools and carried at
the revalued cost. Finished goods manufactured/goods purchased for trading are valued at
lower of cost/net realizable value, including excise duty, wherever applicable. Manufactured /
traded finished goods in stock whose shelf life expires within three months from the Balance
Sheet date are taken at NIL value.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15
a)
b)

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on audited financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise of value of sale of goods (net of returns) excluding sales tax and discounts but
including excise duty. Insurance claims are accounted on receipt basis. Interest on investments
is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the fixed rate
of interest. Revenue from services business is recognized on accrual basis.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro rata over the period of the contract.
Revenue from Infrastructure - development division and Procurement Consultancy division related
activities are recognized as follows:

a) In case of turnkey contracts ,on the basis of progress billing to the contract value under survey
method.

b) In the case of other contracts, on the basis of completion of obligation as per the terms of
contract with the agencies concerned.

Other Operating Revenues

The revenue against realization of waste latex, empty drums, rejected products and other scrap
items are accounted on cash basis.

Duty drawback/export incentive in respect of export sales are accounted in the year of export. The
realization in respect of obsolete assets/materials written off is accounted on cash basis.

Other Income

Interest income if any for delayed realization from sundry debtors as stipulated in invoices is not
recognized, unless realized. Income other than the above are accounted on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign exchange are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions. Foreign currency receivables/payables are translated at the exchange rates as
on the Balance Sheet date. Gain or losses arising out of such transactions are adjusted to the
statement of Profit and Loss.

Premium or discount on foreign exchange forward contracts booked for hedging existing assets/
liabilities are amortised and recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the
contract. Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding as at the year end on account of firm
commitment transactions are marked to market and the losses, if any are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss and gains are ignored in accordance with the announcement of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting of Derivatives issued in March 2008.

Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on translation or settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items
(i.e., whose term of settlement exceeds twelve months from the date of its origination) at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded or reported in the previous financial
statements, in so far as it relates to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the cost of
the assets as per GOI notification dated 31.03.2009 and 29.12.2011 and this will be amortized
over the remaining life of the Asset.

Government grants
Grants in the form of investment subsidy are credited to separate reserve.

Revenue grants/subsidy (other than product subsidy) relating to sales are disclosed separately
under other operating revenues, whereas product subsidy is disclosed under sales and services.
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1.16

1.17

1.18

Employee benefits

a) Gratuity and Leave Encashment The Gratuity liability and Leave Encashment liabilities are
determined under separate group schemes maintained with LIC of India. The liabilities towards
these schemes are estimated yearly, based on actuarial valuation.

b) Voluntary Retirement Benefits

The entire liability on account of payments under VRS, if any is charged off to the Profit and Loss
Account in the same year.

c) Post Employment Medical Benefits

The Employees (including their spouse) on the rolls of the Company from 01.07.2005 are
covered under Group Medical Insurance Scheme maintained with Insurance Company.

d) Bonus/ Performance Related Payment

Provision for bonus for the employees is made on the basis of Productivity Linked Incentive
Scheme as per the Long Term Agreement entered into with the recognized trade unions. Executives
at the Board level and below the Board level are covered for Performance Related Pay (PRP) as
per the guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprise.

e) Pension Scheme

Company has introduced a contributory pension scheme from 1-4-2011 for the permanent
employees who are on the rolls of the company as on 9-10-2012. Company contributes 3% of
basic plus DA with a matching contribution from employees. The pension scheme is managed
by LIC of India.

f) Encashment of Half Pay Leave on Superannuation

Company has introduced (w.e.f 15.05.2014) the facility of encashment of Half Pay leave to the
permanent employees at the time of superannuation, subject to an overall ceiling of 300 days
along with Earned Leave. The liability towards the same has been estimated and provided for in
the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing cost incurred / attributable to the acquisition for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset is capitalized. Interest on loan taken specifically for the acquiring assets and the interest
thereon are proportionately allocated to respective assets based on asset value.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance with
Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products,
Services and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting
policies have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the
segment, including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and not
allocable to segments are included under “Unallocable expenditure”.

(c) Income which relatesto the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
“Unallocable Income”.

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the
company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.
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1.20

1.21
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1.23

1.24

1.25
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1.19

1.20

121

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

22

2.3

Taxes on income

Provision for current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting
period in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax resulting from timing difference between book and taxable profit for the year is accounted
for using the Tax rates and laws that are applicable as on the Balance sheet Date .The deferred Tax
assetis recognized and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization
in future.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act 1961, which
gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered
as asset in the balance sheet.

Research and development expenses

Capital expenditure on Research and Development is treated in the same manner as Fixed Assets.
The revenue expenditure on Research and development is charged off in the year in which it is
incurred.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and
itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their
present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed
in financial statement.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses of items of ¥10000/- each and below are charged off to the revenue.
Prior Period Expenses/Income

Income and expenditure relating to prior period exceeding ¥ 25000/- in each case only is accounted
under prior period.

General Stores/Spares/ Raw Materials/ Finished Products

The provision for loss if any in respect of slow moving items of materials/finished products are
accounted after obtaining the technical opinion regarding the usability/marketability.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of products and time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the purpose
of current or non-current classification of assets and Liabilities.

EXPLANATORY/CLARIFICATORY NOTES

Authorized Share capital of the Company was increased from %20 Cr to ¥300 Cr during the year

2012-13. The expenditure amounting 3140 Lacs incurred towards the same is amortized over a
period of five years.

HLL Biotech Limited 100% subsidiary of HLL Lifecared Limited, has alloted ¥ 968,80 lakh shares of
3 10/- during the period against the capital infusion of ¥ 96.88 Cr.

Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development [MSMED] Act, 2006
are as under :
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2.4

25

2.6

2.7
2.8

2.9

X in lacs)

Sl 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
No.
(@  The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end

of the year. 256.85 238.03
(b)  The delayed payments of principal amount paid

beyond the appointed date during the year. Nil Nil
c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the

MSMED Act . Nil Nil

(d)  Normal interest due and payable during the year,
for all the delayed payments, as per the agreed terms. Nil Nil

(e)  Total interest accrued during the year and remaining
unpaid . Nil Nil

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

The extent of ownership in Subsidiary/Joint Venture Companies are as follows :

Name of the Company Country of Relationship Ownership
Incorporation Interest as on
31.03.2016

HLL Biotech Limited (HBL) India Subsidiary 100%
Goa Antibiotics and
Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL) India Subsidiary 74%
HLL Infra Tech Services Limited
(HITES) India Subsidiary 100%
LifeSpring Hospitals Pvt. Ltd India Joint Venture 50%

Matured fixed deposit of ¥10000/- has not been paid due to dispute in claim from the legal heirs
of the deceased deposit holder. Interest does not accrue beyond maturity date and hence not
provided for.

The Company had received from M/s. Female Health Company (UK) equipment’s valuing ¥ 89.27
Lakhs on loan basis for the manufacture of female condom FC2 Nitrile version at its unit located
in Cochin Export Processing Zone. No accounting entries have been passed as the property &
title of the equipment supplied vests with M/s. Female Health Company, U.K. Further, rental
charges on the said assets are recognized on actual utilization basis.

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year is ¥80.23 lakhs (Previous Year is 3154.64 lacs)

During the year to fall in line with the requirement as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
for charging of depreciation, the Company has identified and determined separate useful life for
each major component of the fixed asset, if they have a useful life that is materially different from
that of principal asset based on technical advice, The Company has considered 10% of original
cost to the principal asset as threshold limited to determine the component is material or not

The additional depreciation charged in the statement of Profit and Loss for the year on account of
the above is ¥ 13.31 lacks.

The Company has spent 376.18 lakhs on CSR for the year 2015-16.

In cash Yet to be Total
(Rlacs) paid in cash  (Zlacs)
(Nacs)
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 2.95 - 2.95
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 69.04 4.19 73.23
Total 71.99 4.19 76.18

Annual Report 2015-2016
227



2.10 R IR Yol TG Bl AT

31-03-2016 31-03-2015
faer o9 &1 37 T Arar H
19 g 81 & faaR0T & AR IR & 16 1| 288827 3,155.14
SAAeR-ay & SR b1V AT IRRT & Siga+ s 25,53,08,333 19 35,35 000
AR BT AT~ oI & Bbl 29,04,15,000 19,35 ,35,000
3ot ufer ¥R (%)
o (IRT IR 310/-a7 =ifehet 7o) 113 163
BedI(TRT IR T10/-a1 3ifhd o) 113 163

211 dfRT urdl e & HdY H TdhcaRvT 3R e Rulfésr wHer arged | & 1l § 1R 6y 9 £ 1
2.12 Jm M | darfaii & g & afedd Bre & foy ved fafec dmr it o feed wfie 2|

213

214

2.15

99 & SR Wd AR AT DI AR By AGTA el o |

HRA & 9G] oRATHR & ALRIH & IRV AAedR AT & I & SR Joii-93 § Sl g7 forg
Y RABS T §& NI Bl AR 3R FAGS ST &b A BT 7S & B H Yhed [hd T & | 91907
YRS, g e aRATSHIY, gR¥FuRmT iR Saard aRffte - 11l § uwe &) S 21

PHANI BRI

%) SUSH

Al yepes1/qatgaE
CEIRH

9a gf

i g (Pu araf #)
o fafer

SYR fafey

JMMERTT &%

oo (X i H)

& H g9 e (% i H)
IRafad® i =t (¥ ara )
SUSH & forg Hust A

qu UM T & e uf
FHHARNT BT SR AR T arEl H)
Q) gedl awbur

Al yeves1/qagaH

d&l a¥

SITEeXUT &X

e (¥UY ATl )

& H g9 YT (3 At H)
IR fSd =t (3 aral )
31fSTd et & folg St &

31-3-2016

8%

5%
470123
wféra gfre
IR fafy

1% 9 3 % T
IR & AR W
5,043.76
357 55
35517
10

10

31-3-2016
8%
5%
1457 84
yféra gfre
SYR fafey
1% 3 3 % do
IR & AR W
1,629.07
17196
110.33
300 fe=1

31-3-2015

8%

5%
4,04317
fara gftre
IR fafy

1% 9 3 % d&
IR & IR TR
465473
626 .32
31976
10

10

31-3-2015
8%

5%
1,265 87
yférat gfre
SYR fafey
1% I 3% dob
IR & IR TR
147492
20975
99 31
300 fe=



2.10

2.11

212

2.13
2.14

2.15

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share *

31.03.2016 31-03-2015
Numerator Net Profit ¥ In Lacs
Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 2,888.27 3,155.14
Denominator- Average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year 25,53,08,333 19,35,35,000
No. of Shares - Basic & Diluted 29,04,15,000 19,35,35,000
Earnings per share (%)
Basic (Face Value of ¥ 10/- per share) 1.13 1.63
Diluted (Face Value of < 10/- per share) 1.13 1.63

Disclosure in respect of Related Party transactions and Segment Reporting are presented in
Annexure | & Il respectively.

Insurance premium includes installment of medical insurance premium paid for post-retirement
medical benefits
During the year there was no payment towards voluntary retirement scheme.

The cash and bank balances held by the Company under trust and the corresponding liabilities
are disclosed as contra items in the Balance Sheet in accordance with the opinion of the Expert
Advisory Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Assets &Liabilities of
the Procurement Projects, & Infrastructure Development Projects are disclosed in Annexure 1l

Employee Benefits

a) Gratuity

The Fund disclosures/assumptions
Discount rate

Salary Escalation

Fund value (X Lacs)

Valuation Method

Withdrawal rate

Valuation (% Lacs)

Provision made in the books (3 Lacs)
Interest earned actual (3 Lacs)
Upper limit for Gratuity

Sum insured per employee under
Group Gratuity Policy (R Lacs)

b) Leave Encashment

The Fund disclosure/assumptions
Discount rate

Salary escalation

Fund value (X Lacs)

Valuation method

Withdrawal rate

Valuation (% Lacs)

Provision made in books (X Lacs)
Interest earned actual (3 Lacs)
Upper limit for earned leave

31.03.2016
8%

5%
4,701.23
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
5,043.76
357.55
355.17
10

10

31.03.2016
8%

5%
1,457.84
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
1,629.07
171.96
110.33
300 days
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31.03.2015
8%

5%
4,043.17
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
4,654.73
626.32
319.76
10

10

31.03.2015
8%

5%
1,265.87
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
1,474.92
209.75
99.31
300 days
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217

2.18

2.19

Pending forward contracts as on 31.03.2016 for hedging Foreign Currency receivables/payables
amounts to EURO 9.67 lacs and USD 92.11 lacs. (Previous year : EURO 13.80 lacs and USD
27.45 lacs)

M/s Life Spring Hospitals Private Limited was formed in February 2008 as a Joint Venture entity with
50:50 equity shareholding between HLL Lifecare Ltd. [HLL] and M/s Acumen Fund Inc., USA [Acumen].
HLL had contributed ¥ 783.42 Lacs towards the equity Share Capital of the Joint Venture Company, as
per the terms of Shareholders agreement entered into with Acumen. This JV was formed with the
objective of providing High Quality, Affordable Maternal Health Care for Low-Income Women across
India. It operates small-sized (20 bed) maternity hospitals in the proximity of urban slums. The hospitals
also provide paediatric care (including immunisations), diagnostic and pharmacy services, and health
care education to the communities in which its hospitals are located.

Presently, the JV is running a cluster of 12 hospitals in Hyderabad and one Hospital at Vishakhapatanam
in Andhra Pradesh. The JV's performance at the enterprise level also has been steadily improving.

During April 2013, HLL and Acumen had provided further financial assistance of ¥ 125.00 Lacs each
to LifeSpring, in the form of Unsecured Compulsorily Convertible Debentures carrying interest of
12.5% compounded per annum and convertible to equity shares latest by seven (7) years. The net
worth of the JV Company will improve further on conversion of these debentures.Lifespring business
model has been well appreciated both in national and international forums and earned prestigious
awards. Lifespring has earned a good brand value over the years and the Joint Venture fetches good
valuation.

HLL has decided to sell its entire holding in the JV to a prospective buyeer and has received an offer
for purchase of investments for a consideration exceeding the carrying cost. Therefore the investment
has been classified as current investment during the year, HLL has accepted the offer and the same
is pending for completion of legal due diligence by the prospective buyer.

Considering all the above, the diminution if any, in the carrying value of the investment in the JV
company is purely of temporary nature only and hence management is of the view that no provisioning
towards diminution in value of investment is required as on 31.03.2016.

The Company is in possession of 430.10 acres of land since January 2008, allotted on lease for a
period of 99 years from the Central Leprosy Teaching Research Institute (CLTRI), Tamil Nadu, under
directives from Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Govt. of India. The Public Investment Board
(PIB), Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India in its meeting held on 10.02.2012 had recommended to
earmark 100 acres of land out of the 430.10 acres in possession with the Company at Chengalpattu
for setting up of the Integrated Vaccine Complex (IVC), for a value of 10.12 crores (56 acres @316.50
lacs per acre and 44 acres of hillock @ ¥ 2 lacs per acre).

The recommendations of the PIB are approved by the Cabinet Committee of Economic Affairs (CCEA).
The Company in March 2012 has formed a fully owned subsidiary company, M/s HLL Biotech Limited
(HBL), for setting up the IVC, in line with the PIB recommendations. As the legal formalities of
transfer of 100 acres of land in the name of HLL and in turn to HBL are yet to be completed, the
Company has, on 20thFebruary 2014, sub-leased the 100 acres identified for the purpose, in favour
of HBL @ 3 1/- for 94 years.

Out of 430.10 acres in possession, 3.38 Acres of land, is to be given on lease to Tamil Nadu Generation
and Distribution Corporation Ltd. [TANGEDCO)] (Subsidiary of TNEB Ltd.) for a period of 92 years, on
an annual lease rent of 1/- only. However, the sub-lease deed between HBL and TANGEDCO is yet to
be executed

Govt. of India has accorded “captive status" to HLL vide Order dated 26.08.2005 for the supply of
condoms and other Contraceptive products to the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. The Company
has been supplying Contraceptive products (Condoms, Oral Contraceptive Pills, EC Pills, Copper-T
and Tubal Rings) and also Pregnancy Test Kits and Sanitary Napkins to the Ministry. As per the
Cabinet orderand its subseqgent amendments, the Ministry shall place the supply orders on HLL in the
beginning of the year at the provisional rates based on the L1 rates of the previous year. Subsequently
the L1 price determined through the open tender shall be made applicable to hll as the final rate for its
supplies during the same financial year. In the absece of L1 rate determination through the tender
process, reference shall be made either to Tariff Commission (TC) of the Ministry of Commerce &
Industry or Cost & Accounts Branch (CAB) of the Ministry of Finance for determining the fair price for
the supplies from HLL.
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Ministry could not either finalise the tender or notify the final rate concluded in the tender/fair rates determined
through cost study by TC/CAB, to be made applicable for HLL supplies for different years in the past during
the same financial year, as per the Cabinet Order. Hence, Condom supplies for the current year and past 3
years (2012-13 to 2014-15) and Emergency Contraceptive Pills for the current year and past seven years
(2008-09 to 2014-15) were billed at provisional rates. Ministry had floated open tender for procurement of
condoms during 2015-16 and concluded the same in March 2016. However, the rates finalised if any, are
yet to be notified. The Oral Contraceptive Pills, Copper T and Tubal Ring supplied during the year2015-16
were provisionally billed at L1 rate of 2014-15. PTK supplies were billed at the L1 rate of 2014-15 tender,
concluded during 2015-16.

Ministry has recently sought recovery from HLL towards rate difference, amounting Rs.19.56 crore towards
condoms for the years 2012-13 & 2013-14, Rs.5.22 crore towards Emergency Contraceptive Pills for the
years 2008-09 to 2011-12 and Rs.5.87 crore towards Pregnancy Test Kit for the year 2014-15. Since the
conditions of cabinet order to finalize the rates in the respective financial year had not been compiled by the
MOHFW and the accounts of the company pertaining to these years have been finalized and closed, the
company has raised objcetions against the recovery and in view of the above no provision has been
considered in the books of accounts. However this has been disclosed in contingent liability under the head
claims against the company not acknowledged as debt.

The Ministry has also referred to Tariff Commission for determining prices to be paid for Sanitary Napkin
supplies made during 2011-12 & 2012-13. Tariff commission has submitted their report in Jun 2014 indicating
higher price for HLL supplies. However Ministry is yet to decide on the implementation of the Report and the
final price payable to HLL. Hence the pricing benefit on the same is not recognised In the books of accounts.

2.20 During the year, the company has received insurance claim of ¥ 3.19 Cr against the assets

damaged at Kakkanad factory due to fire . The net income of ¥ 0.74 Cr is recognised in P&L
Account under the head other income.

2.21 Details of Contract Revenue and costs

[ lacs)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Contract revenue recognised during the year 8,197.62 13,288.24
Aggregate of amount of costs incurred

upto reporting date 49,960.12 41,565.39
Recognized profits up to reporting date 17,544.86 15,547.37
Advances received for contracts in progress 13,188.88 57.07
Retention money for contracts in progress = =
Gross amount due from customers for

contractwork (asset) 16,745.34 19,376.38

2.22 The Public Investment Board (PIB), Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India in its meeting held on
10.02.2012 had given its recommendations for setting up of the Integrated Vaccine Complex (IVC),
with an investment of ¥594 crores, wherein the Equity portion shall be ¥285 crores from Govt. of
India. The recommendations of the PIB were approved by the Cabinet Committee of Economic
Affairs (CCEA) and accordingly HLL had formed a fully owned Subsidiary Company, HLL Biotech
Limited (HBL), in line with the PIB recommendation. Govt. of India has been infusing funds into
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2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

HLL for the investment in Integrated Vaccine Complex and HLL in turn has been investing the same
funds into the Equity capital of HLL Biotech Limited.

Till date Gol has released I 274.88 Crs to HLL and equity shares were issued to Gol towards the
same. In line with the decision of Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs 100 acres of land is ear-
marked out of the 430.10 acres in possession, for HBL valued @ 310.12 crore. Upon transfer of land
by Gol, HLL will issue equivalent equity shares to GOI towards its consideration.

Capital Work in Progress includes investments made in UniPill plant,a WHOcGMP(Geneva) compli-
ant facility being set up by the company at Kanagala, Belgaum. An amount of 364.02 crore is in-
vested till date in the project, as against the budgeted cost of 40 crore. The project was scheduled
to be commissioned in January 2012. The increase in project cost is largely due to higher product
development & validation costs and other expenses incurred till date. Capitalisation of the project is
pending as the product development complying the WHO standards were progressing. The Dossier
developed for the first product (unipill) from the plant is accepted by WHO in May 2016 and the facility
audit is now awaited. On completion of the audit, the project will become WHO cGMPcompliant,
which is a pre-requisite for most of the regulated markets outside India. Company expects to recover
the increased cost of the project, by introducing more products from this facility.

Pursuant to the Accounting Standard (AS-29)- Provisions,ContingentLiablities and Contingent As-
sets, the disclosure relating to provisions made in the accounts for the year ended 31st March 2016
is as follows:

® lacs)
Provision Provision for **Provision for
against Trade Loans and
Inventories* Receivables** Advances**

Year 15-16 14-15 15-16 14-15 15-16 14-15
Opening Balance 89.32 95.96 1,062.69 987.92 1,018.70 441.96
Additions 20.23 23.15 152.78  210.05 - 620.94
Utilisations 12.30 3.65 62.14 130.61 0.23 44.20
Reversals 29.78 26.14 - 4.67 35.00 0
Closing Balance 67.37 89.32 1,153.33 1,062.69 983.47 1,018.70

* Provision created against obselete inventories.
** Provision created against receivables & loans and advances outstanding for more than 3 years.

Company has entered into a lease agreement with Thiruvananthathapuram Development Authority
(TRIDA) to lease out two floors of their building at Sopanam Complex, Medical College Junction,
Thiruvananthathapuram for a period of 20 years from December 2015. An interest free refundable
security deposit of ¥500 lakhs has also been paid during the year 2015-16, which is disclosed under
Long Term Loans and Advances.

Balance in Debtors, Creditors and loans and advances are subject to confirmation / reconciliation.
Receivable in Foreign Currency out of Export sales is subject to reconciliation and consequently
Foreign Currency Valuation gain or loss may vary.

Figures for the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary.
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ANNEXURE | - Referred to in Note No. 2.11
Disclosure in respect of related party pursuant to Accounting Standard 18

Description of relationship Names of related parties
Subsidiaries HLL Biotech Ltd.
GAPL
HITES
Joint Venture LifeSpring Hospitals Private Ltd.
Associates Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust

HLL Management Academy (HMA)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Dr. M. Ayyappan - Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. R.P. Khandelwal - Director (Finance)

Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan - Director (Technical & Operations)
Dr. Babu Thomas - Director (Marketing)

Mr. P. Sreekumar - Company Secretary & SVP (HR)
Mr. R. Ganesan - SVP (F) & CFO
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ANNEXURE Il - Referred to in Note No. 2.11

Disclosures under Accounting Standards-17 SEGMENT REPORTING

1. Primary Segment Information

Segment Revenue

Net Sales & Services

Other Unallocable Revenue

Total

Capital Employed

Profit before Interest & Tax

Less: Interest

Less : Other Unallocable Expenditure

Prior period items

Add : Other Unallocable Income

Profit before tax

Capital Employed

Allocated Fixed Assets (a)

Allocated Current Assets (b)
(a+b)

Allocated Current Liabilities

Capital Employed Allocation

Unallocable portion of Capital

Employed

Total Capital Employed

Contraceptives

42,058.43

7,009.94
1,845.65

5,266.61

17,289.44
42,672.69
59,962.13
18,502.72
41,459.41

Particulars % lakhs

Health Care

23,131.52

435.09
483.68

49.06

6,182.69
23,469.36
29,652.05
10,176.23
19,475.83

2.Secondary Segment Information - Geographical Revenue

India
Outside India

Captial Employed

India
Outside India

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas
Chairman & Director (Marketing)
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401]
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi

26.05.2016

P. Sreekumar

CS & SVP (HR)

[FCS: 5875]

Trading Procurement Contract

and Services Total
Consultancy
Services
15,394.50 17,899.48 6,538.72 1,05,022.64
2,145,44

6,542.79 1,07,168.08

1,029.16 1,866.61 1,328.18 11,669.07
352.27 108.60 1.19 2,872.39
5,095.49

17.43

119.28

676.88 1,758.00 1,326.99 3,803.04

1,114.22 1,990.88 0.74 26,577.97
15,619.33 18,160.90 6,634.21 1,06,556.51
16,733.55 20,151.79 6,634.95 1,33,134.48

6,772.49 7,874.50 2,876.57 46,202.50

9,961.07 12,277.29 3,758.38 86,931.98

(55,822.11)
31,109.87

96,335.68
10,832.40
1,07,168.08

30,485.71
624.16
31,109.87

Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose

Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
SVP (F) & CFO Partner
[FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773

Annual Report 2015-2016

241



66 LLL'VL €0 VPP 9L 66 LLL VL €0 v 9L
/0998l 2L'96C L L0998 L 2L 962 |
ZL8t ZL8t ZL8l AT
29 06 SO Gel 29 06 SO Gel
¥e LOL'L  egevl L 6 L9l L ceevl |
AN 65 Vel VLY 69 VTl
€2 /96'L SS9 clS'e €2 /196 L GG 2/lG'e
82 €6 1202t 82 €6 L2 02t
zL el 86' 9GSt gL Lel 86 9GSt
= Lc /88 = LC /88
9/'2S¥'c €2€9%'e 9L ISv'e €2 699'¢
= 8S 92 = 8G 92
8l /22 €¥'8ss'e 8l /lze'e £¥'855'¢
I8 /8L 06°9¢L 18 vl 06 9t
oY’ Gev G9' 262 oY’ Sev G9' 262
L2'8SY'E  LO V.8 1285t e LO' .8
16°20L VL SL ¥8IL'LL 16204 VL SL V8L LL
00 289 69 6SH L 00 289 65 65k |
WAWA e 2V’ 8G2 L L1 LYS 2y 8se L
8%'832'0} 2L ¥/.6'0lL 878520l 2L ¥.60k
06'/92' L 88600 L 06292 | 88600 |
65 T SLele 65 Ch SLele
69 29¢ ge 06¢ 69 29¢ Ge 06€
78018 ¥6'G68 L #8018 76 G683 |
69 052 0222t 69062 022k
Sl-¥10c 91-G10c SL-710c 91-G10c
péH 1B hixd h Bia

flbren

66 LLL'VL €0 tvviv' 9L
20998 | gL o6e L
rAN]! zL' 8l
2906 SO GEl
76 L9 L eeerl L
AN 69 vl
€2 196" | GG c.9'e
82 €6 1202k
gl el 869Gt
= 12 /88
9/'2St'e €2 69G'e
= 89 ¥9¢2
gl /ze'e [ cleleis:
L8 /L 06 981
ov Gev G9' 262
L2°8SY' € LO 728
16'20L' VL SL ¥8L°LL
00 289 696G L
L2 lvS AT
8%'8G2'0L 2L ¥.6'0L
06 292" | 88600 |
65 2L gLele
69 29¢ GE 06€
78018 76 368" |
690G/ 0Lcclh
Sk-¥10c 91L-G1L0c

Irb hixr h

b

/9°0€8'L SO ¥EE’'S
¥8 9¢e2 90 2¥S
L0 L} L0 L}
ge el 82 G/
81'859 91828
200 200
2S 766 20’886
(v8vL) S 06
L2e 29 Lok
= 8z 081}
08'€6. 80°020" +
= Lg ve
9,652t 62 ESh
20 Sy 69 GE
0982 26 S0l
¥900€'E L0 V.8
€1°09S'L 69662 L
oL €9t 59'89
1568 (20 22)
G860/ St ev.
19292 L9 LGk
0zt 00°G2h
GO0l 2s oSt
0+ 0z 90 66
(g6 10L) sv'e
SlL-¥10c 91-Gl0c
AbR> BPik keie
IRD hiad b

2e Lve' 9
€2 629 |
90 |
1211
9/°€0S
zL'y
12'2.6
LL'80L
L0 821

96859 |
e €49
6. 6¢)
08'96¢
208Gt

8L evI'ElL
68 £2S
718G L
€9'8%5'6
62 000 |

6 L1
S0 LS¢e
72 062

S9'¢S8

SlL-v10c

86°60L LI
90 52
90 +

8/ 69
LL'SLE
pASR 24t

€9 ¥859'¢
Llg' 6¢

9€ GSE
€6'902

SLevs'e
8¢ 0¥c
7L GoL' e
LS Lot
7/, 881

90'G88'G1
76 060 |
71 G682 L
/2 2ec 0l
82 898

Sl 8ve
£8'€5¢2
6896/ |

LS 6L

91-G1L0c

hla ®p e bk Sh kiBle
% Blks IR % RARAIRY

AlbED AYE L hid b | Lelolled b I$h LiRIkERI® 1@ 9LOZ ‘Rlit L€
PR RIS b 1 b Ham2 - 11T [ehEie

RE 1o b |2 Ble

ol WPha TVﬂCTU&U
Lelkth lolkdd Ialbkk
Dlbinlky h kate

bd B2 Mg bd
RSN ATIS STIRN

B Bd b

Rl Magy slabls
EdpRhRAG

220 2k
AR pRD 22 Blbbh b

Hlelfer b l22ep
Blealieyalplpiil
2nlo

Bela:d

22 halkh (2EleSlle

[ERTE
lais > I§ 3lie

Bd rpa e Sle

(le2h b ladpk 2c) Qlbls|kah
RUrbk SibRaBdRAH
PR BA kA S U b

B h Blie alle/Bd Lh Bl kd
PITETIS R EhY

@b Flie § kb biple @ KRle
(2lblRi L) 2 1h Blie

Bd i o B

(3l Bd BA kA p)
r/_xu_\,au Y9N Mn n..u__v_r.ru?/

DDDdb AR
ARG Rinkin |3 2313k Riklte
ABS o Slle

Dlbioled h

Ty RYIE 2015-2016

242



€0 vry'9T
219621
c1'8T
S0'SET
EEEVT'T
6S'VCT
GSCLS'E
L2°0CT
86°9GY
TC'L88

€2°€95°¢
85'179¢
€7'85G°€
06'9€T
§9°¢6¢
T0'7.8

SL V8T LT
65'6ST'T

Zv'8S2'T
2L'v.6'0T
88'600°T
ST'€LE
G€'06€
76°G68'T
0L'¢eT

ST-vT0C

Sa|Ige!T JUBLIND

66'TLT'YT €OVYY'9T 66 TLT'VT
L0'998'T 2T'962'T  L0°998'T
AR’ AR’ ZT'8T
2906 S0'SET 2906
v6'T9T'T  €EEVT'T  ¥6'T9T'T
YTy 65'72T R4
£27/96'T GG'2/S'S  €TL96'T
82'€6 12°02T 82°€6
ZLTET 86'95Y ZLTET
- 12188 -
9/'25v'z  €2'€9S'E  9.°2Sh'T
- 85792
8T'/2€'c €v'8SS'E  8T'LZE'C
T8'v/8T  06°9¢T 18'VLT
ov'Sey 59262 ov'szy
TL'8SV'E  TOV.8 T.8Sv'E
T6'20L'VT SL¥8T'LT  T6720L'T
00°289 6S'6ST'T  00°289
TLLVS — 2¥'8se'T  TLLYS
87'852'0T 2.¥.6'0T  8v'85Z'0T
06'292'T 88'600'T  06,92'T
65°2T ST'ELE 6521
69'L9€ GE'06€ 69'29¢
¥8'0T8  ¥6'S68'T  ¥80T8
69°05. 0.'22T 69°0G/
ST-¥T02 91-GT0Z  ST-¥T0C
ferol
s3lLmavil

66 TLT'VT
L0°998'T
c1'8t
2¢9°06
¥6'TIT'T
14%%
€2°/96'T
82'C6
CL'TET

9/°2sv'e
8T'L2e'C
I8 v.T
ov'Sev
T.°8SP'E

T6°20L'vT
00°289

TL'LVS
87°'85¢'0T
06°292'T
65°CT
69°2,9€
78°0T8
69°0G.

ST-¥10C

€0 vy 9T
29621
¢18t
S0'SET
EEEVT'T
6S9'VCT
GS'CLS'E
L2°0CT
86°99Y
TC'L88

€296
85'179¢
€7°859G°€
06'9€T
§9°¢6¢
T0'v.8

SL V8T LT
65'6ST'T

Zv'8S2'T
2Lv.6'0T
88'600'T
ST'€LE
GE'06€
76'G68'T
0,221

9T-GT0C

S)19SSY [e10L

19°0€8'L
¥8'9€2
10°LT
Ge'eT
81°899
200
25766
(78 ¥T1)
TL€

08°€6L
9/°€SL'T
[40R<17%
09'8¢
79°00€°€

€T°095'T
0T'€9T

15'68€
G8'60L
19°292
0zt
S9°0TT
0102
(s6°T0T)

ST-vT0C

SO'VEE'S
90°¢¥S
L0°LT
8¢'GL
97'8¢8
c0'0
¢0'886
G€'06
¢9'10T
8¢'08T

80°020°'T
Tcve
6C'ESY
69°'G€
¢6°€0T
T0'v.8

69°662'T
G9'89

(c0°'22)
Stzvl
T9'TST
00°G2T
25°9¢€T
90°'66
ev'e

9T-9T0C

S19SSY 1ualind I1aylo

S13SSV
9T0Z Y2Je\ 1STE U0 se uoneiuawsa|dwi japun s1oaloid Jo sanljigqel] pue s1assy
¥T°C 'ON 910N Ul 0] paliajay - [I| FHNXIANNY

2e'TreE'9 86°60T'TT [e101 ynos ai
€2'629'T 90'vS. DN WinJpueAl |
90T 90T uswuedaq asejloap\ [e1o0S
YXAIVA 8.°6S s108loid 18Y10
9/.°€0S LT'STE INHAN
4% LS'VCT 1SIIN
TL2.6 €5'785'¢ OAIN
TT°80T 16'62 anua) Isoue) Jeqeen
10°8¢CT 9€'GSE NLSSH
- €6'90L a1uad ared
Jaoue) Arenlal apo)Iyzoy
96°'859'T ST'eVS'e s108lold eesay
- 8€°01¢ 149491 NC
cr'eLs ¥T'S0T'E JANIC
6L°6CT TC'T0T SNVHAI
08'96€ 7/,°88T VL1LOMHVNVAVING-dll
L0'8ST - 19H
yinos di
8L°CVT'ET 90'G88'ST [el101 YuoN di
68'€2S ¥6°060'T (eured ® yssyiysiy)
109(04d [enuapisay ASSINd
71°89T ¥¥'G82'T Aeyod SINIDd
€9'875'6 12'2€2'0T SdId/SdIN
62°000°T 8¢'858 HSNAY 18pun reybised NHIIN
6E'TT ST1'8V¢ (peqeizen) Odi
G0°LS¢ €8'€G¢ SHOD
¥.°06. 68'96L'T  (ASSING) 269100 [edlpain yreblly
G9'¢S8 LZ'6TT yennp ‘ale)d
19oue) 19y Jeyueg elreyoy
yuoN di

ST-¥102 9T-GT0C

TTH UM ISR J3pUN PlaY s1slold
SsaouReq YURd ® YseD

Annual Report 2015-2016

243



€//¥1g "k 1Bkabh

AlbiSIR

We heh ap

BA0L0000 "k ht

Fﬁwnwﬁ_hwwvg

12 Leh lhy Blk3 & BRI (3
26 vPe'v6 059 19296 26'¥vE ¥6 0S ¥9.'96
02 6.¢ 2L8/9 0T 6.8 2,819
18°060°G9 00 LS+'29 18°060°G9 00 LSt 29
90 ¥€§ 6L v¥9 90 ¥ES 6. v¥9
LEOLE'ZE $672G'GL LLOKEZE  ¥6¥.G'GH
I6'8/8'e  2Z¥9l0'L 198.€'¢ v 910'.
L9 L0 80 LL6'C L9 L0k 80 LI16'C
¥828.'G 80¥66  ¥828.'G 80 ¥66
16162 Ge'2SC L6 6T Ge'2Se
SESLE LE 92 /%2 L €18Le'2lL 9T Lvl'L
¥S Ghy 88'85Y  ¥S G 88'8GY
16999 L2 LY L 267999 WAV
S 0G| L6VEZ &Y 0St L6 VIT
82 €GY 91'9G7 8765 91 9G¥
Y8 YL 16,62  v8 VLl 16162
96 €7¢ IG'669'e  96°EVE 1G'e£9'E
9090}k €0¥g6  90°90. €026
65182 L  L0802'S 6918 L L0802 €
G/ /02 L 66667  GL .02k 66 961
0L ¥69'v2 G8'8YI'22 0LF¥69' v S8 8L 2e

Sl-¥10c 91-G1L0¢ Gl-v102 91-GL0¢

sl

16" PVE 6

0C' 6.¢

18°060°S9

90 €9

LLOkL'gh

Ig'gle'e
L9 L0}
¥828.'S
L6 ¥6¢

ergLe Ll

79 Svy
/6999
er 05}
8¢ €S

78 vl
96 ev¢

90904k
6S 18 L
G/ 102

0L ¥69 e

Sl-710c¢

pd

(£2292 1 @)

(528G : B I i)

9102'50°9¢2
2n) 3l

($2£21100 :2})

Blolgie klpb] b ba (alie b)) BR3Ihe eadb (10vZre00 :ay) blabl P

(py) BRRILS ejp bh bRy lehd (t-lahpy) pladiy b Bzt

Llalale “Mie T AT bhlp Bk Likele ki e

B b b ok
0S'v9/96 €8°8.6'8lL 26°0€lL'6l 60°99€'G. 85 €€9'.L Ll o
2/.'8.9 L9 LE¢ 65 892 €5 LY SLOLY Albiollylh bbbk
00 /S¥'29 9€°9G2'6 658222l 9¥ ¥€8'GS 1¥ 822 0S R |1 Ih
6. %9 0Z e 19'GL 98'¢2tS /1629 Rldns ‘blledb
Elshl Ibodlk] kIR
Y6 ¥.G'GL  8Y /6¥ L GG 2eS .  69¢CL9Y 6S 270’8 12 1 lh Slbbdkdbdlh
v 9L0. 82 68 1C6 €T €62'C G100/ chdy Slbdikdh
80 L16'C 10’8 v0' L2 09 66 ¥0' 88’2 $bax BakdSle|slh
80 166 16°2G9 L1'G8Y 6 vzl'S 16°80G Lblalph b [Rale
Gg' 2S¢ 8y 1 ¥8' 62 6% €92 z5eee JIS1:SYERNI|
Redbd lalkll RIS
9z vl L e oV 196 ZLYLE L 9868. bR LRPK Ibhlie Rl
88 8GY 95 €0+ 95 €0k 86 L¥E 28 9G¢e 2R b bl
LLLLY L 92719 62 LLE 12’509 ¥ 09¢" | blrls] Mk [J05]
16 71e v, 16 €800} 692G SO VL 12 1R Lh Apad S0d Baie
91 9g¥ efefie)fl= 90 El £6'897 oL evv lfexk RIS
. BUSB| lspbie
16162 Gy 18 ¥9' €8 62 €¢ 1298 AN lodblcb |
IGee9's  60°ES €9 L1E /8062 88 Lzg'e 2o ki
[LlRIo1 RSN (MM
€0’ 126 6% 8¢ L1'G2 1G99t G8 868 18 1R [h 22D |Shdkdls
l0g8og'e  8l¢ Gz erl 18°82." | 9/ ¥90'¢ 2hilk BY B k) [o
66 G617 186G/ £6°¢ 88 1€0' | 90 26V bolrhr lnkekb| dbih Ibd RIS
Sg'8vl'ze 61 2SE 68692’z 29 lve've 00 €886l 2R22ME hBIS Bad
Bkl

91-5102  GI-¥10z 91-610z  Sk-vI0Z 91-5102
meW—.h Eﬁ
1RRIhb 3k

Ty RYIE 2015-2016

244



€//%12 : ON diysiequapy
Jauped
d™ "USSHNA 'VO
S010000 ON w4
SJUBJUNO22Y paJaley)d
9sOr @ Weyeiqy 's/IN 104
payoejle ajep uaAd Jo podal Ino apIA

Z6'YYE'Y6 0SVIL'96  TEVVEVE
0268 2,819 0Z'6LE
18°060'S9 00°26%'Z9  18'060°G9
90VES  BLFHY 90°+€S
LLOLL'ZL ¥BVLGSE  LLOLLTL
LG'8LE'E  ZY'OLO'L  LG'BLE'S
L9201 8O'LIE'Z  L97L0L
v8'28.'S  80'%66 ¥8'Z8L'G
L6¥6C  SETST L6'%6C
ELBLELL  9TLVL'L  TLBLELL
va'Sry  88'8GH GGy
16999 VLLIYL 267999
EF0SL  L6FLT 051
8TESy 919Gk 8Z°€Sy
v8vLL 16°26T v8vLL
96°ErE ISEE9'E  96°EVE
90°90L°L  €0'¥Z6 90°902'}
65°18°L  L0'80Z'E  6G18LL
SL°20T°L  66°G6Y §L7202°L
0L'V69'vZ S8'8¥L'ZZ  OL¥69'YT
SI-vL0Z  9L-GLOZ  SL-PLOZ

lesoL

saimavn

[ez292 :vOdl
040 8 (4) dAS
uesaues 'Y

0579296
¢L'8.9
00°2Sv‘29
6.¥¥9

V6 v.S°SGL
Zr'9L0‘.L
80°LL6C
80'V66
Gg€'cse
CIAVA N
88'8G1
LLLLY L
L6Vl
91°9G¥
16°'/6¢
LG'EEI'E
€0°v¢6
L0'goz’e
66°G6Y

G8'8¥L‘ze

SGl-v10c

sanljiqel juaung

L6 PVEV6
0c'6Le
18°060°S9
90'vES
ZL0LLCL
LG'8/€'e
197201
¥8'28.2°G
16'v6¢C

€L8LELL

12°A°144
16'999

€¥'0S1
8C'€SY

8Ll
96°€vE

90°90Z°}L
6S°182°L
§.°20Z°L

0lL'¥69°vC

Gl-v10¢C

0579296
¢L'819
00°2S¥‘Z9
6.¥v9

6 7.5'SL
Zr'9Lo‘L
80°LL6C
80766
Gg€'cse
CIAVAN
88'8GY
LLLLY'L
L6Vl
91°9G¥
16°'/6¢
LG'EEI'E
€0°vc6
L0'goz’e
66°G6Y

§8'8vL‘ce

91-G10¢

sj}assy |ejol

[6/8G :804l
(YH) dAS 8 SO
Jewnysais d

€8°8.6'Sl 26°0€L'6l
19°L€E 65'89¢
9€'962°6 65°822°C1L
oc'le 1961
8 L6V L GG'2eS .
8C'G8 12°6
10’8 v0°LC
16°,99 ,1°98%
8v'LE ¥8'6¢C
Lv'e 0’196
96°¢col 96°eol
9/.'1l9 6C°LLL
V.16 €e°00}
G9'GlL- 90°€lL
Gv'L8 79°€8
60°€S €o'Lle
67°8€ ,1°G¢
8L'¢C gcerl
18°'G/L1 €6°¢C
6%°'2S¢€ G8'G9¢'C
SlL-¥102 91-G102
S}9SSY juaiing 19Y3l0

S13SSV

[Lovere00 :NIal
(Bunaxsen) 1030011Qq
sewoy] nqeg iQ

9102'S0°'9¢2
1yI2a MeN

[r2€21100:NIA]
Joyoaug buibeuepy
» uewlieyd
ueddeAAy "\ 1Q

pieog 8y} 4O jjeysq uo pue Jo-

60°99€°GL 8G°€€9°LL |ejol puei
[ eWA4 el oLy sjosfold surooeA
9’ v€8'SS L¥'822°0S 1ejol add
98°CLS /11°629 leydwi ‘seousiog
[e2IPBIA JO BiNjiIsu| [euolBay
69°CL9'V 6€£°210'8 add ASSINd
€2'e6e'e G1°200°2 ¢ 3SVHd ASSIANd
0966 ¥0'¥88°C Yeyoy SNIOd
z6'veL's 16°80S S103rodd s43H10
6¥'€9¢2 c¢g'eee euefieH
‘UOISSIIN Yl|BaH [einy |euoheN
ZLPLE'LL 98°'G8. uoleloosse
juswabeuew Ja)ses|p jeuoneN
86°LYE 2e'SSe add OOVN
12°509 €°09€°L Iyiea
Jo uoneisodio) jedpiuniy
69CS SovLL add dlwysey @ nwwep
£6'89% oLevy $90U89|g uone|ndod Jo
ajn}isu| [euoljeulaju|
6E°€e 142454 NOILVZINNII
18062 88'Lze'e Iyiea
‘A1oyuuey |eydes jeuoneN 'JA09
1G7299°L G8'868 add aloo dAsio
188211 92%90°¢ HNdOVN H 8 DN
88°1€0°L 90°'26Y uonesiueybio |013uod
pJepuels Bnip |eiuad
29'Lve've 00°€88°'6l JLNLILSNI IMITSNIY
adcd
Sl-¥10C 9l-Gl0¢C
TIH YM3sNg JBpUN PloY Seelele)

saouejeq yueg g ysen

Annual Report 2015-2016

245



TSEM TUS Sl forer garda ¥, FregR - 680001
S AR GRHIY : 0487-2423225, 2426225 thery : 0487-2424245
$-9a : trc_aajca@sancharnet.in

www.abrahamandjose.com

W3l Eraeieal Bl Ruaid
TITATA ATSHhhIR foIlfes & "=l &l

e facia favor = Rai

B QYU AShR folfics (d16 3§ gROT U & WY § A&d), SHS FHIH (TR0 U AR IHS TN
S BT ST AT b 1 U & HU H Al MR Fgh wu I FRIFT wxmell & do e i faavor 3
SEuIeT 31 2, fFH 31 |19 2016 T & FHfbd JaTudl, FHfed o iR 817 &1 fJavor, e 39 a¥ & |Hfda
Thal JaTE [qaRT 3iR H1efeh T Al Ud 3 ARG a1 b1 AR (I8 H FHfpd ORI favor & wa 4
Hefia) Fafe 2 |

afha faxia faaxor & forv ugea &1 SaxeTRie

gRUT HU BT Feed  Hed, dou ffafes, 2013 (a1e 4 ffafes & wu § 6afid) & smerell & IfaR 7
Fafdrd fa<ig faavor o Gt & fog SoRerh & & dut (o) frem, 2014 & frm 7 & a1 ufsd «ifdfrm @t
gRT 133 & o1efie faffee Jar 9Me dfed 9RA § 9= w9 9 WieR 50 okar Rigial & SR §g® w9
¥ FrRifya vt afed gu & Ffea i Rf - aafea o frore ok aafea Toe gare & 98 &R we
gfe qarel s U A et gY Hulal & W feve dsa iR swal WY w9 o FRifyd wa gu @
R¥FuRRTa @t GRem & ST & Yaurl & STIHR UATK olvdT Tfieial & STReTT & oy oiik eRamerst vd o
Srfraficarsil @l A iR uar e, S o ifcl @1 = iR smded, Sfea vd fdeyef frofa &R erge
T R ST vd fAgeqel o7 &R Srga o SR S srfaRe faxiia frizmr @1 fesrg, s g
STRETYT o forg foeR € 6 A <ivar sif¥reral Y gegan oiR Quidn g &= & fofg gwrdl €91 & gearer &) 38
2, focfia faaro & Gar oiR aeiaxvr & fofg Ed & foh % Wl vd frwaer gfe 3an 2 oiR aonifars Tad
feRor 4 e 2, S Suyh MR dul b el gRT i faxiia fJavor & Gl & Seg & fofg SuanT fean
TR

TETIRIETh] BT SRR
TR TRITINIET &b MR 39 FHfhd fay fAaRo IR I 2wh HRA1 8HRT SRS 8 | SRITANIET AT R

& IR, &9 AT & Uraem=l by ea § @7 8, S¥fSfH iR 9P 1ehF a9 ¥ Rt b uraen=i & e
ETeT RUe # suféd U & et Y ST arel oRgied, TETIRIET Hedl 3R AT e fhar T g

B Mffem o a1 143(10) & o1 fafafds oarodien AMal & STER MU SRaTuRie Jorl | S Ja
srferd @xd € fop &9 T rdemail o1 srguTerd B MR Ife Fferd faxii faavor yeuer e faeroll 4 976 & S
G SfUd M U R B TR TR HRAT SR wnfad wev |

Ud TGMRIET §, Afhd iy favon § 367 iR UHSIa)ol & Hae § SRARIe YA YT $R Bofy fwre=
A enfiet € | Tafa uforamrd wuc a1 el & BT AHfhd faxi fJavvn & ueger s gul & SiReT &
R wfed oamaieral & Mol 9= enfia & 1S9 SRew iRt & a9 H SRaTasieTd I@rasier ufehany, S 8
aRFRIRRI  IfEd 8, @1 a3 @1 AR iz Hut & wfed =i f[avvl &1 TR ofR JRgeiiexor o Ea

3T FRIFT R faaR &=l & | araie 3, 9gw oIl il B SuGhl BT Gedid AR R0 $u=t & feere

Hed §RT SR ol 3ol & Sifaey & iR faxii faavoil & wqot sgdiavor &1 qeaie o e g1

2 faar o € 5 BAR g1 U SIara=Ien J707 JiR 1 & o1 Al tRT & 39 - W7 (&) ¥ Aafia S9at et
P FTAR A TAIRIETD] GRT AT IATIRIET JHT0T FHfdpa faxiiy fgeror oR gaR ufiee el & oy ue smar
UM HRA Bl HATE SR SR § |

Ty RYIE 2015-2016
246



ABRAHAM & JOSE Mission Quarters Road, Thrissur-680001
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Tel : 0487-2423225, 2426225, Fax : 0487-2424245
Email : trc_aajca@sancharnet.in

www.abrahamandjose.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HLL LIFE CARE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of HLL LIFE CARE LIMITED (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (The Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as the “Group”) and jointly controlled entity, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Group including Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and its jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

In the case of Goa Antibiotics and Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (GAPL),a subsidiary, due to the absence of sufficient
appropriate audit evidence, it was unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been necessary
on the accounts in respect of the following cases:

a. Adequacy of provision maintained against outstanding receivables in the absence of an age wise analysis
report with customer wise analysis of outstanding;

b. Inadequate internal controls and accounting procedures followed by the company in respect of certain
units as stated in Note No. C.8 and inability to obtain proper records and documents from certain units not
visited by the statutory auditors of the subsidiary;

The management of GAPL has revised the financial statements of the company in order to rectify the discrepancies
pointed out by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India in their supplementary audit C& AG vide letter
dated 08" July 2016 directed the holding company to revisit the consolidated financial statements to include the
impact of the revision of financial statements by GAPL on the consolidated financial statements. The overall
impact of the revision on various items of consolidated financial statements is considered not material by the
management and hence the effect of such revision has not been incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements. Had the revised financial statements of GAPL been incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements, the effect of various items of consolidated financial statements would have been as under :

Sl.No. Particulars Impact (%) Increase/(Decrease
Rs.in Lacs)

1 Profit Before Tax (PBT) -2.32% (-) 97.69

2. Profit After Tax (PAT) -1.55% (-) 48.03

3. Reserves & Surplus -0.19% (-) 48.02

4, Minority Interest -2.72% () 41

5 Deferred Tax Liabilities 0.60% 6.59

6. Current Liabilities 0.03% 28.64

7. Non-Current Liabilities 0.00% () 0.18

8. Current Assets 0.02% 17.08

In veiw of the observation of C& AG, our audit report dated 30th May 2016 has been revised.
QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group, and jointly controlled entity as at 31st March, 2016, and their consolidated profit and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
We draw attention to the following:

1) There is uncertainity on final prices applicable for supplies made by the Holding Company to
Government of India, during the year 2015-16, as the same is yet to be notified by the Government
and accordingly the effect of the same has not been considered in the financial statements, and
in respect of supplies for the previous years, though the Government has sought recovery of price
difference from the Holding Company to the extent of ¥30.65 crores, the Company has raised
objections and has not provided for the same in the financial statements.

2) There is delay in capitalization of the Uni-pill Plant being setup by the Holding Company at
Kanagala, Belgaum which was scheduled to be commissioned in January 2012. There is also a
“cost overrun of Rs. 24.02 crores, the recoverability of the same has been assessed by the
management of the Holding Company and not provided for.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
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OTHER MATTERS

(a) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of three subsidiaries and one jointly
controlled entity, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets (net asset) of
T 28069.29 lacs as at 31st March, 2016, total revenues of .7684.78 lacs and net cash outflows amounting
to T.8722.96 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entity, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

(b) Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements / financial information certified by the
Management.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and, except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors.

(c) Except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph relating to the
effect of revision of financial statements by one subsidiary not being considered in the consolidated financial
statements, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.

(f) In view of the exemption given vide naotification No. G.S.R 463 (E) dated June 05, 2015, issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164 (2) of the Act, are not applicable to the Holding Company and
in case of other Companies, on the basis of report of the statutory auditors of the respective Companies of
the Group and jointly controlled entity incorporated in India, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(9) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above.

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
jointly controlled entity and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
'Annexure A' and

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Group and its jointly controlled entities have disclosed the impact of the pending litigations on its
financial position in the Consolidated Financial Statements -Refer Note No. C.7, and C.9 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

ii. Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the Group, and jointly controlled entities did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entity incorporated in

India.
For Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000010S)
Place: Chennai Mukesh. K.P.
Date: 27.07.2016 Partner (M. No. 214773)
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 (h) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent
Auditors Report of even date to the members of HLL Lifecare Limited (“the Company") on the consolidated
financial statementsof HLL Lifecare Limited, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31t March 2016, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HLL LIFECARE
LIMITED (‘'The Holding Company") its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entity which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled
entity, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the esstential components of the internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparatin of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013. ("the Act")

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Control over Financial Reporting (the '‘Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respecs.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivenes. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports preferred to the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide ab
basis for our audit opinion on internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company,
iits subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that :

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detailsm accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company ; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internaol financial controls over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in conditons, or that the degree of compliance with policies or
procedure may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidary companies and jointly controlled entity which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India, considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under section 143 (3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relate to three subsidiaries and one jointly
controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the
auditors of such companies incprporated in India.

For Abraham and Jose
Chartered Accountants

(FRN 000010S)
Place : Chennai Mukesh. K.P
Date : 27.07.2016 Partner (M.No. 214773)
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Office of he Principal Director of Commercial
Audit & Ex-officio Member Audit Board-IV, New Delhi
File No. 444-PDCA/HS/MAB-IV/Consolidated/HLL Lifecare Ltd/AA/2016-17

Date: 05.08.2016

CONFIDENTIAL
To

The Chairman and Managing Director,
HLL Lifecare Ltd.

HLL Bhavan, Poojapura P.O.
Thiruvananthapuram-695012

Sub : Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6) (b) of the Companies
Act, 2013 on the Consolidated Financial Statements of HLL Lifecared Limited for the year
ended 315 March 2016.

Sir,

I am to enclose herewith the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6) (b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Consolidated Financial Statements of HLL Lifecared Limited for the year
ended 31% March 2016.

The receipt of the letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

(Ritika Bhatia)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-Officio Member, Audit Board-IV

Encl : As above

8th & 9th Floor, Annexure Building, 10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
Tel : 23239413, 23239415, 23239419, 23239420, Fax : 23239416
Email : manNewdelhi4@cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS ON THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECION 143 (6) (b)
READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF HLL LIFECARE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2016.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2016 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditor/auditors appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is/are responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of the Act based on independent audit in accordance
with the standares on auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by
them vide their revised Audit Report dated 27.07.2016.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of Inda, have conducted a supplementary audit under section
143 (6)(a) read with section 129 (4) of the Act of the consolidated financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2016. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of HLL Infra Tech
Services Limited, HLL Biotech Limited and Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended on that
date. Further, section 139 (5) and 143 (6) (b) of the Act are not applicable to LifeSpring Hospitals (P) Limited being
private entity for appointment of their Statutory Auditor nor for conduct of supplementary audit. Accordingly, C & AG
has neither appointed the Statutory Auditors nor conduted the supplementary audit of this company. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory
auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and the company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowlege which would give rise to any comment upon
or supplement to statutory auditors' report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Ritika Bhatia)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member Audit Board-IV

Place : New Delhi
Date :05.08.2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2016

Particulars

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds

(@) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

= >

2. Share application money pending allotment
Minority Interest
4. Non-current liabilities

(@) Long-term borrowings

(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net)

(c) Long-term provisions

w

5. Current liabilities
(@) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions

6. Advances Received for Projects held under Trust
as per contra

TOTAL
B. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(@) Fixed assets

i) Tangible assets
i) Intangible assets
iif) Capital work-in-progress
iv) Intangible asset under development
v) Goodwill on consolidation

(b) Non-current investments
(c) Long Term Loans and Advances
(d) Other Non-Current assets
2. Current assets
(@) Inventories
(b) Trade receivables
(c) Cash and cash equivalents
(d) Short-term loans and advances
(e) Other current assets

3. Cash and Bank balances of Projects held under
Trust as per contra
TOTAL
Significant Accounting Policies
Explanatory Notes to Financial Statement

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar
Chairman & Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR)
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875]
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi

26.05.2016
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Note No ASAT ASAT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
3 29,041.50 19,353.50
4 25,289.35 22,656.13
54,330.85 42,009.63
- 4,000.00
151.07 87.12
5 4,726.49 5,997.11
6 1,092.33 1,225.22
7 159.19 131.67
5,978.01 7,354.00
8 44,417.78 37,669.84
9 23,848.73 23,420.14
10 18,213.09 21,198.83
11 1,782.58 1,809.98
88,262.18 84,098.79
100,606.27 74,223.93
249,328.38 211,773,47
12
24,245.94 23,380.35
735.96 886.99
34,319.03 14,880.06
969.06 709.13
481.55 541.74
60,751.54 40,398.27
13 2.25 2.25
14 1,093.36 127,05
15 386.85 711.93
16 10,091.93 10,328.49
17 61,887.02 64,071.85
18 5,169.86 13,009.81
19 8,862.68 8,316.62
20 476.63 583.27
86,488.12 96,310.04
100,606.27 74,223.93
249,328.38 211,773.47
1
2
Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
SVP (F) & CFO Partner
[FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Particulars

1. Revenue from operations (gross)
Less: Excise duty
Revenue from operations (net)

2. Other income

Total revenue (1+2)

4. EXxpenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,

work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

(d) Employee benefits expense
(e) Finance costs
() Depreciation and amortisation expense
(g) other expenses
(h) Contract Expenses
Total expenses

5. Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional and extra
ordinary items and tax (3-5)

6. Exceptional items

7. Profit/(Loss) before extra ordinary items
and tax (6-7)

8. Extra-ordinary item

9. Profit/(Loss) before tax (8-9)

10. Tax expenses :
(a) Current tax expenses for current year
(b) Current tax expenses relating to prior years
(c) MAT Credit Entitlement
(d) Deferred tax

@9

11.
12.
13.

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Minority Interest on Net Income

Profit/ (Loss) for the year after taxes & minority
interest

14. Earnings per share (%) - Basic

(Face value of ¥ 10/- share)
- Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. Babu Thomas
Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016

[FCS: 5875]

P. Sreekumar
CS & SVP (HR)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

Note No Year ended Year ended
31-03-2016 31-03-2015
X lacs) X lacs)
21 113,825.19 111,363.76
1,089.54 810.69
112,735.65 110,553.07
22 816.33 455.49
113,551.98 111,008.56
23 24,613.21 22,178.93
24 26,887.33 21,484,71
25 (175.35) 1,857.15
26 16,740.84 15,913.83
27 2,940.78 2,583.88
12 3,840.45 3,185.74
28 28,445.20 29,057.49
6,039.51 11,351.99
109,331.96 107,613.72
4,220.01 3,394.84
17.54 (508.28)
4,202.48 3,903.12
4,202.48 3,903.12
1,334.55 980.11
(169.23) (157.67)
- (157.43)
(132.88) (75.79)
1,032.44 589.22
3,170.04 3,313.90
63.95 46.82
3,106.09 3,267.08
C.1 1.22 1.69
C.1 1.22 1.69
1
2
Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P

Partner
Membership No : 214773

SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
X lacs) X lacs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before extraordinary items and tax and excluding minority
interest 4,138.53 3,856.30
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 3,840.45 3,185.74
Exceptional items for Depreciation - (508.28)
Loss on sale of fixed assets 1.48 14.66
Profit on sale of fixed assets (4.71) (4.52)
Finance costs 2,940.78 2,583.88
Interest Income (150.03) (92.78)
Operating profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 10,766.49 9,035.00
Changes in working capital :
Adjustments for (increase/(decrease) in operating assets :
Inventories 236.56 1,524.97
Trade receivables 2,184.83 (19,545.23)
Short-term loans and advances (162.04) 1,837.56
Long-term loans and advances (966.31) 2,063.09
Other current assets 106.64 (77.85)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities :
Trade payables 428.59 11,931.64
Other current liabilities (2,985.75) 2,945.30
Long-term provisions 27.52 19.60
Short-term provisions (168.53) 454.06
9,468.00 10,188.14
Cash flow from extra ordinary items - -
Cash generated from operations 9,468.00 10,188.14
Net Income tax (paid)/refunds (1,132.54) (632.84)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 8,335.47 9,555.30
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital Work in Progress (19,438.97) (5,819.99)
Investment in fixed assets (4,779.33) (7,729.01)
Sale of fixed assets 27.80 8.42
Interest received 150.03 92.78
Changes in other non-current assets 42.43 (44.84)
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more
than one year) (49.05) (41.90)
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) (24,047.09) (13,534.54)
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Year ended Year ended

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payment to Minority Interest

Proceeds from other short-term borrowings
Investment from Govt. of India

Finance cost - Interest paid

Dividend paid

Tax on dividend

Statements) included in Note 18

* Comprises

(@) Cashon hand

(b) Balances with bank
(i) InDeposit accounts
(i) Incurrent accounts
(i) In EEFC accounts
(i) In OD accounts

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
X lacs) X lacs)
(1,270.62) (2,790.26)
63.95 46.82
6,747.94 3,800.61
5,688.00 4,000.00
(2,940.78) (2,583.88)
(387.07) (387.07)
(78.80) (78.80)
Net Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) 7,822.62 2,097.42
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (7,889.00) (1,881.82)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,217.34 14,599.16
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,828.34 12,717.34
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balancesheet :
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Not 14) 5,169.86 13,009.81
Less : Bank balances not considered as cash and cash
equivalents as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements 341.52 292.47
Net cash and cash equivalents (as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow
4,828.34 12,717.34
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*
31.53 18.99
3,074.72 11,199.99
1,501.06 1,167.35
207.89 296.61
13.14 34.40
4,828.34 12,717.34

Notes :

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the AS - 3
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2 The previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary in order to conform to this year’s

presentation.

3 Transactions of project funds held under Trust and balance of ¥100,606.27 lacs (previous year
374,223.93 lacs) are not included in the Cashflow.

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &

For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR) SVP (F) & CFO Partner
[DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773

Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016
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Note 3 Share Capital (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 30,00,00,000 Nos.

(b) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of I 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos.
Equity shares of I 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos.

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of I 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos.
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos.

Reconciliation of Share Capital

Equity Share Capital

Authorized

Opening Balance

Additions

Closing Balance

Issued

Opening Balance

Additions

Closing Balance
Subscribed & Paid up
Opening Balance

Additions

Closing Balance

Description

Total

AS AT 31.03.2016

No. of
shares

30,00,000.00

3000,00,000.00

1935,35,000.00
968.80.000.00
2904,15,000.00

1935,35,000.00
968,80,000.00
2904,15,000.00

% lacs

30,000.00

30,000.00

19,353.50
9,688.00
29,041.50

19,353.50
9,688.00
29,041.50

AS AT
31.03.2016

% lacs

30,000.00

29,041.50

29,041.50

29,041.50

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

30,000.00

19,353.50

19,353.50
19,353.50

AS AT 31.03.2015

No. of
shares

30,00,000.00

30,00,000.00

1935,35,000.00

1935,35,000.00

1935,35,000.00

1935,35,000.00

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of shareholder

Govt. of India

AS AT 31.03.2016

Number of
shares held Holding

2904,15,000
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% of

100%
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3 lacs

30,000.00

30,000.00

19,353.50

19,353.50

19,353.50

19,353.50

AS AT 31.03.2015

Number of
shares held

1935,35,000

% of
Holding

100%



fooroft 4 s o SRYY (RFAfeA)

IEGR| 31.03.2016 &% 31.03.2015 A&
T o § T omai |
(®) BT AMIITE SRS (FTHIMR) 3MRET00
3T Iy - 36.80
Sire: a9 & SR gRaeH/sidaRor 173 -
=F: 99 &b SR A IR H sfdaRa - 36.80
sifed 9 1.73 -
(@) maier FHIBRoT STRET0T 129 74 129 74
(71) | 3RET
1T Y 22 526 .39 19,708 54
SIS : oM g B & fgavor 7 orfeRiy & sfaRkd 2,631.49 280122
SIS : 9§ & IR A U9 R ¥ AaRd - 36.80
I YeUg HHASH-bu A, 2013
B ST I (20.17)
sifem 9w 25,157 .88 22 ,526.39
(=) 9 9 =Y & faaxor A ferey)/(amen)
YT AT - -
SIS : g9 ity am/(=1) 3,106.09 326710
B GBS ERRSIK TN
AR IR GRS Bl IRdTad e (I T 10/~ & afd ¥RR,
% 0.1333 7 a¥ y¥% % 10/- & ufd ¥RR, % 0.20) 387 .07 387 .07
SATHIY IR hY 8580 78.80
SiaRa -
AR & fory emeror 173 =
A ARET0T 2,631.49 280122
sifeH 9 - -
Pl 25,289 .35 22,656.14
feoqoft 5 diefwrfers Sur (WAfe)
faa=or 31.03.2016 @& 31.03.2015 &
T ol | T ot |
() smafers ot (wfrye)
el ga1 07 - fya 752 62 1,655.33
TUAT 0T 227417 344777
(@) |rafy o1 (smfiye) 27157 277 41
(1) 3ra kor T M
(i) faceh ga1 e @t Ara-SuR 1,409.70 599.10
(ii) mfaygfar s 16.39 1546
(iii) Fffer ST OR =TSt 204 204
P 4,726 .49 5.997 .11
i RUiE 2015-2016
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Note 4 Reserves and surplus (Consolidated)

Particulars ASAT ASAT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
T lacs % lacs

(a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) reserve

Opening balance - 36.80
Add : Additions/transfers during the year 1.73 -
Less : Transferred during the year to General Reserve - 36.80
Closing balance 1.73 -
(b) Dividend Equalisation Reserve 129.74 129.74
(c) General Reserve
Opening balance 22,526.39 19,708.54
Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 2,631.49 2,801.22
Add : Transferred during the year from CSR - 36.80
Less : Depreciation adjustment - Schedule 1l of Companies Act, 2013 - (20.17)
Closing balance 25,157.88 22,526.39

(d) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance - -
Add : Profit/ (Loss) for the year 3,106.09 3,267.10
Less : Proposed Dividend

Dividend proposed to equity shareholders (30.1333 per share

of 10/- each, Previous year T 0.20 per share of 3 10/- each) 387.07 387.07
Tax on dividend 85.80 78.80
Transferred to :
Reserves for CSR 1.73 -
General Reserve 2,631.49 2,801.22
Closing balance - -
Total 25,289.35 22,656.14
Note 5 Long-term borrowings (Consolidated)
Particulars AS AT AS AT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(@) Term Loans (Secured)
Foreign currency loan-Secured 752.62 1,655.33
Rupee Loan 2,274.17 3,447.77
(b) Term loan (Unsecured) 271.57 277.41
(c) Other loans and Advances
(i) Foreign currency Buyers Credit 1,409.70 599.10
(i)  Security Deposits 16.39 15.46
(iii)  Interest on Security Deposits 2.04 2.04
Total 4,726.49 5,997.11
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(i) uret dieipifers SR & Waw H <Y g ufenyfar & faawor
= afenyfar & o 31.03.2016 @& 31.08.2015 d&

Jpl | AMaftie For

et 77 or (®) 9 T 7B (TIAYATA) BT BISHR
HUT BT 3T UREURIAT IR oH
Tt |

e 9% o sfear & (@) ST (Tagevd) @ 4T ) 1,756.13 2,929 51
RIS e |

(1) YoTRT, RIeawqR (Taveud) &
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w9 H ARI® 65 |
BT A FoT IR &S] thaex] - JIeRTYRA FiaeT, 2924 53 3,901 26
g I U% A §E A TP & T aR & € Fe,
BT (TATATA) & AT i
fafemior gfte & o1 9 @< 99
HURT TR HH ATt |
e 9% ot T & (@) gee ®t 4f Afer, g W 7eH 38158 564 08
IR 3= @rET & AMRID G §IRT
afrd | FI5 SR TR, TN
SURRYT, golfdehel AT, BraR 3R
(7rer gt ad & W Hd

fafiice) o1 @iffts due g1 wknd

e 9% o sfear & () MESHREA dra (Urgae) fofiics 107.30 167 .02
- gee B Y PR iR RudTe
SUHRTT B ARA B 3R wfaya

o1 9 Fo1 Amafed For 5,169 .54 7,561 .87

T ¢ ST 12 wEH # <7
e SIS BT AT A3

P wY H {ET S 214275 245877

12 7EHl & a8 < 3,026.79 5,103.10

=T T SR I

AT BT ARI-SHR RS ST A wfd 14,149 94 10,441.18

YA : AHBIAD SYR 12,740 24 9,842.08
1,409.70 599.10
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(i) Details of security provided in respect of the secured long-term borrowings :

Particulars

Term loan from banks :
Foreign currency loan

From State Bank of India

Rupee Term Loan
From HDFC Bank

From State bank of India

From State Bank of India

Total - Term loan from banks

Less : Payable within next 12
months treated as Current
Liabilities

Payable after 12 months

Other loans and advances :
Buyers Credit

Less : Short Term Borrowings

Details of security*

(a) First charge over the fixed
assets of the company
excluding Land & Buildings (HLL)

(b) Equitable Mortgage over the
land at Noida (HLL)

(c) Equitable Mortgage as
collateral over the land with
building at Poojappura,
Trivandrum. (HLL)

First charge over movable assets
purchased out of the loan at
Peroorkada Factory-Balaramapuram
facility, Corporate R & D Centre at
Akkulam, Sanitary Napkin Manu-
factoring unit at Kanagala (HLL)

(d) Secured by an equitable mortgage
of leasehold rights of the land, building
and other structures on the land,
Hypothecation of plant & machinery,
laboratory equipments, electrical
Installations, furniture & fixtures,
vehicles and other movable assets,
(Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals
Limited

(e) Secured against Hypothecation of
Lease Hold Rights & Hospital
Equipmemts-Life Spring Hospitals

(P) Ltd

Secured by Project Deposits

AS AT
31.3.2016

1,756.13

2,924.53

381.58

107.30
5,169.54

2,142.75
3,026.79

14,149.94
12,740.24

1,409.70

AS AT
31.3.2015

2,929.51

3,901.26

564.08

167.02
7,561.87

2,458.77
5,103.10

10,441.18
9,842.08
599.10

Note : Foreign Currency Buyers Credit are for Capital item procurement, eligible for roll over upto three
years subject to availability, or else shall be converted into sanctioned Term Loan.
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feoqoft 6 orar AFH-22 & N UBSHRU-IT W B F oI o (FAfha)

faaRor 31.03.2016 @& 31.03.2015 d&

T o | % ol |

IMRART B () /AR¥uRwET

o™ (1,842 91) (2,013.53)

MRAAT HY IIAT I dTell H&I & HY YHIG (1,842.91) (2,013 53)

MRAAIT B IAT 99 dTeil HG&l & HY YHIT

4l 3R TE. Y

dfeme %o & forg wrauT 739 50 707 47

AR qHRT & AT Traem - 2942

a9 & forT graem 2078 1428

= (9.70) 37.14

JRIRTT FR g arell aRTFURTET & AGT & B J91G 75058 788 31

faa smRafia B (San)/aR<ak (1,092.33) (1,225 .22)

feuoft 7 Sdwifers uaum™ (W)

= 31.03.2016 @& 31.03.2015 aF

T ol § T ol o

(%) HHARY BrIaar & foIw wraem :

(i) frsares menRa da9 & fog wraem= 121.78 131 67

(i) SUSH & forg uraem= 521 -

(i) 9 $ v MrET & fog graem 3220 -
159.19 131 .67
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Note 6 Disclosures under Accounting Standards - 22 Accounting for Taxes on Income (Consolidated)

ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Deferred tax (liability)/asset
Depreciation (1,842.91) (2,013.53)
Tax effect of item constituting deferred tax liability (1,842.91) (2,013.53)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
V.R.S. Payment - -
Provision for doubtful debts 739.50 707.47
Provision for Overtime arrear - 29.42
Provision for Bonus 20.78 14.28
Others (9.70) 37.14
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 750.58 788.31
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset (1,092.33) (1225.22)
Note 7 Long-term provisions (Consolidated)
ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Provision for employee benefits :
(i) Provision for Performance related pay 121.78 131.67
(i) Provision for gratuity 5.21 -
(iii) Provision for group EL Premium 32.20 -
159.19 131.67
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e W Ry IfeRT &R et
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wrgfehed foifics @ g W iy
ERT Uiy
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Note 8 Short-term borrowings (Consolidated)

AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
% lacs
(a) Loans repayable on demand (Cash Credit)
From State Bank of India - Secured 8,299.04
From Canara Bank 3.26
From HDFC Bank 3,284.23
Total 11,586.53
(b) Short Term Loans from Banks - Secured-Overdraft
From Canara Bank 7,500.00
From Indusind Bank -
From SBI 7,500.00
Total 15,000.00
(c) Other loans and advances - Secured
Foreign Currency Buyers Credit 12,740.24
(d) Interest accred and due
State Bank of India 47.87
Canara Bank 35.35
HDFC Bank -
Total 39,409.99
(e) Short term foreign currency loan from SBT-Unsecured 5,007.79
Total 44,417.78
Notes : (i) Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings :
AS AT
Particulars Nature of security 31.03.2016
% lacs
Loans repayable on demand from
banks :
SBI 8,259.32
Parri passu charge over current
assets of the company. Equitable
Mortgage as collateral over the 3.26
Canara Bank land with building at Poojappura,
HDFC Bank Trivandrum towards State Bank 3,284.23
of India
From SBI Hypothecation of Lease Hold 10.11

Short Term Loans from Banks -
Secured Overdraft

From Canara Bank

From Indusind Bank

From SBI

Other Loans and Advances :
Buyers Credit
Less : Long Terms Borrowings

Rights & Hospital Equipments-Life

Spring Hospitals (P) Ltd.

Secured by Lease land of Goa Govt

-Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals 29.61
Ltd

585885

Secured by Project Deposits (HLL) -
7,547.87

15.083.22

Secured by Project Deposits (HLL) 14,149.94
1,409.70
12,740.24

Total 39,409.99
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AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

13,765.84
4,811.89
4,206.25

22,783.98

2,500.00

2,492.52
4,992.52

9,842.08

15.40
35.86

37,669.84

37,669.84

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

13,753.56

4,827.29
4,242.11

12.28

2,500.00

2,492.52
4,992.52

10,441.18
599.10
9,842.08

37,669.84
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Note 9 Trade Payables (Consolidated)

AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
Trade payables :
for materials, services and expenses
- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 865.13
- Others 22,983.60
Total 23,848.73
Note 10 Other current liabilities (Consolidated)
AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note (i) below) 2,142.75
(b) Others
Advance from Customers/Clients 4,874.20
EMD & Security Deposits 3,526.28
Interest Accrued but not due 62.80
Fixed Deposit 0.10
Other Liabilities 7,604.27
Contributory Pension Scheme -
Income Received in Advance 0.65
Deposits from laboratories & Pharmacies 2.04
Total 18,213.09

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

238.03
23,182.11

23,420.14

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs
2,458.77

10,717.51
2,611.20
31.65
0.10
5,346.93
29.23
117

2.27
21,198.83

Note (1) : Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Notes (i) in Note 5 - Long-term borrowings for details

of security) :

AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
Term loans
Rupee Term Loan 991.75
Foreign Currency Term Loan 1,151.00
Total 2,142.75
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fewgoft 11 srcueifers e (FfPpa)

= 31.032016 & 31.03.2015 &

T i A Tt |

(%) HHaAR) fRaem & forg wraem -
(i) 99 3R Uicared & forg wraers 244 13 129 91
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Note 11 Short-term provisions (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs 3 lacs

(a) Provision for employee benefits :
(i) Provision for bonus and incentive 244.13 129.91
(i) Provision for Perks & Allowance 310.43 134.34
(iii) Provision for gratuity 423.20 822.19
(iv) Provision for group EL Premium 171.97 231.82
1,149.73 1,318.26

(b) Provision - Others :

(i) Provision for proposed equity dividend 387.07 387.07
(i) Provision for tax on proposed dividends 85.78 78.80
(iii) Provision for taxation 160.00 25.85
632.85 491.72
Total 1,782.58 1,809.98

Annual Report 2015-2016
283



02 0€6 66988
66988 96°G€L
.S Y 92 /2
99 Ly o' GG
1/°€08 12 €59
€9°6¥9'81L  G€08€'€T
G 08€'€2  ¥6° She ve
20 89¢ | 9z 2ze’ |
66 16 62 621
16628 8218
122y 05 9¢
1/°€G9 91'€G5
81 ¥8¢ | €6 L0 |
9,088 kL 8Zerl kL
SL LK €9
96'828'9 6L 2ry'8
2820/ 89 ¥69
¥S 265 ¥S 265
b RIR 3 b RIR 3
G102 9102
Rk |g plb |g
Dli» Pbl]
£ i)

88°658
91°086

ekl
VAR 2%
08 G¥6

2L L96'8l
L6 Ge€ 22
v’ g6l |
6€ 929
G/ 20"k
11°¢€6
98/l L
09016}
Lo'€oL'gh
1€'8.
¥6',69'€
[Kelrdel

kol 2

9102
plb |

81’0 09'2€2 9% L29
200 G1'892 18698
= = 88 ¥E
- A5 6066
= 09 ¥k 1061
100 ¥Z 662 €990/

95’691} VI 6€6°C Y1'861°LL
SL V61 96'295'€ 2L 196'81

12’8 62 €ev 119/
0991 82201 L2 0vS
0L'egs ov 62 T ATAL
6v'8 62 L1 1678

0F = 9t'802 05896
LE'8 gL Lor 621G L
¥0' 20l G2 G.G | 086290}
= (7 z5¢el
(o) AL gLezl'e
= 718 1€ 7Y

kBRI Y h BRI ) kBl 2
kho gyBlaue

Biolklbk [B12RoT

/El2hk| BlMp % kP GLOZT R4 |

B2 e BI2 bRk

189V}
€5 6281

907}
08'68
L0665

L0'8vE' 2y
29 655 9F
[ dield
89'GG/
€GGLL L
1208l

ze el L
€5 726'¢c
62 Sve €g
eleR
erovieh
(JWAZ)
G269

kol

9102 kit |€

810 6€ 681
L0°0 L ZLL
= €82
200 v.'88
0€99. 09'992'L
2€ /91 18'8.€'Y
S9'¢ 19'9/¢
259k 00 0%
AN celee
90' 0} 60 €k
8¢ 0l SV 6L
9’8 OFyhLL
06 19 29962 |
220 G9 /8¢
g R 3 k1R 3
Lio|RlbE
[B12hte) kRbyh
bli> PbR

99'/6G" L
189" L
8E Ve
1907k
ev' 19
ov'0Lg L

L/l L¥8'SE
L0 8Y€E 2V
6egel’e
0c cel

9€ L¥G' |
vZ L2l
92229’
/61082
/G0l0'2e
Go'¥8
0/,256'6
WA
G 265

k2 2

SL0z kil |

hb Rap

pb

1§ B Mie/els Ae plie
22k e plhe?
2Rpohll 2ofne

he pap

JaY:

lndbhe bR
lodbhe RR|RID
LB 122 20k

eRlle rlb
abofn b AblLt

B B E

5
| E(ZE &

5

lodbhe alte

Lhiap ROIpISE (2
(0000€) pklak b kkh (B
SR (e

@EA

ik 2h 20h

Bolgiby foh

k(@)

)
)
)
2y)

leidhirygh 2hate

IeRihpAh BhiE 2L o)
IblgnR) I lndbb) RIpE AR] @ bb Miki 1@ 9102 Rajkir hlk L€

P

Ty RYIE 2015-2016

284



0¢'0€6 66'988 88'658 8T0 09'cee Sl RAY) L8'9VLT 8T°0 6€°68T 99'/8S'T feak snoinaid

66'988 96'SEL 91°086 100 S1°'892 18'658 €9'628'T 100 TTLTT 18'97.'T [eloL
E E > > > 8EvE = = s 8evE amy/oolg B Uy
LSTY 9z'/2 TV'ETT - VT 60°66 L9°0VT = - L9°0PT .Buudsay, sweN pueig
99'TY £'SS LEVE > 09T LL'6T 08'68 = 1£'82 £V'T19 sjusred % Syiewspel |
11°€08 12°€59 08'St6 100 ¥2'6£2 £9°90/ L0'66G'T 100 7,88 Ov'0TS'T aremyyos Jsindwo)
S19SSY w_n_mcmuc_ |
€9'679'8T GE'08€'€Z  2L'/96'8T  9G°69T'T vT'6€6'C PI'86T'LT  LO'SYECY 0£'99Z 09'992'2 LL'1¥8'SE 1eak snolraid
GE'08€'€Z  ¥6'SYe've  T6'GEE'Ce SLY6T 96'29S'€  2.',96'ST 29'655'9t 2€' 9T 18'8LE'Y L0°8¥E'CY [eloL
20°89¢'T 9z'22e'T 9'Z6T'T 128 62°EEY 1€°19/ TLYIS'C 59T 19°9/€ 6E'GET'C wswdinb3 gqeq ()
66'T6T 62°62T 6929 09°9T 8,201 T2 0vS 89'G5/ 2991 00°0% 0z'zEL wawdinb3g saio (1)
16°€2¢ SYAARS GL'20V'T 0T'2s ot L2 Sv'/T2'T €G'GTL'T vT°LS zeTeT 9 TVS'T Buisseoold
eleq Jeindwo)d (y)
Y aray 05°'9¢ LL€6 6t'8 62'LT 1678 1Z'0ET 90°0T 60°€T vz L2t sejoIyaA Jo1o N (B)
11°€59 9T°€SS 9T'8/T'T 0Z'T- 9t°'802 05896 ZETEL'T 8£°0T EV'6TT 92'229'T aInxi4 ® aimuing (1)
8T'¥82'T £6'€T0'T 09°0T6'T 1¢'8 ZTTI0Y 6L°LTS'T £5'126'C 91’8 0T VTT 167082 1db3 ®
uone|feisu| [eal1os|g (8)
(0000€)
9,°08€'TT  82Z¢T'TT  TO'E0T'ZT  ¥0°20T GZ'G/G'T 08'629'0T  62'Ghe'ee 06'T9 29'962'T 1507022 Aisuiyoe\ pue jueld (p)
ET'TT ¥€°9 T€'8. = 6L Z5°€L 5978 = = S9'v8 speoy (9)
96'828'9  6T'ZhP'S ¥6°,69'E 120 rvLS €L°€2T'e ET0VT'2T 220 §9°/8T'C 0,'256'6 sbuipiing (q)
28'20. 89769 1525 = vT'8 LYY 6T LY. - = 6T V. ployssesn
¥5°26G 75265 > > > > 75269 = > 79269 ploysa.4
pue (e)
soe| 2 soe| 2 soe| 2 soe| 2 soe| 2 soe| 2 soe| 2 soe| 2 soe| 2 soe| 2 slassy9|qibue] v
reakayy
10} asuadxa
ST02 9102 9102 sswisnlpy  uopespiowe ST02 9102 siusuwnsnipy ST0Z
‘YoreN T Yore Te YoreN TE  /sfesodsig  uopeaidag  ‘udy T ‘Yore T /sfesodsig suonippy qudy T s1955Y paxid
%20|9 18N juswuredwi pue uoneloaldaq pare|nWNIdy 320|g SS019
Soe| 2 S19SSV paxi4 palepljosuo) ZT 810N

9T0Z ‘Y2JeA TE papua Jeak ay) 10) SJuswWalelS [eloueul4 0] S810N

Annual Report 2015-2016
285



87'0L€ €1°60L - - - - €1°60L - G9'86¢€ 817 0L€ hb L&k

€1°60. 90° 696 = s = s 90° 696 = €6° 652 €1°60L b
80251 802G = = = = 80°2G 1 = S 802G} ©3f 1n3DIe lab]bbb
G0 2SS 86918 = = = = 867918 = £6'65¢ GO LGS LeBihB L Phie LRl ©
_me _.v_%_/w_ Emtm_uw ﬁw 3,_%_/&_
Plhe TZSE Ww T_I_.vﬁm,
09'8LL'6 900881 - - = = 90°088' V1 L9°061'2 €1°256'L 09°'8LL'6 hb P&k
90°088'tL €0 6LEVE - = - = €0°61LE' Ve Lz 6le'e 19°€8€'22 907088 R
9805’2 LS L0L'GL - = = = LS L0L'GL e’ 98¢ 88'2r6 el 98'0G}'2 plo bk Bl (k)
180 180 - - - - /80 - - /80 22k e ©lbe3 ()
71 196 gzove'L - = = = 9z 9ve' | = z1'68¢ 71 196 ko dhdjblie
2h flelinlpyjh fk (B)
6Y 152 7€ 66T = = = = vE 662 LV 12 20Gh 6Y 192 Iolb [zhidh (Ir)
700858 or'velLelL - S = S ov ¥6.'€L Ge'899'c TL2e6'L 70 085’8 Rle po|R| Bl (&)
99'G86'c ggoege - = S = g8 0ez'e ce lel 1801 99°686'c  lkR|hkylh I8h klRIRIk|E
2R} @ kre Rl (@)
plo Joh ble 1
el 2L 9102 Lislplbh pﬂz%ﬁ 5102 i
klb L€ plb L€ AT /B12hk) LR © kb Lygie | 9102 plb L€ /Bl2hks| ERbAh  GLOZ RAe | IkRJhph Rhie
G ST K2 e RISpk bR BU» RoR
b 2lo) (plo) leLhih RRie 2} {am)

hEk @ [RhRYL Bhie Dojh

286

Ty RYIE 2015-2016



817'0T€E €160 - - - - €T1°60L - §G9'86€ 87'0T¢€ 1eak snoinaid

€T°60L 90°696 - - - - 90'696 - £6'65¢ €T°60L [eloL
80°¢ST 80°¢ST - - - - 80°¢ST - - 80°¢ST sa984 Jajsuel] Abojouydal
G0°LSS 86°9T8 - - - - 86'9T8 - £6'65¢ G0°LSS wswdojanaq
9 oIeasay 01 paje|al
sasuadx3 juawdojanaqg
Japun syassy 9|qibuelu] ‘g
09'8TT‘6 90°088'VT - - - - 90°088'VT 19°06TC €1°2S6°. 09'8TT‘6 1eak snoinsid
90'088'¥YT  €0'6TEVE - - - - €0'6TEVE 12'6T2'E T9'€8€E'ce 90°'088'7T [elol
98'0ST'C T€/0LST - = - - TEL0L'ST €17'98¢ 88'CV6'ET 98'0ST'C dim Kiauiyoe (4)
180 /80 s s s s /80 = = /80 sjusied % syrewsapell (9)
7T°'T96 9C IVE'T - - - - 9Z'9vE'T - 21'68¢ Y1196 s108[01d MeN
uo sasuadx3 [euapiou| (p)
67 TG¢C 7€'6€¢ - - - - 7€'6€¢ LT°)2 20°sT 6%'TG¢C sabreyn Aoueynsuo) (o)
¥0'0€5'8 OV ¥6L'€T - = - - Ov'76L'€T G€'899'c  ¢l'eeh'. 70'0€5'8 ssaiboud ul iom A1 ()
99'G86'2 G8'0g2'e - - - - G8'0€2'E C2ELET 187,01 99'G86'¢ Buuoissiwwod
Buipuad s1essy (e)
ssalbold ulqIop euded O
reakayy
10} 8suadxa
ST0C 9T0¢ 9T0C sawisnlpy  uonesiowe GT0C 9102 susuwnsnipy G102
‘U2IeN TE YdIeN TE YdreN T /slesodsiq  juoneaide  udy T ‘UdIeN TE /sresodsia suonippy ‘ludv' T S19SSY Paxi-
20|19 1SN jusuwuredw pue uoneidaidag pare|nWnIdy 300|g SS019)
SoE| 2 ("pu0)d) s1essy paxi4 ZT 810N

3|NPayoS S18SSY Paxi4 palepljosuo)d

Annual Report 2015-2016
287



8€'29¢ 9¢' I8¥

0L 68 28's
- oLl
eLie
162 LE0
. 88'€0€
S1 062 90'0
29y S9 Lyt
AL AL
ST-T02 9T-5102

lodbhe RR(RId

LRIBIK 128 B 22k
lndh® bR
1oh ph kKRR

|2 Pilla bl BF ¢ bho o kel) 33 i b kplf bk bh binklie bYibhie & bhbyh @ [RIJhRYL PRI g
12 Lol lpd] PRIz & leRiah Pl 23 Pack lodbbie
% Bk IR 3h MRl ¢ (3) €16 Al B Io b lehiglle © |1'Z1'62 aﬁggﬁégggﬁﬂ%ggﬁm%ﬁ%%% gw 12
IRl peo) PRJUayh b he klbb dh Rble b ¢ofd BREIS |2 Rl k) bRjlayh dh dklle GDIhbhb Mdjbhilp
lhb § Liahol MRbohll haIEE pibln ‘2 Il b LRJUANK b ARle GRYIEhD ARG Rbie b kb € _mﬁgéﬁggﬁééﬁgﬂ )
12 Ikl leg] PRINENA AR % RIbE I hb Blh 22h/$lkeS (1)
|k 2 DRYZEST DLl & eRINRAL Dlb ¢ LB ok 2Igbie %G @ 2ok & Bild M kblis [rlzhe ¢ 1ERINRYA BYIBL] & biLIGIE GUD 13 Rk 2o DRYISRD
(el 1@ LRIhRAK 3h 200 M [RIhBYK Phig) 2D ¢ lkINARNK ket M 3 LRI lkd) Iola BIZRSE Mh UK LB) IBU AR) © [RIJABAK (B LiRE & Rlik Mo kRB (B)
12 el log) MRLlk @ 1Bhte kgl ¢ || hEk 1® €107 kekigle lkhe RI3Roh ¢ (pRINRAL b (@)

12 Blo bl I3 RIZRAE: Bl Blkhie ¢
I g} Byblie

M (@ b bhjlie Lelnleyjh Lrpsks Sa|dibliE (8/021/GE "2/0ZHSE ' L/9YL/¥e b bk akh) Kk 5bd 8"t bt PAg Ldlg) 12DR|bbh “blle bipAE ‘®BID Bl b MbAR A (ko
12 122 kb 1 haff 222 QO I Adrk Rag “2bibah ‘BRI ‘@lh SbA MY| @ kb 06 B S2kIR| 2b3IK [RSIS Plh Sk 'BIL 68 2922 (2

|2 lio |p 2h 20h 22| & Ryble I lhb OE 2h /12 hh K 1 plb B kol Blebib 'k 8¢h gE'E & 8B 01 0ey Lbgye (2
|(2h B 00'Z 2 Sh DK Sbd Py @ Dl233] M dh Rl GO} M| & Sk DK 86 9G) | Ikl
led) 230 bk & Sl 217012 b 22AYRY 2klb PARALN ik 8dd 00) & k gk 20 01'0EY L ki3 Mebgjie khie Mbbie & Rl 1& Db RRShill dh Phik bigllie

EREN

121232 kol 1 Sk QD] 2h 22h 22l AkbbY 000G LRYblie A & (kb 06 b labk Abe '(18dk) LeRIIK Bleb] dllRle Ihle ke BRI §6 192 2
12 122 o koblie 1 kff PRl Akbbd ZZ'G00L AKJ Ah 22h MRS lhb 09 k 3ok R 1126 2
12122 B 91 0g] 2 bR |¢ Palk3 Aje kil 8dh ¢ (22 Ah 20h b hahhlMolb ¢ P AR|D kb 66

(
(
A
2ok @ lff $4h 0L Ogy LYplie 2h 20h M| & RYbie b (hb 66 & ke 22hRe B ‘(3lie Mie [ B L) bleab Linhlie bd laily PED RISE @ bR 20hRIR %ZA
A
A

|2 I2lgflia EIJketk] ke DLl (b 1k b 22h “Z

12 12> kob 1 kil bORYIbY b 062 b kb BW 267/9°G 2 (b

_MEEWE%E@BEE@%EE%E%@ c2(m
1212 /7 2 koh Lol ¢ kil 808 117/ IeD Sbh pi || PyPle eafa:k] [MB Mbrh Rap (4

- 8 Riylia b 2B ¢ fh bibd b (|
: HaQ)

Ty RYIE 2015-2016

288



8E'C9E 9C' 181

04'6S 28'S sjasse a|qibueiu|
- 9T siuswdib3g 89210
- ¢L'Te alnjuing
T6°L LE0 Buissaooid erep 7 Jaindwod
- 88°'€0¢ swuawdinb3 qe
ST°06C 900 Kiauiyoe\ » ue|d
29 S9°LYT Buipjing
soe| ul 2 soe| ul 3

ST-¥T0C 9T-GT0C

‘Aj1oe) @y panoidde ayy ul pasnoul ainyipuadxa reyde)d Buimoj|o) 8yl JO 1S02 [eulbliQ apNjoul S19SSe pPaxiy 01 SUONIPPY

"BIPUI JO JUBWIUIBAOD JO TT-ZT-62 "PIP (3) ET6 YSD "OU UOIELIRION Uo paseq Aoljod
Bununod2y 8yl Yyum aul| Ul S}ase paxiy ul panjoul usaq sey S LT 2 1e parewnss Ajjuanind ueo Aouaiun)d ubialo4 wigl BuoT uo ssoj| uonenionyy abueyox3 ubiaioo [euonoN

‘pouad wawaaibe ayl 1ano Ajrenba paziiowe si pred 88} 89ua217 "siseq elel-o0id uo sIeak g Jo
poliad e JaA0 PaziIoWe S| UONN|OS 81eMIJ0S 44T sealaym ‘sieak g Jo pouad e 1ano Ajjenba pazilowe S| uonn|os a1emios 443 ueyl 1ayio alemyos Jaindwod j01sod ayl (p
‘sreak g Jo pouiad e 1aA0 pasiiowe ale sjuaredpe apell (9
10V 9} Ul paquosald S19sse Yl JO SaAI| [NBSN a1 190 1S02 a1 JO %G JO aNnjeA [enpisal Buiurelal Ja)e s)asse ay) Jo 1S02 8y} JJO 91LIM 0) Se 0s (1asse pjoyases)| pue
19sse a|qibueiul 1da9xa) S19SSE JaY10 10} poylaW anjeA UMOpP USNLIM pue AIaulyde|y 7 Jue|d Japun S1asse ||e 10} poylaw aul| ybrens uo pabieyd usaq sey uonerdaidaqg (g
"€T0Z 19V Saluedwo) ay) Jo || 9|nNPaydS Japun Juswalinbal syl yim aul| ul spew usag aney sjasse a|qibue) uo uonerdaidag (e
*SMOJ|0} Sk aJe paydope uoneldaidap Jo SPOYIBIN
'sieak og 1o
pouad e uoy Jeak Jad -/00T6T 'SH @IUdy asea uo panoje si pue| ay ‘Auedwo) ayl 01 JISA0 papuey uaaq sey pue| ay 198loid Beg pooig p|aiq usalo jo dn Bumas splemo
BlRIDY 101ISIQ BNIYIWRURYIRd ‘Bbe]|IA UoARI| HNJeL luuoy 18 (€/02T/SE ‘2/0ZT/SE ‘T/9¥T/FE 'ON ABAINS-8Y) pueT JO 8108 £8/" 8SES| U0 PANO|[e Sey Blelad| 0 09 8yl (Y
‘P11 (d) Blpu| ded Jaqgny woll sieak 06 10} 91e1s eelay| ‘looAequiniad ‘welindel| ‘red 1agqgny e pue| Jo Ssjuad 9og Jo anjea ayl buiaq soe|eezoz 2 (6
'Pa109Y48 USa( 10U Je) 0S Sey uoioesuel)
, SIY1 JoaABMOH "preog A1011109|3 a1els npeN |iwe] 03 seak Jad T3 @ sieak 9¢ Jo pouad e 10} ases| uo UaAIb aq 03 ‘uoissassod ul Saloe QT 0EY 40 IN0 ‘pue| o saldy 8e's (4
‘(210 Jad s987 00°Z 2 @X20]|1Y JO SaI0k L7 pue aloe Jad Soe 05 9T @SaI0R 9G) S81040 ZT°0T 2 @Pan|eA ‘paywi
yoalolg T1H 104 ‘uoissassod Ul saloe QT 0 Y3 4O IN0 payewea S| pue| Jo saide 00T ‘Siieyy JIWOoU0I] U0 9aNIWW0) 1BUIgeD ay1 JO UOISIDap ayl yum auljul (8
‘npeN |iwe] ‘nmadebuay)d ul
(19171D) @mnisu| yaeasay pue Bulurel] Asoida [esnuad wody sieak g6 10 asea| uo ‘reuuay) ‘npadiebuay) ul palojje pue| pjoyases| saide 0T 0 0 anfea ayy buiag -/662 (P
"sieak 06 104 ysapeld renn ‘(valoN) Aoyiny Juswdolaasq [eHisnpul ejyO MaN Ul paRO|[e pue| pjoyases] J0 “w*bs 000G 0 anfea ayl Buiaq soe| 16 19z2 (2
's1eak 09 10} ases| uo requiniy uilold ‘syw‘bs zz‘S00T 40 anfeA luawiojje ayl buiaq soe| Ty'z62 (g
‘sieak 66 10} elelay] ‘weindewerejeg 1e Buip|ing pue pue| pjoyases) Jo salde € J0 1509 ay) Bulag soe| 9°0sT2 (e
Buimo||oy 81 SapN|oul pue| pjoy 8seaT JO 1S0D
‘feuuayD e sjuad 9'6z 40 pue| pjoysaly jo soud syl Bureg syxe| z6°29G2 (o
"preog wuswdojana( ealy [erisnpu| exereusey o1 pred pue| pjoysaly jo oud sy buieq soej 922 (q
"JS09 JO 93J} B[eId) JO "IA0D) Y} AQ paliajsurl) pue| Jo salde $T°/ pue Saloe 44 TT JO anjeA uayol ay) bulaq -/z2 (e
- Sapn|oul pueT pjoy 8a.4 40 10D

T

‘910N

Annual Report 2015-2016

289



910

9102 €0 €
)

(%) Leeiir
i lnkeRE]

gce
Gc'c
Gc'¢c

Gc'¢c

Gc'¢

klaale 2 kel 2
bhbLie

b

Sc'¢c

Sc'c
Sc'¢c

Gcc

DK B he oh
DK B he Joh

9102 €0 L€

(9)
bbK p ha
lah/sblajie

L G102’ €0 L€

kB2l 2
bhba

(s)

pBLie
[pBa

Gcc¢
gc'¢
Gc'¢c

Sc'¢c

Gc'e

k2l 2
b

(eok beplie @ MRlz RIK -/001 )

0S¢ 5.2 SRR bk MIb3R ol blle (B
(R2k pepie & rrla RJK -/012)
000'02 000'02 kale S2R|I| ARbSAd3 [Ablkd A
12bk b Undbhe [PRbIE (&)
GL0C €0 I€ 9102 €0° L€
(e) (2) (1)
Eele/IDB Pijpb)/bRA B
I2p 1$ Pk(k/ARI N Y/ TRTERY/TNN AT blbs b Rl Dipllek) “hds
Indbb} < llapk) kede © {nnd)
Rob DJbh b lably bRbhie
RB PR|bR @ llabk| hep| |12k PBDY L Bblph
see b
- LIRbBIK AR| & PR b ROk ¢ labk| : bk
gee (B + &) R
G2 e (B2) labk] pate-pd
= lRllhd hRe wRh (1)
(bt Joh) 12bk) ke LRy (B2)
sze ® 1bh Reie(1))
= lRlhd hRe aRh (1)
lkbihe rhbbb (1)
(a2t 1oh) 2bk) & Undbhe [PRoIE (&)
labl| kale "By
(R) Ahlke - R
PTT =R
(2h DLIW) labk)|
b gl 2 b Bl 2
B B lodbb|
& 9102 €0 I€

(Bcplier) 12BkY klltbb My €1 lahQ)

Ty RYIE 2015-2016

290



> pred Ajiny
9T'0 pred Ajiny
GTOZ'E0'TE 9T0Z'€0°'TE
(9)
(%) BuipjoH pred Ajin4
101U81X3 /pred Ajed
GZ'¢
G2'e G2'e 2
Gee Ge'e -
Ge'¢ Ge'¢ -
G2'¢ G2'e =
soe| » soe| » soe| >
[elol paionbun paiond

GTOC€0'TE LV SV

(areys 4ad -/OT 10 anjeA ade)

palonbun 052 0S¢ SIENNe) P17 ueg aAielado-0D alels o9 (@)
(areys sad -/OT » 40 8njeA adey)
pajonbun 000'02 000'02 SENle) "P¥T SaINJONASEIU| 0JIAUT B[Rl
sjuawnJiisu| A1inb3 ul syjuswisaAu| (e)
GT0C'E0'TE 9T0C’'€0'TE
(9) () (e) (@ 0

slayio/Amu3

/P3103UOD/AL
paionbun /91eI100SSY "ON
/paiond Sllun/saJleys Jo ‘oN JAreipisqns a1e10di0) Apog ayl jo aweN ‘IS

SIUBWISaAU| JaYlO 4O Ss|e1aq : 910N

Gz'e SJUBaWISaAuUl pajonbun jo Junowe arebaibbe
SjuBaWISaAul pajonb jou Ing paisi| Jo anjen arebalbby

G2'¢ G2'¢ - [eiol

- - - SIUBWISAAUI JO BNJeA Ul UOIINUIWIP 10} UOSIAOIG : SS8T

Gee See - (g+v) reyoL

Sze Sz'e = (g) s1uswilsaAu| JBYlQ0 - [e10L

saluedwod ainuaauiofjo (1)
(pred Ajjny) saimuagap uljuawisanul(q)
Srara Srars = sannua Jaylo jo (1)
saluedwod aimuauioljo (i)

- - - saluedwod Areipisgns jo (1)
(pred Ajny) stuswinnsul Ainba uljuawisaul(e)
: SJUBWIISAAUL 1IBYIO ‘g
- - - (v) apeilL - [eroL
apell Vv
: (1509 1v) SlusWISaAU|
soe| > soe| > soe| »
[eiol pajonbun paiond siejhotited
9T0Z'€0°'TE 1V SV

(parepljosu0)) SIUBWISAAUI 1USIINI-UON E£T 910N

Annual Report 2015-2016

291



fewoht 14 Sefwreti= o1 wd M (wfea)

fara=or 31.03.2016 &1 31.03.2015 &I
T ot A % ol |
Qefwrel= Fo1 vd 1M
SR, T A Y
ST e 1,001.08 4083
UeC WR HBH S 60.02 64 60
wfergfer ST 32.26 2162
P 1,093.36 127.05

feugoft 15 s AR a1 aRwufET (FfRa)

fara=or 31.03.2016 & 31.03.2015 @l

R ol & T ot |

IR 3N Al T Yob 2800 56.00
S 9 & o1 I Yod 17 37 27 .80
EINREIRCE] 7978 83.78
AT wise g 261.70 544 35
P 386.85 711 .93
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Note 14. Long Term Loans & Advances (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 1,001.08 40.83
Lease Building deposits 60.02 64.60
Security Deposits 32.26 21.62
Total 1,093.36 127.05
Note 15. Other Non-Current Assets (Consonlidated)
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Fee for RoC for enhancing Authorised Share Capital to the extend
not written off 28.00 56.00
ECB Loan Upfront charges 17.37 27.80
Preliminary Expenses 79.78 83.78
MAT Credit Entitlement 261.70 544.35
Total 386.85 711.93
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31.03.2016 &I 31.03.2015 &I

T orEi |
1,623 65
1,623 .65
1,365 21
1,365 .21
2,366.02
2,366 .02

161248
95 88
1,588 .20
35 .64
3,332.20
233.55
233.55
1,064 ,85
1,064 ,85
952
9.52

57 .90

47 98

58 42
164 .30
10,159 .30
67 37

10,091.93

T ol |
2,294 33
2,294 33
1,014 60
1,014 .60
1516.16
1,516.16

2 554 84
36.79
1,391.12
23 96
4,006 .71
148 37
148 37
1,232 29
1,232 .29
511

5.11

28.89
105 .21
66.14
200 .24
10,417 81
8932

10,328 49



Note 16 Inventories (Consolidated)
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
a. Raw Materials (Valued at cost) 1,623.65 2,294.33
1,623.65 2,294.33
b. Packing Materials (Valued at cost) 1,365.21 1,014.60
1,365.21 1,014.60
c. Work-in-progress (Valued at Actual Process Cost) 2,366.02 1,516.16
2,366.02 1,516.16
d. Finished goods (Valued at Lower of cost or NRV)
Manufactured Products 1,612.48 2,554.84
Social Marketing Products 95.88 36.79
Trading Products 1,588.20 1,391.12
Goods-in-transit 35.64 23.96
3,332.20 4,006.71
e. General Stores and Consumables (Valued at cost) 233.55 148.37
233.55 148.37
f.  Other materials, machinery, spare parts, building materials
etc. (Valued at cost) 1,064.85 1,232.29
1,064.85 1,232.29
g. Tools revalued & certified by management 9.52 511
9.52 5.11
h. Others
Scrapped/Surplus Assets (at lesser of cost or net realisable value) 57.90 28.89
Gift items (at cost) 47.98 105.21
Stationery (at cost) 58.42 66.14
164.30 200.24
10,159.30 10,417.81
Less:Closing Provision for Obsolete Stock 67.37 89.32
Total 10,091.93 10,328.49
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Note 17 Trade receivables (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months
from the date they were due for payment
Secured, considered good* 1,837.63 965.62
Unsecured, considered good 28,467.10 40,867.72

30,304.73 41,833.34
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they were due for payment

Secured, considered good 2,020.18 -
Unsecured, considered good 29,562.13 22,238.51
considered doubtful 1,416.27 1,327.63
33,000.56 23,566.14

Less : Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,418.27 1,327.63
31,582.29 22,238.51

Total 61,887.02 64,071.85

* Secured against Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee & Customer Deposit.

Note 18 Cash and cash equivalents (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(A) Balance with banks

(i) (a) In Term Deposit accounts with less than 12 months maturity 3,074.72 11,199.99
(b) In Term Deposit accounts with more than 12 months maturity 313.33 269.39

(c) In Term depsoits held for margin money for borrowings
and guarantee 28.19 23.08
(ii) In Current Accounts 1,501.06 1,167.35
(iii) In EE Foreign Currency Accounts 207.89 296.61
(iv) In Overdraft A/c (Debit balance) 13.14 34.40
(B) Cash/stamps on hand 31.53 18.99
Total 5,169.86 13,009.81
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Note 19 Short-term loans and advances (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Security deposits & EMD
Secured, considered good 0.48 0.13
Unsecured, considered good 1,080.34 1,086.86
Sub Total 1,080.82 1,086.99
(b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 17.64 17.65
Unsecured, considered good 472.39 414.73
Considered Doubtful 1.17 1.17
491.20 433.55
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 1.17 1.17
Sub Total 490.03 432.38
(c) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good 239.27 182.26
239.27 182.26
(d) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Advance Income Tax 1,404.73 1,020.71
(i) Sales Tax Advances 175.76 213
(i) Others 523.16 55.56
2,103.65 1,078.40
(e) Others (Advance to Creditors, Deposit to various agencies etc)
Secured, considered good 101.24 148.94
Unsecured, considered good 4,847.67 5,387.65
Considered Doubtful 982.30 1,017.53
5,931.21 6,554.12
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 982.30 1,017.53
Sub Total 4,948.91 5,536.59
Total 8,862.68 8,316.62
Note : Short-term loans and advances include amounts due from :
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Directors 0.40 0.52
Other officers of the Company 56.40 88.45
56.80 88.97
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Note 20 Other current assets (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Accruals
(i) Interest accrued on FDR
(if) Interest accrued on Deposits

(b) Others
(i) Export Incentives/Duty Draw back
(ii) Interest on Subsidy Receivable
(iii) Contractually reimbursable expenses
(iv)\Other Non-Operating Income

Total
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AS AT
31.03.2016
3 lacs

27.93
4.87
32.80

301.77
17.47
3.47
121.12
443.83
476.63

AS AT
31.03.2015
3 lacs

36.32
2.76
39.08

262.84
6.48
4.18

544.19

583.27
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Note 21 Revenue from operations (Consolidated)

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

0]

Other operating revenues comprise :

Particulars

Sale of products

Sale of services

Income from Contract

Other operating revenues

Less:
Excise duty

Particulars

Sale of products comprises

Sale of Contraceptive Products

Sale of Healthcare Products
Sale of Social Marketing Products

Sale of Trading Products and Others
Product subsidy on saheli

Sub Total

Sale of services

Income from Contract
Other operating revenues

Grand Total

Cost of free sample supplied
Incentive on Social Marketing

Total

Promotional Subsidy on Saheli and Novex sales
Duty Rebate/Duty drawback/Other export incentives

Sale of scrap, waste condoms and other misc. items

Sale of tender form

Others
Total
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Year Ended

31.03.2016
3 lacs

90.598.33
9,985.74
8,197.62
5.043.50

1,13,825.19

1,089.54

1,12,735.65

Year Ended
31.03.2016
3 lacs

41.643.22
27,410.80
1,468.27
19,761.13
314.91
90,598.33
9,985.74
8,197.62
5,043.50
1,13,825.19

2,739.34
423.35
466.76
853.16
477.42

43.56
39.91
5,043.50

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

84,935.43
7,029.19
15,096.00
4,303.14
1,11,363.76

810.69
1,10,553.07

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

43,316.43
25,760.47
1,034.75
14,522.82
300.96
84,935.43
7,029.19
15,096.00
4,303.14
1,11,363.76

2,692.21
122.54
522.54
389.89
490.67

61.91
23.38
4,303.14
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Note 22. Other income (Consolidated)

@
(b)

@

(ii)

Particulars

Interest income (Refer Note (i) below)
Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below)

Total

Particulars

Interest income comprises :
Interest from banks on :
a) On short term deposit
b) On Others
Total - Interest income

Other non-operating income comprises :
Rental income from Staff quarters
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Insurance claims
Excess provision / credits written back
Lease rent
Other Misc. Income

Total - Other non-operating income
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Year Ended
31.03.2016
3 lacs
150.03
666.31

816.34

Year Ended
31.03.2016

3 lacs

42.87
107.16
150.03

3.56
4.71
78.22
80.82
50.84
448.16
666.31

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

96.19
359.30

455.49

Year Ended
31.03.2015

3 lacs

11.63
84.56
96.19

3.58
452
1.73
108.07
47.09
194.31
359.30
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Note 23 Cost of materials consumed (Consolidated)

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Opening stock 3,308.22 3,149.00
Add : Purchases 24,293.13 22,338.87
27,601.35 25,487.87
Less : Closing stock 2,988,15 3,308.94
Cost of material consumed 24,613.20 22,178.93

Materials consumed comprises :

Raw Materials 13,421.51 12,128.25
Chemicals 2,742.44 3,023.63
Packing Materials 7229.27 6,174.32
Cost of quality and sub contract expense 1,220.00 722.53
Consumables - 130.20

Total 24,613.22 22,178.93

Note 24 Purchases of Stock-in-trade (Consolidated)
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trading Products 25,492.59 18,282.53
Social Marketing Branded Products 1,394.73 3,202.19
Total 26,887.32 21,484.72

Note 25 Changes in inventories of finished goods, and work-in-progress (Consolidated)

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs

Inventories at the end of the year :

Finished goods 3,262.51 3,954.04
Work-in-progress 2,366.02 1,516.16
Stock in trade 69.70 52.67
5,698.23 5,522.87

Inventories at the beginning of the year :
Finished goods 3,954.04 5,790.40
Work-in-progress 1,516.17 1,552.05
Stock in trade 52.67 37.57
5,522.88 7,380.02
Net (Increase) / decrease (175.35) 1,857.15
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Note 26 Employee benefits expense (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Salaries and incentives
(b) Contribution to -
Provident fund
New pension scheme
Gratuity fund contributions
Earned Leave Fund
Contribution to ESI

(c) Staff welfare expenses

Total

Note 27 Finance costs (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Interest expense on :
(i) Cash Credit
(if) Term Loan

(b) Other borrowing costs

Total
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Year Ended

31.03.2016
% lacs

13,225.90

1,353.26
175.29
373.47
174.99

38.78

1,399.15

16,740.84

Year Ended
31.03.2016
3 lacs

2,556.95
219.80
164.03

2,940.78

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

12,171.34

1,266.11
173.07
656.01
209.75

47.38

1,390.17

15,913.83

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

2,248.35
223.74
111.79
2,583.88
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Note 28 Other expenses (Consolidated)

Particulars

Advertisement & Publicity and Sales Promotion Expenses

Power & fuel charges

Freight & Other Selling Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance

Other Production expenses

Wages to Contract Labourers
Consultancy & Service Charges

Free sample distribution

Miscellaneous Expenses

Provision for bad & doubtful debts/Advances
Repairs & Maintenance Machinery
Postage & Telegram, Telephone
Research & Development Expenses
Corporate R & D Centre Expenses
Rent

Printing & Stationery

Repairs & maintenance of other assets
Water charges

Insurance charges

Bank charges

Exchange Fluctuation

Staff recruitment expenses

Rates & Taxes

Provision for obsolete stores written off

Book value of obsolete assets/stores written off

Training program expenses

Repairs & Maintenance of buildings

Bad debt & advances written off

Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below)
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets/scrapped assets
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
Royalty paid

Donation

Grantto HMA

Prior period items (net) (Refer Note (ii) below)
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Year Ended
31.03.2016
3 lacs

4,271.51
3,154.50
3,365.23
1,768.09
2,625.34
1,795.83
3,082.94
2,798.83
1,526.81
117.78
591.68
357.56
696.71
437.10
234.44
216.77
214.80
195.09
93.29
(52.46)
101.53
321.01
11.97
70.25
90.10
164.14
13.33
28.65
1.48
20.97
76.47
2.30
0.59
25.00
25.63
28,445.21

Year Ended

31.03.2015
3 lacs
5,140.09
4,048.84
3,322.64
1,743.90
1,882.82
1,659.99
2,322.99
2,749.21
1,112.81
813.41
514.13
365.51
36.53
656.79
368.61
228.91
172.37
174.13
214.91
86.74
305.57
67.10
343.72
12.61
85.60
113.52
215.29
98.24
24.42
11.73
14.66
139.27
4.75
0.25

5.43
29,057.49
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Note 28 Other expenses (Consolidated) (Contd.)
Year Ended Year Ended

pere s 31.03.2016  31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(i) Payments to the auditors comprises
Audit fees 21.18 16.33
Tax Audit fees i 2.36
Audit expenses 4.32 5.73
Total 28.65 24.42
(if) Details of Prior period items (net)
Prior period income
Other Income 14.30 54.02
Total 14.30 54.02
Prior period expenses
Administrative Expenses 37.23 22.60
Other Expenses 2.70 36.85
Total 39.93 59.45
Prior period items (net) 25.63 5.43
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Sl.No.

Al

A2

A3

A4

A4l

A4.2

A43

A44

A5

A.6

A.7

B.1
B.2

B.3
B.3.1

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Particulars
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relates to HLL Lifecare Limited (‘the Company'), its
subsidiary and Joint Venture. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
following basis :

The financial statements of the Parent Company and its Subsidiary Companies are consolidated
on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses, after eliminating the intra-group balances, intra-group transactions in
accordance with Accounting Standard-21 on "Consolidated Financial Statements".

The financial statements of Joint Venture are combined by applying proportionate consolidation
method of line-by-line basis on items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after in
accordance with Accounting Standard-27 on "Financial Reporting of Interest in Joint Ventures".

As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and events in similar circumstances and are presented
to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Parent Company's separate financial statements.

The Subsidiary/Joint Venture Companies considered in the financial statements are as follows

Name of the Country of Relationship Ownership

Company Incorporation Interest as on
31.03.2015

HLL Biotech Limited India Subsidiary 100%

(HBL)

GoaAntibiotics and India Subsidiary 74%

Pharmaceuticals Limited

(GAPL)

HLL Infra Tech Services

Limited (HITES) India Subsidiary 100%

LifeSpring Hospitals India Joint Venture 50%

Pvt. Ltd.

The excess of cost to the parent of its investments in a subsidiary over the parents portion of equity
at the date on which investment is made, is recognised as goodwill on consolidation and recognised
separately under Non-Current Assets. Starting from 2014-15, we have amortised the Goodwill on
Consolidaton over a period of 10 years.

Minority Interest in the net assets of subsidiary, consists of the amount of equity attributable to
the minority shareholders at the date on which investment is made in subsidiary company and
further movements in the equity, subsequent to the date of investment.

HLL InfraTech Services Limited was incorporated as a100% subsidiary of HLL on 3™ April 2014.
The Company is engaged in providing the services in the area of construction, infrastructure
development, engineering services, procurement management, supply chain management, facility
management services etc.

Significant Accounting Policies
Significant accounting policies of parent company are enclosed as Annexure-I.
Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and spares.However
FIFO Method of valuation of inventories has been followed by Goa Antibiotics and Pharmaceuticals
Ltd. (GAPL)

Fixed Assets
The brand name “Lifespring” of Joint Venture is amortized over a period of 10 years.
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B.3.2
B.3.3

B.4

B.5

B.6

Trade Mark Expenses

In parent company (HLL), expenses incurred on trade mark registrations is treated as Capital
work in progress and is capitalised under ‘intangible assets' when licenses are received.
Subsequent expenditure incurred on licenses which is already capitalized will be recognised
as revenue expenses in the period in which such expenses are incurred.

Method of depreciation/Amortisation

Consequent to the Companies Act, 2013, in the case of the parent Company, Depreciation has
been charged on straight line method for all assets under Plant & Machinery and written down
value method for other assets (other than intangible asset and lease hold assets) so as to write
off the cost of the assets after retaining residual value of 5% of the cost, over the useful lives of
the assets prescribed in the Act, except for those assets whose useful lives are determined
based on any technical advice.

Components of main assets were identified and determined separately, if they have a useful life
that is materially different from that of the principal asset. 10% of Original Cost as been considered
as Threshold Limit to determine the component to be material or not.

HLL Biotech Limited has provided depreciation on the Written down value method based on
the useful specified in the Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Ltd (GAPL) & Life Spring Hospitals have adopted Straight
line method of depreciation based on the useful life specified in the Schedule Il of Companies
Act, 2013.

Research and Development expenses directly attributable to generating asset are capitalized at
cost as ‘Intangible Asset’ and will be amortized over a period of 10 years in HBL and amortized
over a period of 5 years in GAPL. Preliminary expenses will be written off over a period of 5
years from the year of commencement of commercial operation.

Trade Marks shall be amortised over a period of 5 years from the date of recognition of intangible
asset. In caAct.

Revenue recognition

HBL is yet to commence the commercial operation and the project is under construction stage.
Interest earned during the construction period on un-utilised surplus funds is deducted from
the revenue expenditure incurred during the construction period and the net amount of such
revenue expenditure will be capitalised when the construction is completed.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance
with Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products,
Services and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting
policies have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to
the segment, including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and
not allocable to segments are included under “Unallocable expenditure”.

(c) Income which relates the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included
in “Unallocable Income”.

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective
segments. Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities
that relate to the company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

In respect of business segments of subsidiaries and Joint venture, the same has been
considered under Health Care in the Consolidated Segment Reporting except HITES. This has
been grouped under Procurement and Consultancy Service.
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C1l

C.2

C3

C4
C5
C.6

C.7

Explanatory Notes

These notes are to be read in conjunction with the explanatory notes forming part of the stand alone
financial statements of the parent company.

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Numerator Net Profit ¥ In Lacs
Profit after Tax as per Statement o f Profit & Loss 3,106.09 3,267.08
Denominator- Average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year 25,53,08,333 19,35,35,000
No. of Shares - Basic & Diluted 29,04,15,000 19,35,35,000
Earnings per share (%)
Basic (Face Value of ¥ 10/- per share) 1.22 1.69
Diluted (Face Value of¥ 10/- per share) 1.22 1.69

Balance in Debtors, Creditors and loans and advances are subject to confirmation /
reconciliation.

Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development [MSMED] Act,
2006 are as under :

® in lacs)

SINo Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(@) The principal amount remaining unpaid

at the end of the year. 865.13 238.03
(b) The delayed payments of principal amount

paid beyond the appointed date during the year. Nil Nil
c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the

MSMED Act .Nil Nil
(d) Normal interest due and payable during the year,

for all the delayed payments, as per the agreed terms. Nil Nil
(e) Total interest accrued during the year and

remaining unpaid . Nil Nil

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information available with the Company.

Consolidated Segment Report is presented in Annexure 2
Financial information regarding the subsidiary/joint ventures is given in Annexure 3.

In the case of GAPL, secondary geographical segment as required under Segment Reporting,
has not been identified, Hence, this is grouped as Domestic business,

The subsidiary company GAPL had marketing arrangements with M/s Goa Food & Pharma (P)
limited. The party owes the company an amount of ¥8.50 Cr as per the terms of Arbitration Award
out of which ¥4.13Cr is towards substantive claims and ¥4.37Cr towards interest.

Provision for bad debts amounting to ¥2.65 Cr only is made towards interest. In case of two other
parties M/s Emcee Enterprises and M/s Madhur Pharma, also the Company has preferred an appeal
against them for recovering dues amounting to ¥55.27 lacs and ¥15.05 lacs respectively. No
provision for bad debts has been created for the same.
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Cc8

C.9

C.10

c.1u

C.12

GAPL has taken on sub-lease, two factories at Ajmer and Jaipur in Rajasthan for manufacture of
Ayurvedic and Homeopathic products. The company accounts for all purchases and all expenses
based on statements provided.

The consolidated Contingent liabilities forming part of the financial statements, is presented in
Annexure 3.

On the land leased by Govt. of Goa in Survey No. 47/0 of Village Tuem, over a period it is noticed
that there are about 40 encroachment reported as on Balance Sheet date. The Company has
taken up the matter with the Revenue/Appropriate Authorities for eviction of these illegal structures,
encroaching around 15000 Sq, Meter area.

Figures of the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary to suit
current year’s requirements and rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

Additional Information , as required under Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, of entities consolidated
as Subsidiaries/Joint Venture is presented as Annexure-IV.
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1.1

1.2

13

Annexure 1 Significant Accounting Policies of Parent Company
Particulars
Corporate information

HLL Lifecare Limited, incorporated in the year 1966, is a MiniRatna Enterprise, fully owned by
Government of India, domiciled in India and governed by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
HLL Lifecare Ltd was converted into a Public Limited Company with effect from 21st February 2012.
The company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of a range of Contraceptive products,
Hospital products, Women Health Pharma products, providing Consultancy & Contract services for
healthcare infrastructure, Procurement and Diagnostic services. The company caters to both domestic
and international markets.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 besides the pronouncements/guidelines of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and
under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial
statements are consistent with those of previous years, unless specified separately.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities)
and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ
due to changes in these estimates and the difference between the actual results and the estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the results are known / materialized.

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all
incidental expenditure net of CENVAT credit wherever applicable. Revenue expenses incurred for
identification of new projects/ new line of businesses are treated as capital work in progress.
This will be absorbed into the project cost in the first year of commencing the business. If the new
project/ new line of business do not materialize within a period of three financial years, the entire
expenses shall be charged to Revenue in the 3 year. The cost of fixed assets includes interest
on borrowings (calculated at the weighted average rates) and administrative expenses specifically
attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets. Expenditure during construction period is included
under Capital Work-in-Progress and the same is allocated to the respective fixed assets on the
completion of construction.In respect of Pharmaceutical manufacturing facility, expenditure incurred
are included under Capital Work in Progress till the validation process is completed

Intangible Asset
Cost of computer software and License fee incurred from 1.4.2003 are classified as intangible assets.
Trade Mark Expenses

Expenses incurred on trade mark registrations will be treated as Capital work in progress and will be
capitalized under ‘intangible assets’ when licenses are received. Subsequent expenditure incurred on
those licences will be recognized as revenue expenses in the period in which such expenses are
incurred.
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1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Method of depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets has been made in line with the requirement under Schedule II
of the Companies Act 2013. Further, Depreciation has been charged on straight line method for
all assets under Plant & Machinery and written down value method for other assets (other than
intangible asset and lease hold assets) so as to write off the cost of the assets after retaining
residual value of 5% of the cost, over the useful lives of the assets prescribed in the Act, except for
those assets whose useful lives are determined based on any technical advice.Components of
main assets were identified and determined separately, if they have a useful life that is materially
different from that of the principal asset. 10% of original cost of the principal asset has been
considered as threshold limit to determine whether component is material or not. With respect to
Leasehold Assets, depreciation/amortization has been charged on straight line method over the
primary period of lease or over the specified period, whichever is shorter. Depreciation/
amortization in respect of leasehold improvements is provided on the straight line method over
the primary period of the lease.The cost of computer software other than ERP Software Solution
is amortized equally over a period of 3 years , whereas ERP software solution is amortized over
a period of 8 years on pro-rata basis. License fee paid is amortized equally over the agreement
period.Additions to Fixed Assets from 01.04.1993, costing Rs.5000/- each or less are fully
depreciated during the year of purchase, irrespective of the date of addition retaining the residual
vale of assets.Machinery spares acquired with the equipment are depreciated using the same
rates and method applicable for the original machinery. In the case of Machinery spares procured
separately for future use, rate equivalent to accumulated depreciation for the expired life of the
relative machinery are charged in the year of acquisition along with depreciation for the year.Trade
Mark expenses are amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of recognition of intangible
asset.

Leases

Fixed Assets acquired and given on lease are shown as part of fixed assets. In regard to operating
leases, rentals are expensed with reference to terms of the lease agreement. Lease rental income
is accounted on accrual basis.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets is recognized when there is an indication of Impairment. On such indication
the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and if such estimation is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, if any.
Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and spares.
Work-in-progress, materials in transit/under inspection is carried at actual process cost. Unused
Loose Tools are revalued every year taking into account the useful life of the tools and carried at
the revalued cost. Finished goods manufactured/goods purchased for trading are valued at lower
of cost/net realizable value, including excise duty, wherever applicable. Manufactured / traded
finished goods in stock whose shelf life expires within three months from the Balance Sheet date
are taken at NIL value.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on audited financial statements.
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1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise of value of sale of goods (net of returns) excluding sales tax and discounts but
including excise duty. Insurance claims are accounted on receipt basis. Interest on investments
is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the fixed rate
of interest. Revenue from services business is recognized on accrual basis. Revenues from
maintenance contracts are recognized pro rata over the period of the contract. Revenue from
Infrastructure - development division and Procurement Consultancy division related activities are
recognized as follows:

a) In case of turnkey contracts ,on the basis of progress billing to the contract value under survey
method.

b) In the case of other contracts, on the basis of completion of obligation as per the terms of
contract with the agencies concerned.

Other Operating Revenues

The revenue against realization of waste latex, empty drums, rejected products and other scrap
items are accounted on cash basis.Duty drawback/export incentive in respect of export sales are
accounted in the year of export. The realization in respect of obsolete assets/materials written off
is accounted on cash basis.

Other Income

Interest income if any for delayed realization from sundry debtors as stipulated in invoices is not
recognized, unless realized. Income other than the above are accounted on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign exchange are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions. Foreign currency receivables/payables are translated at the exchange rates as
on the Balance Sheet date. Gain or losses arising out of such transactions are adjusted to the
statement of Profit and Loss.

Premium or discount on foreign exchange forward contracts booked for hedging existing assets/
liabilities are amortised and recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the
contract. Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding as at the year end on account of firm
commitment transactions are marked to market and the losses, if any are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss and gains are ignored in accordance with the announcement of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting of Derivatives issued in March 2008.
Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on translation or settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items
(i.e., whose term of settlement exceeds twelve months from the date of its origination) at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded or reported in the previous financial
statements, in so far as it relates to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the cost of
the assets as per GOI notification dated 31.03.2009 and 29.12.2011 and this will be amortized
over the remaining life of the Asset.

Government grants

a) Grants in the form of investment subsidy are credited to separate reserve.

b) Revenue grants/subsidy (other than product subsidy) relating to sales are disclosed separately
under other operating revenues, whereas product subsidy is disclosed under sales and services.

Employee benefits
a) Gratuity and Leave Encashment

The Gratuity liability and Leave Encashment liabilities are determined under separate group
schemes maintained with LIC of India. The liabilities towards these schemes are estimated yearly,
based on actuarial valuation.

b) Voluntary Retirement Benefits

The entire liability on account of payments under VRS, if any is charged off to the Profit and Loss
Account in the same year.
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1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

c) Post Employment Medical Benefits

The Employees (including their spouse) on the rolls of the Company from 01.07.2005 are
covered under Group Medical Insurance Scheme maintained with Insurance Company.

d) Bonus/ Performance Related Payment

Provision for bonus for the employees is made on the basis of Productivity Linked Incentive
Scheme as per the Long Term Agreement entered into with the recognized trade unions. Executives
at the Board level and below the Board level are covered for Performance Related Pay (PRP) as
per the guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprise.

e) Pension Scheme

Company has introduced a contributory pension scheme from 1-4-2011 for the permanent
employees who are on the rolls of the company as on 9-10-2012. Company contributes 3% of
basic plus DA with a matching contribution from employees. The pension scheme is managed by
LIC of India.

f) Encashment of Half Pay Leave on Superannuation

Company has introduced (w.e.f 15.05.2014) the facility of encashment of Half Pay leave to the
permanent employees at the time of superannuation, subject to an overall ceiling of 300 days
along with Earned Leave. The liability towards the same has been estimated and provided for in
the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing cost incurred / attributable to the acquisition for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset is capitalized. Interest on loan taken specifically for the acquiring assets and the interest
thereon are proportionately allocated to respective assets based on asset value.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance with
Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products,
Services and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting
policies have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the
segment, including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and not
allocable to segments are included under "Unallocable expenditure".

(c) Income which relates to the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included
in "Unallocable Income".

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to
the company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

Taxes on income

Provision for current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current
accounting period in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred Tax resulting from timing difference between book and taxable profit for the year is
accounted for using the Tax rates and laws that are applicable as on the Balance sheet Date .The
deferred Tax asset is recognized and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable
certainty of its realization in future.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act 1961,
which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability,
is considered as asset in the balance sheet.

Research and development expenses

Capital expenditure on Research and Development is treated in the same manner as Fixed

Assets. The revenue expenditure on Research and development is charged off in the year in
which it is incurred.
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1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in financial statement.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses of items of ¥10000/- each and below are charged off to the revenue.
Prior Period Expenses/Income

Income and expenditure relating to prior period exceeding ¥25000/- in each case only is accounted
under prior period.

General Stores/Spares/ Raw Materials/ Finished Products

The provision for loss if any in respect of slow moving items of materials/finished products are
accounted after obtaining the technical opinion regarding the usability/marketability.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the purpose of
current or non-current classification of assets and Liabilities.
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ANNEXURE Il - Referred to in Note No. B.7
Disclosures under Accounting Standards-17 SEGMENT REPORTING (Consolidated)

1.Primary Segment Information

Segment Revenue

Contraceptives

Net Sales & Services 42,058.43
Other Unallocable Revenue
Total
Capital Employed
Profit before Interest & Tax 7,009.94
Less: Interest
Less: Other Unallocable Expenditure
Prior period items
Add : Other Unallocable Income
Profit before tax 7,009.94
Capital Employed
Allocated Fixed Assets (a) 17,289.44
Allocated Current Assets (b) 42,672.69
a+b 59,962.13
Allocated Current Liabilities 18,502.72
Capital Employed Allocation 41,459.41

Unallocable portion of Capital
Employed

Total Capital Employed

Particulars

Health Care Trading
28,714.30 15,394.50

754.17 1,029.16

754.17  1,029.16
33,976.42 1,114.22
30,629.34 15,619.33
64,605.76 16,733.55
16,086.17  6,772.49
48,519.59  9,961.07

2.Secondary Segment Information - Geographical Revenue

India
Qutside India

Captial Employed

India
Outside India

For and on behalf of the Board

% lacs
Procurement  Contract
and Services Total
Consultancy
Services
18,700.60 6,538.72 1,11,406.54
2,145.44
1,13,551.98
3,201.33 1,328.18 13,322.77
2,940.78
6,298.34
0.47
119.28
3,201.33 1,328.18 4,202.47
1,990.88 0.75 60,751.54
19,020.97 6,634.21 1,14,576.56
21,011.86 6,634.96 1,75,328.10
8,208.77 2,876.57 52,446.71
12,803.09 3,758.39 1,22,881.39
(63,903.91)
58,977.48
1,02,719.57
10,832.40
1,13,551.98
58,353.32
624.16
58,977.48

Vide our report of even date attached

For M/s. Abraham & Jose

Dr. Babu Thomas
Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016

Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S

P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
CS & SVP (HR) SVP (F) & CFO Partner
[FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773

Annual Report 2015-2016

333



12 Uelle 2Brb 12 DODRD RIK b ADIS 2D | bbb SR /G2 R @ D) 222 [kl M  GL-71L0T hb e

SR 77 G2 K P LRI BRILII BIRIGDINIE M| & Sb Z|-110Z & 60-8002 fb 'S 95 612 RIK @ 1h1Sd M| & 11-810Z e £1-210Z hb & Ridlkh b 113
|2 lele U2 2h A Inlke AIRJ < [bI> Ltk 2h Ab b % fb RIK f Ikl [k RIb Ll dRjie B 2> %g | hb RJK MbErd fr kil (b (DI Inlke DRbIIE o

DaIBR| Rl ©RIBIK Ae ddkle ‘12 [k R0 |2 32 AP B %1hg-8 LD Al Alkb B [Ibblb | 2 Ikl RG] PRIDMh dh 2b lalke b %g | hin PR kb RIK 1k IPRD bl

¥¥ G96'€€
AN AN
009

IANeI NI

0E'618°€ElL
¢6 G997

0L es
82 68/
76'6.5¢C
lo'e
16651 €
€2
€90
€292V’

80'¢0.
VAR 4749

bl )
SlL-¥102

91" L08' L Lk &
61'922'02 pd
or L Ibl> D& b AIR| b Idlhie hdpl W3Id (1)
6. 78102 (Rbk) 1 [ki]ie) | Al D) 2k LIRBbIK Ale hdd bBlallhbie ¢ ¢ hia AR|P klin Ad] Bballkld xh B loh (1)
ABBEPIK (11)
9z 18512 pd
26 99 by pb/kIbRb] 3h Rihk biajie b [l (X)
- ARG LRIk b Sib Ah bk @ LIS dhlkd3 Riak ki]le (X))
20’ 8¢ LIBbIK 1) & 3 1k (111A)
8 00v (11> kiglll PbL]) kh-Brll (11A)
76'6.6'€ 1Pl Bhllrle] Bl (b [plin (10)
75 099 [Pl ®b AR lmte ()
Gg'2eS'v (laflx blojlbs b)) [PAlle b AR [rlkb] plbrk (Al
S6°0 1Pl [ [bhd AR|b Iz Briblie [Mbehd MR[b kit (B2)
10| P2l [ [bhe AR|D ok Rible plbbd ARG LRylbhle (4)
Rl (1)
89282 Lt | k) |2k DBIPY b he b Lo | |bld Sh IR ¢ [phd (1)
9862 | Dle hepf [Bhe DB k2 hed &p I | blb 3h I} Sh Bab) & |khe (B2

€9'89¢ 2 dlr 2R 2@ It Rhik BY PRIPR B (olks bd IndRk| Sh kiRlklok| sP R Alr NP |2k LIRPIK kb Kbk
% blb 2 fr Blpie [pheh IkD 2 Al | 3k DO k her ¢ I ‘pI> 2 Rlie Sh Bab] & khe (2

2 kie (1)

hlbkR Slyplk (1)
k2l 2
91-6102 (¢b 22 D) 2k BIRPIK) ADBBOIK AR MIDRD Dip|BIK Dok

(22 6L Yal?]) Uam) Kb lodbh| RIRER| 2| & kb Milkk I 9LOZ 'Rk LE - 111 [hbe

Ty RYIE 2015-2016

334



GT-7T0Z feak ayy 10) 11 1S8] Aoueubaid Spiemo) a101d /8'G 'Sy pue ZT-TT0Z 01 60-8002 Sieak ay) 10} s||id saAndasenuo)d Aouahiawg spremo) salold
22°S 'SH ‘YI-ST0Z ®ET-ZTOZ Sieak ay) 10j SWOPUOD SPIBMO] 81040 9G°6T "SH Bununowe ‘asualayjip ayel spremol T1H woly A1anodal Jybnos Ajuaoal sey Ansiuin

“e'd 05ZTaA0qe SI1S8I181Ul 8] 818YM Sased Ul

"e'd 42T @ Ude]l Usaq aARy SWIeD |[e 10} 1SIalul Jo 8.l 8yl ‘@ansn(r [ein1eN Jo ajdiound pue xe| awoou| 8 SaIA3| 1SSaIa1ul A1o1N1e1s ayl MaIA Ul
Buidaay “1IanBMOH "%7Z-8 Woll pabuel aAey siuewIe|d 8yl Ag apew swired ayl "e'd o4zT @ 1saiaiu| snid redioulid se pare|nojes usag sey sanljigel] usabunuo),

Y'G96°EE
YT°9vT°02

00°9
YT 0vT0C

0E€'6T8'ET

26'99Y
0T°€s
8¢°68.
¥6°6.5°C
T0°€
T6'651°€
€Le
€90
€2'9¢v's
80°¢0L
LS VVE

soe| »
ST-710¢

9%°L08'T¥
67°922'0¢

or'iv
6.1781°0¢

92'18G'T¢

c0°8€
G8°00v
76'6.6°C
75°099
GE'ZSS'Y
S6°0

L0'T
€9°LEC'TT
9€'G.
€9°89¢

soe| »
9T-G9T0C

IVLOLANVEO
V101

paji readde yoaiym 1o} wiejd aregal Huipuad
(saauenpe Jo 19N)
10} papiAoid J0u pue JUNo2JY [ended uo paInNdaxa aq 0} Bulurewsal S}oLNHUOID JO JUNOWE pajewnsy

(m

0]

Sluswliwwo)

IVIOL

uonone ul palinboe Auadoid ayy uo Bunsixa ‘sjgqeled junowy/aouriquNoUg
au0Z 2lwouod3 [e1dads ulyd0) Jo Jnoaey ul Buppenapun eba) wna puog
Ain@ swoisn)d 1o} suoIsInoId
(AsuoN uibrepy 1o 18u) supal) Jo 1anaT
panss| aajuerens aelodio)
(Aauoln uibre Jo 19N) SIayio 01 asjuelens yueqg
(Aauoln uibre Jo 19N) Siuswuedaq M09 0] 83lurIeNns) Yueg
s18Y10 Joj ueo BuisnoH aakojdw3 1oy asjuerenb sAuedwo)d (Q)
S1921JJO J0} ueo] BuisnoH aakojdw3 Joj asuelrenh s Auedwo)d (e)
aajueIeND
s1qop se pabpajmoudoe 1ou Auedwo) ayl isurebe swied
1g8p se pabpsimouxde jou ‘0D ay) Jsurebe swre|d xel safes (q)
1Sa2J9)ul pue sjuswssasse Buipuad
JO 108dsal ul slanew Jejiwis ayl Jo aAIsnjoxa pue [eadde ul si Auedwo) ay) yaiym jo 10adsal
ul 1o} papinoid 10u pue 1gap se pabpamouyoe jou Auedwo) ay 1surebe spuewsap xel awoau| (e)
Xe| awoou|

)
(x1)
(1n)
(1)
(1n)
®
(n)

()
)

0)

sanljigel] uabunuo)

(10) papinoid 10U JUSIXS BY) 01) SIUSWIIIWIWOD pue Sal

(6'0 910N 1942¥) 9T02'€0°TE AIANT ¥VIA IHL HO4 SININILVLS TVIONVYNI4 OL STLON - 111 FHNXANNY

an

26'99v

0]

Igel| usbunuod

Annual Report 2015-2016

335



gt |V : doit sifafeer, 2013 & srgegen | &Y aageh oik g Sem &

IR SfaRe IMeRt (fewmft .12 3)
AT BT A
aﬁqliuqlazil R <@l ¥) = S (% @l §)
T
UaUael ARHhHR fafics 66.10 54,739 20 90.31 288827
e (3R
AT draee fofics 33.10 27,407 85 (1.96) - (62.63)
TIUAUS EHhIch s fofics 0.09 77 66 3.64 116 46
AT TEErIfeH &
BERfehe fafics 0.77 641 52 7.69 245 98
Jigeh SEd
ATSHIBRT aRyardt () fafics (0.07) (57.75) (0.31) (10.04)
Pl 100.00 82,808 .48 100.00 3,198.11
() TG F I FHARIST (28,326 56) (28.07)
(@) rcuRiegsd TSl (1561.07) (63 .95)
Tafha fFraer gt/
PR b 98 A 54,330 .85 3,106.09
e B TWE I it IR @ gAY RUIS o ¥
Tl AR THE TUS S
NEEUIEIEaN
%4 5. 0000107y
7. T T ST a1 A . sfignar QMR TR Y. gHy. &
Jeer Ue e (fawor) Gt afea g R I () GIEEN
EECAEEN G (f&=1: 00342401) RS SuTene (T SIR) e g i ottt AewrdT |, 214773
(fe71: 00117374) (75 <+t T : 5875) (7w A T 26723)
¢ el
26.05.2016
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ANNEXURE IV : Additional Information as per Schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013

of Subsidiaries & Joint Venture (Refer Note. C.12)

Net Assets ie. Total assets-

Share in Profit

. Total Liabilities or Loss
Name of Entity
As % of Amount As % of Amount
Consolidated R in lacs) Consolidated ® in lacs)
Net Assets Profit or Loss
Parent
HLL Lifecare Limited 66.10 54,739.20 90.31 2,888.27
Subsidiaries (Indian)
HLL Biotech Ltd 33.10 27,407.85 (1.96) -(62.63)
HLL Infra Tech Services Ltd 0.09 77.66 3.64 116.46
GoaAntibiotics &
Pharmaceuticals Ltd 0.77 641,52 7.69 245,98
Joint Venture
Life Spring Hospitals (P) Ltd (0.07) (57.75) 0,31 10.04
Total 100.00 82,808.48 100.00 3,198.11
(a) Adjustments arising out of consolidation (28,326.56) (28.07)
(b) Minority Interest (151.07) (63.95)
Consolidated Net Asset/Profit after tax 54,330.85 3,106.09
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P

Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016

Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

Partner
Membership No : 214773

CS & SVP (HR)
[FCS: 5875]

SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723
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I V: Hut i, 2013 & IR AfaR STHSR
(BT T ot W1 3 dou e 2014 (@) & 9 5 & G afed a=T 129(3)(1) & AR

ar'E aage (it ad 2014-15)

(X <mEi #)

Mar tdarifeRie  TAUANA $hicdh  TaUadd aRiicd

AT S FHT AW
wHrgfewe fafics fafics fafics
1 Raifér ga Mg T 3R 3M$ T 3R 3ME TT 3R
2 IR S 1,902 .00 5.00 27 489 00
3 IR 3R sifery (1,260.48) 72 66 (81.15)
4 pof gREUfrET 3,406 61 717462 31,791.90
5  &d <IN 3,406 61 717462 31,791 .90
6  frEw 025 - -
7 AR 5,059.06 1,953 81 576
8 @R P YA A 376.70 174 97 -66 52
9 &R & o yrag™ 160.00 58 .56 -
10 &R & 918 A/ 245 98 116 .46 -62 63
11 e e I T T
12 IREIREr & gferaar 74% 100% 100%
3l TP UaTeld YH T B I8 FHAGEIT BT AR - A
9y & SRME T 1 99 &7 FEgw H1 9 - Py TRl
R d 98 3R 9w ST
WY e BT AR : AFHISHT sRadra (d) fafies
1. TAFTH RO JeT-uH B AR 31.03.2016
CESIECIE))
2. a9 & ofd R HUA gRT oy FedrR/Hgeh Sed ol WRI B F=1 78,34,188
3. wEArly/Eyh Sed ¥ fder i 783 42
4. RV TRR % 50%
5. g8l Hecdqul y91a & faa=or 50% sfdact ;MR
ROT 3R TRAT &
|1 I gt ufrfrem
6. |EANN/AGH ST & FHHA Tal B BT HIROT EIBEE]
7. AFGH @RI Jee-03 & R R & SR Fad oI (115 49)
8. a4 & fog emw/z (20.07)
i. HEA H AR fey (10.04)
ii. WS W eI fI=R T8 by (10.04)
Heel B WE | ﬁmﬁwﬁmww%l
e
%4 5. 0000107
ST, T ST a1g AT 0. sfipar KRN E] Y. gy, & It
e ud e (fagur) Gyt afua vd RS SuTemer (fox) AER
y&e feers IR IYTETE (T 3TR) Td e focfi erefiemt Tewar . 214773
7§ Rl
26.05.2016
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ANNEXURE V : Additional Information as per Companies Act, 2013
(Pursuant to section 129 (3) (1) read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014) in Form AOC-1

PART"A" SUBSIDIARIES (FY 2015-16) ( in Lakhs)
Name of the subsidiary company Goa Antibiotics & HLL Infra Tech HLL Biotech
Pharmaceuticals Limited Limited
1. Reporting Currency INR INR INR
2. Share Capital 1,902.00 5.00 27,489.00
& Reserves & Surplus (1,260.48) 72.66 (81.15)
4, Total Assets 3,406.61 7,174.62 31,791.90
5. Total Liabilities 3,406.61 7,174.62 31,791.90
6. Investments 0.25 - -
7. Turnover 5,059,06 1,953.81 5.76
8. Profit before Tax 376.70 174.97 -66.52
9. Provision for Tax 160.00 58.56 -
10. Profit/loss After Tax 245.98 116.46 -62.63
11. Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil
12. Percentage of Shareholding 74% 100% 100%
Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
Names of subsidiaries which have liqudated or sold during the year : None
PART "B" ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES
Name of Joint Venture Company : Life Spring Hospital (P) Limited
1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2016
2. No. of Shares of Associates/Joint Ventures held by the company on the ( in Lakhs)
year end 78,34,188
Amount of investment in Associates/ Joint Venture 783.42
4. Extend of Holding % 50%
5. Description of how there is significant 50% equity share
holding
& equal Board
representation
along with Acumen
6. Reson why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA
7. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet (115.49)
8. Profit/Loss for the year 20.07
(i) Considered in Consolidation 10.04
(ii) Not Considered in Consolidation 10.04

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &
Managing Director

P. Sreekumar
CS & SVP (HR)
[FCS: 5875]

Dr. Babu Thomas
Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016
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Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
CA. Mukesh. K.P
Partner
Membership No : 214773

R. Ganesan
SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]
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REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE

HLL Lifecare Limited

Registered & Corporate Office
HLL Bhavan, Poojappura
Thiruvananthapuram

Kerala, India 695 012

Tele: 91-471-2354949 ( 5 lines)
Grams ROLATEX

Fax  91-471-2356739

E mail : enquiry@ lifecarehll.com
Website: www.lifecarehll.com

FACTORIES

HLL Lifecare Limited

Peroorkada Factory

Peroorkada.

Thiruvananthapuram 695 005

Tel: 91-471-2437270/2433602/2433459/
2432880/2432292

Fax: 91-471-2435013

HLL Lifecare Limited

Akkulam Factory

Akkulam, Thiruvananthapuram-695017

Tel : 91-471 - 2441384, 2442641, 2442642,
2442692, 2442697

Fax : 91-471-241383

HLL Lifecare Limited

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum

Kanagala, Belgaum — 591225

Tele: 08333-279206, 279207, 279244,
279245, 279239

Fax : 08333-321443

HLL Lifecare Limited
Kakkanad Factory, Cochin

Plot No.16A/1

Kakkanad, Cochin — 682 037
Tele: 0484 — 2413332,2413293
Fax: 0484 - 2413293

HLL Lifecare Limited
Manesar Unit

Plot No.71, Sector 7
Gurgaon, Haryana - 122050
Tel.N0.0124 — 4030949
Fax No0.0124— 4030949

HLL Lifecare Limited Indore Plant,
Sector-E, Sanver Road

Industrial Area

Indore - M.P.

Tel: (0731) 3259458 / 4011740

HLL Lifecare Limited
Irapuram Factory

Re. Sy. N0.156/3 Block No.29
Rubber Park
Valayanchirangara

Irapuram, Cochin-683556

REGIONAL OFFICE:
NOIDA

Marketing office:

HLL Lifecare Limited

No.B-14A, Sector-62

Noida (U.P.) — 201 301

Tel: 0120-4071500, 0120-4071609 (Mktg.)
Fax No. 0120-4071513/4071627

KOLKATTA

HLL Lifecare Limited,
Suite No: 901, 9th Floor
Krishna Building,
224A, A.J.C.Bose Road
Kolkata - 700017

West Bengal

Tel: 033 22905275/74
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CHENNAI

HLL Lifecare Limited (CBD/HCD)
No0.185, Plot No.1, Lingavel tower
100 ft. Bye Pass Road, Vijayanagar
Velachery

Chennai — 600 042.

Tel: 044-22453478/22551860/
22551868/22441727

Fax No. 044-22550764

E-mail: hlimktsr@md3.vsnl.net.in

HLL Lifecare Limited (WHD)

No.12, 100 Feet Road,

Velacherry Taramani Road,

Near Canara Bank, Velacherry,

Chennai — 600042

Phone : 044 -22435604, 22435607, 22433306

BANGALORE

HLL Lifecare Limited
#2, 4" Cross
Ex-Servicemen Colony
Banaswadi

Bangalore - 560 043
Phone:080 25424530
Fax ; 080 25424531

HYDERABAD

HLL Lifecare Limited
3-5-816,Veena Dhari Complex,
4™ Floor, King Koti Road,
Hyderguda, Hyderabad - 560029.
Phone & Fax N0.040-23210041

LUCKNOW

HLL Lifecare Limited,

9/316, Vikas Nagar

Lucknow-226 022.

Phone No: 0522-2330945, 2320592
Fax: 0522-2738947/2330945

E-mail: hlatex@satyam.net.in

MUMBAI

HLL Lifecare Limited

HLL Bhavan, 501&502, 5th Floor
Plot No. 86, Sector-11

Near Mandir Chowk, Khopra Road
Behind Khopra Bus Stop

Kharghar, Navi Mumbai - 410210
Maharashtra

Phone No: 022-20870667, 20870668
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NO

Steroids

NO

Side effects

Saheli Contraceptive Pill

Disclaimer: Saheli only claims to not cause side effects generally associated with hormonal pills



HLL Lifecare Limited

(A Government of India Enterprise)

Registered & Corporate Office
HLL Bhavan, Poojappura
Thiruvananthapuram - 695 012
Tel: 91-471-2354949

Fax: 91-471-2356739

Email: enquiry@lifecarehll.com

TAvAUA ATsheaR fafaes
(HRT AP BT 3TH)
UStid we e e
TAUeTUeT 9o, ST,

fagaraged - 695 012

e 91-471-2354949
ther ¢ 91-471-2356739
-9 : enquiry@lifecarehll.com

www.lifecarehll.com

Innovating for Healthy Generations

= et & fou Far=Eyor




